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China CITIC Bank International Limited
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China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI”") is 75%-owned by CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited.

CNCBI is a Hong Kong-based full-service commercial bank that offers
a broad spectrum of financial services spanning wealth management,
personal banking, wholesale banking as well as global markets and
treasury solutions. We aspire to grow into an outstanding bank that
possesses professional capabilities to succeed with our customers, staff and
community.

CNCBI's footprint in Greater China includes 24 branches and two business
banking centres in Hong Kong, as well as presence in Beijing, Shanghai,
Shenzhen and Macau. CNCBI also has overseas branches in New York, Los
Angeles and Singapore.

More information about CNCBI can be found on its website at
www.cncbinternational.com.

EIRIT (BRR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Vision, Mission and Core Values

=

Our Vision

BiE EHE {LEBF Agile. Professional. Simple.

fEan

Our Mission
AREFHREE
AETH=E
AHESREHR

BMEE

Create value for customers
Seek happiness for employees
Make profit for shareholders

Perform responsibility for society

Our Core Values

XL HAE
EFERE
2
M slE

Culture
Customer
Collaboration

Cyberspace
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Financial Performance

2024 T ERWE 2024 Financial Highlights
2F (BEERT) For the year (HK$ million) 2024 2023 % Change
EH BUA Net interest income 7,665 7,605 0.8%
FER B A Non-interest income 2,916 2,395 21.8%
g Operating expenses (4,060) (4,151) -2.2%
CRITAEMEEEBRAR Expected credit losses on financial instruments

HhEERE and impairment losses on other assets (3,284) (2,854) 15.1%
75 B A Profit before taxation 3,232 2,989 8.1%
P Income tax (490) (402) 21.9%
AN g A Profit for the year 2,742 2,587 6.0%
RELBR(BBEER) At year end (HK$ million) 2024 2023 9% Change
BEERREBK Loans and advances to customers 229,190 226,286 1.3%
BERR Total assets 489,295 470,387 4.0%
Rk Total deposits 373,074 342,293 9.0%
IR R 4R R Total shareholders' equity 47,033 44,181 6.5%
B gt = Financial ratios 2024 2023 % Change
BE R Total capital ratio 18.9% 20.1% -1.2%
FHRBEEEL X Average liquidity coverage ratio 209% 206% 3.5%
B % Loans to deposits 61.4% 66.1% -4.7%
PRSI A L & Cost to income 38.4% 41.5% -3.1%

FRIEIRTT (BIFR) BRRAE

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Profit for the year (HK$ million)

Financial Performance

BEERE (B88RT)

Total assets (HKS million)

REREDEE (B8HBT)

Total shareholders’ equity (HKS million)

2 2742 2 2 47,033
23 2,587 23 470387 23 44,181
2 2,253 22 451,651 22 41,451

21 2,128 21 417472 21 41,32

20 1,156 20 392,899 20 39,797

5 MBER 5 Year Financial Summary

2F (BEERT) For the year (HK$ million) 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
SEF BUA Net interest income 7,665 7,605 6,896 5,805 5,186
JEF BUL A Non-interest income 2,916 2,395 1,567 2,390 2,170
s Operating expenses (4,060) (4,151) (4,099) (3,930) (3,662)
ST ABHEERLAR Expected credit losses on financial

Hh&EERE instruments and impairment losses

E=ES on other assets (3,284) (2,854) (1,762) (1,769) (2,352)
A58 B A Profit before taxation 3,232 2,989 2,550 2,500 1,306
55 Income tax (490) (402) (296) (372) (150)
IR JE % T Profit for the year 2,742 2,587 2,253 2,128 1,156
RELEBH (BEEBT) At year end (HKS million) 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
EEERNET Loans and advances to customers 229,190 226,286 246,798 242,667 220,096
TBEEEERK Expected credit losses/

BB impairment allowances 2,495 1,193 1,378 1,872 2,440
BEBRE Total assets 489,295 470,387 451,651 417,472 392,899
EHREWFEERLE Average interest earnings assets 427,881 419,738 413,679 403,345 353,458
FRiELE Total deposits 373,074 342,293 341,658 329,249 309,877
&yt Total shareholders” equity 47,033 44,181 41,451 41,232 39,797
B #E L 2R Financial ratios 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
BERE R Total capital ratio 18.9% 20.1% 18.6% 17.4% 17.2%
T naEEE R Average liquidity coverage ratio 209% 206% 212% 249% 239%
EFt® Loans to deposits 61.4% 66.1% 72.2% 73.7% 71.0%
ERHBERELLE Loans to total assets 46.8% 48.1% 54.6% 58.1% 56.0%
PRSI A L & Cost to income 38.4% 41.5% 48.4% 47.9% 49.8%
EHEERLSHRR Return on average total assets 0.58% 0.56% 0.51% 0.50% 0.30%
A% B R S B R R Return on average shareholders’ equity 5.99% 6.00% 547% 521% 291%
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Financial Performance

T Deposits*
1. RERNES By type 2024 2023
(B Current 9.8% 10.0%
wE Savings 17.0% 15.0%
EHA Fixed 73.2% 75.0%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
2 BRI AE D By maturity 2024 2023
BIRFfE & On demand 26.8% 25.0%
DR 3E A Less than 3 months 63.0% 64.0%
HiE3MEA BT R1F Other 3 months but less than 1 year 9.6% 10.6%
BBIFEIRESF Over 1 year but less than 5 years 0.6% 0.4%
c Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. REWE S By Currency 2024 2023
B HKD 52.9% 46.7%
ET usb 32.0% 37.6%
EHAth Others 15.1% 15.7%
BE Total 100.0% 100.0%
 URPERAEEAR *  Based on customer deposits only
0.5% i.Z% 6.5%
30.6% 30.7%
UNGIE PUS=l
Wholesale Banking Group
BERS o AERD
Total Deposits | lsﬁa{%ﬁifinﬁn ;Eroup Total Loans
65.7% Breakdown Breakdown
Certificates of deposits
 E
Other 62.8%

FRIEIRTT (BIFR) BRRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Financial Performance

Loan Portfolio

RIT¥ESED By industry sectors 2024 2023
BREBHER Loans and advances for use in Hong Kong
Ik : Industrial, commercial and financial:
I E Property development 2.9% 3.1%
ES g Property investment 10.0% 9.9%
EAE Financial concerns 11.3% 10.1%
fREL L Stockbrokers 0.9% 0.7%
HERTEESH Wholesale and retail trade 3.8% 3.9%
EREES Manufacturing 2.4% 2.6%
B ERHRE Transport and transport equipment 1.4% 1.5%
IR B Recreational activities 0.1% 0.3%
AR Information technology 0.3% 0.3%
HAh Others 5.5% 4.2%
EAA - Individuals:
BEIEEEHEE] Loans for the purchase of flats under the Home
[LABRB2EREEE R Ownership Scheme, Private Sector Participation
[MAEEEEFNEEFTIHNER Scheme and Tenants Purchase Scheme 0.0% 0.0%
BEHMEEMENER Loans for the purchase of other residential properties 10.6% 9.9%
EAFREE Credit card advances 0.4% 0.3%
HAth Others 6.5% 7.5%
BomE Trade finance 3.1% 2.4%
RARBEABAINETT K E R REF Loans and advances for use outside Hong Kong 40.8% 433%
BE Total 100.0% 100.0%
RESHED By geographical spread 2024 2023
B Hong Kong 69.3% 70.3%
R E A Mainland China 16.6% 16.0%
E3Ed United States 5.1% 4.6%
s Singapore 3.4% 3.3%
Ht Others 5.6% 5.8%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
REHE D By maturity 2024 2023
BURS (B2 Repayable on demand 0.6% 1.1%
NS Less than 1 year 51.2% 55.7%
Bl FEDRSE Over 1 year but less than 5 years 31.4% 23.5%
BiBs Over 5 years 14.0% 14.6%
BITHH Undated 2.8% 5.1%
CEl Total 100.0% 100.0%
RE®E S By currency 2024 2023
B HKD 50.6% 53.8%
E usb 29.6% 29.7%
HAt Others 19.8% 16.5%
At Total 100.0% 100.0%
—EMEFER
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Mr. SHEN Qiang *
Executive Director &
Chief Executive Officer

RAR2024F 12 AEZ T AFERT (BB A
BRAR) ([HR{ERIT (B JHK AT ITES
FITHARR,  HIHFEESE  MARETEK -
RARRREESNET  MEHHEAITESH B
naEl (FEIAEE]) HEEEBKRMEEMA
B 7] - 2024 F 2 A EEF = FEH KR E AL LE

ZF - mHEEMBRIKRNAINEILE - LARFHEN
BIRZEZS  AEEETAEPERITRMNER
RAE([RERITD MEFSHNEET REEEN
WEREN HERR  WEBRH 2NITERNE
BIRTT - FEEERT  SRBEASEXE
b ER A REE - AR BT
BYER R CHEES - BEIBHEEAEE
ENEEENHEER  2024FKEEEITER
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FRIEIRTT (BIFR) BRRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

2024 SNEREEE - BEETROTFLEMR - &
BAEBETIHE AN RENRE - THEEFRTE - RIT
EEEWE  MINBETEAH  ENEBRTEGSHESR
BRZEE RITRAFRESHEBERET  BFBRMHR - £
BEST  AEEBREH=FEBRE - LEHTHERITR
IEBEFENBRHEERENEMEEN - WIREIREHH
B RABTFRBED  XRRRNEEEE2LROFES -

In 2024, the adverse impacts of external macroeconomic
and geopolitical situations deepened, and China’s economic
operations encountered numerous difficulties and challenges.
Market credit demand remained insufficient, the banking
industry’s interest rate spreads narrowed, and the onshore and
offshore interest rate spreads continued to be inverted. These
factors constrained the growth potential of Hong Kong banks’
traditional financial businesses. Competition among banks
intensified as they sought new avenues for growth. Against this
backdrop, the Group focused on the new three-year Strategic
Plan. Aligning with the strategic positioning of its parent bank,
CNCB, as the major platform for offshore business and channel for
cross-border collaboration, cross-border business opportunities
were captured and customer service capabilities were enhanced.
A positive trend in business development and operation
management was evident.

I 'am deeply honoured and feel a great sense of responsibility to have
been appointed as the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI" or “the Bank”) in December
2024. | extend my sincere gratitude to the Bank's shareholders and Board
of Directors for their trust, as well as to the management team and staff of
the Bank and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) for their unwavering
dedication. The year 2024 marked the initiation of the Group’s new
three-year Strategic Plan. Despite facing complex onshore and offshore
challenges, and intensified competitions, the Group's employees, under the
leadership of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (“CNCB"), the Board of
Directors, and the management, steadfastly pursued goals. Efforts included
building a value-driven bank, consistently promoting business, Fintech and
Agile Culture transformations, fortifying risk and compliance awareness,
reducing costs and increasing productivity to optimise operational
efficiency, deepening collaboration, and integrating businesses with high
quality sustainable development. The commendable results of these
operations and management efforts in 2024 allowed for the successful
achievement of annual business goals.
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Mr. BAI Lijun

Executive Director,

Deputy Chief Executive Officer,

Head of Wholesale Banking Group and
Treasury & Markets Group

RPR Lt
AR BESIRITE B 8
Ms. Wendy YUEN

Head of Personal & Business Banking
Group

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

BEfz+
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Ms. Christine YAU

Deputy Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Compliance and Operations Officer
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[2\fg 42 ES

Mr. Clement WOO
Chief Risk Officer

Rt
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Ms. LI Haixia

Deputy Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Human Resources Officer

BHL
BT BRI AE
Ms. SUI Yang

Deputy Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer

MEEELE
AR EE
Mr. Frazer LAM

Chief Information Officer

BBl e
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Mr. Eddy YUEN
Chief Auditor
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Financial Review

In 2024, the Group recorded profit attributable to shareholders of HK$2.74
billion, representing a 6.0% year-on-year increase. Operating income was
HK$10.58 billion, increasing by 5.8%. Net interest income increased by
0.8% to HK$7.67 billion, mainly driven by asset growth. Net interest margin
decreased by 2 basis points to 1.79%. Non-interest income recorded a
growth of 21.7% to HK$2.92 billion, mainly driven by higher net fee and
commission income from investment and insurance products and services.

Operating expenses amounted to HK$4.06 billion, reflecting a 2.2%
year-on-year decrease. Cost-to-income ratio improved further, lowering
by 3.1 percentage points to 38.4%. The Group promoted cost reduction
and efficiency improvement, optimised its cost structure, and continued to
invest in strategically important areas.

The Group continued to strengthen credit risk management and intensify
efforts on resolving non-performing loans. The quality of credit assets
improved with impaired loan ratio of 2.13% at the end of 2024, representing
a 15 basis points decrease from the end of 2023.

Amid a complex and challenging operating environment, the Group
remained committed to enhancing asset-liability management, controlling
funding costs and improving capital efficiency. As of the end of 2024, total
assets of the Group amounted to HK$489.30 billion, representing a 4.0%
increase as compared to the end of 2023. Customer loans (including trade
bills) increased by 1.3% to HK$229.19 billion. Customer deposits (including
certificates of deposit issued) increased by 9.0% to HK$373.07 billion. The
loan-to-deposit ratio was 61.4%, dropping by 4.7 percentage points, and
remained at a healthy level.

The Group maintained a solid capital base, with total capital ratio, tier 1
capital ratio and common equity tier 1 capital ratio meeting regulatory
requirements while maintaining adequate liquidity.



K OEE
ACIES S

ZENERFHRERINEREETENESE
T2 DNREBLEWARERL141% c EEHT
FTIHEERE  AREBERNFZ T - EEGE
{LEEASE RARBERSRBREENRE + XN
TIREBIIEE  IMANBEEERNK - #Z22024
FR - BEFRIE14393FB 70 B2023F KIER
29%  BESER TR ERBEETIE16.5% ° &
BlraEsEE  BARIRT  BHEREEER
BIBRGEETR  EHRRETRFIRRIRTE
HR86% - BRINREERR  XPERTES
T EERPHERFERI09%  EREPNER
BEHE D RIRFIER134%%13.7% °

RHWITEBRRPEREELR  FEELCHE
B BROERNRERE  AEPITERS
RERRBRER  RAZREPHL  £BEHEE
il e BRRE - BHFFEEEH LT
RBBENREMREIRR - XHRITWALFER
17.2% ©

RERREXBRERN  RERIEFZXZHAGR
it AEEE2024FBABRFIREERTISE
EERALHLELITHITETRINES B8RS
EHHRFE4 XHE380EET - REERIT
BETT - MHEEXRI% -

RAEBEBET—ERE  —ERFIES
BEPERTEITENSREREMED &
e RIS - DNRIESEREN RIS &M o RARAK
ERFSERMER  BELBERHR - BARE
M - BRZ T Him

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Business Review
Wholesale Banking Business

Impacted by a reduction in average loan size and a decline in loan
interest rate spreads, the wholesale banking business recorded a 14.1%
year-on-year decrease in operating income. In response to an unfavourable
credit market environment, the wholesale banking business foundation
was fortified. While actively optimising the credit portfolio and rapidly
reducing high-risk assets, new business opportunities were explored, and
the investment in high-quality assets was increased. As of the end of 2024,
customer loans reached HK$143.93 billion, marking a 2.9% increase from
the end of 2023, while the balance of special mention and non-performing
loans decreased by 16.5%. By continuing to optimise liability structure and
expanding settlement deposits through product lines, such as transaction
banking and securities services, the average balance of current and savings
deposits increased by 8.6% year-on-year. Through actively expanding and
consolidating a high-quality customer base, the number of credit customers
rose by 10.9% year-on-year, and the number of base customers and active
customers increased by 13.4% and 13.7% year-on-year, respectively.

The development momentum of the transaction banking business
continued to grow. Settlement scenarios, core products, and service
channels were optimised to establish a comprehensive product service
system that caters to customer needs. Significant breakthroughs and
rapid growth were achieved in settlement businesses such as wealth
management connect, custody, Hong Kong stock dividend payments,
payroll services, etc, resulting in a 17.2% year-on-year increase in transaction
banking income.

Structured finance business was witnessing substantial growth. As per the
London Stock Exchange Group, in 2024, the Group secured the eighth
position on the Hong Kong and Macau Syndicated Loan League Table
as a Mandated Lead Arranger and Bookrunner, and achieved fourth rank
in transaction volume, reaching a total of US$3.80 billion, a year-on-year
increase of nearly US$900 million, capturing a market share of 5.1%.

The wholesale banking business is dedicated to the principle of “One
CITIC, One Customer”. By leveraging the complementary strengths
of CNCB's offshore platform and financial licences, the collaboration
mechanism has been optimised, and the implementation of collaboration
businesses has been accelerated. Moving forward, the Group aims to
deepen industry-finance, finance-finance, and cross-border collaborations,
enhancing overall benefits and achieving win-win results for all stakeholders.

“EIFER
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Treasury and Markets Business

Treasury and markets business achieved steady growth, with operating
income increasing by 24.9% year-on-year. Macro trading volumes increased
by 41.8% year-on-year. In December 2024, the Group was approved by
the China Foreign Exchange Trade System as one of the first offshore
institutions and liquidity providers for RMB foreign exchange business in the
Free Trade Zone. Additionally, in October 2024, the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority designated the Group as one of the 11 Hong Kong RMB Primary
Liquidity Providers. As per the London Stock Exchange Group, the Group's
RMB foreign exchange trading volume ranked first among Chinese financial
institutions in Hong Kong as of the end of 2024.

For the debt capital markets business, the Group completed 233 public
bond issuances in 2024, with the total issuance volume increasing by 61.7%
year-on-year. With its professional and comprehensive service capabilities in
the offshore RMB bond sector, the Group won the “Best Bond Deal Award"
at the "FinanceAsia” Achievement Awards 2024.

Securities services business experienced rapid growth. As of the end of 2024,
total assets under custody reached HK$308.38 billion, representing a 72.8%
increase from the end of 2023. Total assets under trustee exceeded HK$180
billion, an 854.9% growth. The total securities service fee income surged by
116.7% year-on-year.

Wealth management product shelf was further expanded, now featuring
a diverse array of products including bonds, structured deposits, and
structured notes. As of the end of 2024, the total wealth management
transaction volume grew by 26.7% year-on-year.

The Group's expertise in bond investment continued to be recognised by
the industry. It was selected by the authoritative magazine “The Asset” as
the “Top Investment House in Asian G3 Bonds', achieving a second place
ranking among banks in Hong Kong. Notably, it was the only bank in the
top three in Hong Kong for four consecutive years. Additionally, the Group
secured the second position in the Hong Kong banking category of “Top
Investment Houses in Asian Local Currency Bonds” in 2024, reflecting its
professional strength in local currency bond investment.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Personal and Business Banking Business

Personal and business banking business maintained strong momentum,
with multiple financial indicators reaching record highs. Operating income
increased by 30.7% year-on-year to HK$4.18 billion. The liability structure
was continually optimised, with total deposits as of the end of 2024
increasing by 21.5% from the end of 2023, and current and savings deposits
increasing by 23.9%.

Diversified wealth management product solutions were developed,
including the launch of special products such as Cross-boundary Wealth
Management Connect 2.0 services and the New Capital Investment Entrant
Scheme. Additionally, by deepening the “Bancassurance and Insurance
Broker” collaboration model, non-interest income grew by nearly 40%
year-on-year.

By leveraging the strength of CITIC Group and CNCB, and positioning
as CNCB's “offshore wealth management platform for high-net-worth
customers’, regional synergy advantages were further consolidated, making
cross-border wealth management a new engine for revenue growth. As
a result, income generated from cross-border business recorded double-
digit growth year-on-year. Additionally, private banking business income
achieved year-on-year growth of over 40%. Through strengthening
customer segmentation with a central focus on acquiring high-net-worth
customers, the number of high-net-worth customers recorded double-digit

growth year-on-year.

To fully support financial inclusion, mobile payment services for Hong
Kong taxis were launched. Service capabilities and product solutions were
enhanced by offering convenient account opening services and introducing
the “Small Business Banking Loan” product, fostering the growth of small
and medium-sized enterprise customers.

Fintech Transformation

In response to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s “Fintech 2025" initiative,
the Group is accelerating its Fintech transformation. A strategic approach to
project investment has been adopted, aiming to optimise the input-output
efficiency of technological resources, and thereby enhance transformation
effectiveness and banking service capabilities.

“EIFER
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

For the wholesale banking business, Transaction Banking customer channels
have been established with the launch of Application Programming
Interface. Additionally, Customer Relationship Management System 2.0
has been promoted to overseas branches, improving customer experience
and enhancing cross-selling capabilities. This led to a 29.0% year-on-year
increase in e-channel corporate customers. For the treasury and markets
business, the Electronic Trading Platform has been continuously improved,
providing customers with competitive foreign exchange quotations in a
timely manner. For the personal and business banking business, digital
transformation has been accelerated, with over 90% of transactions
conducted through digital channels. The number of inMotion customers
increased by nearly 30% year-on-year. The Group has also become one
of the first banks to provide an e-CNY wallet top-up service and support
Interbank Account Data Sharing. As a result, the Group has been awarded
“Financial Technology Innovation Awards 2024 — Best Big Data and Analytics
Infrastructure Implementation”from “The Asian Banker”.

The Group has effectively reduced cyber security risks and maintained the
security of banking systems and data by strengthening data backup, security
drills, and system upgrades. As of the end of 2024, the data coverage rate
was increased to 36.8% through improved data governance capabilities,
data value tapping, and digital transformation. A technology subsidiary
in Shenzhen commenced operations in January 2025, supporting the
Group in enhancing its information technology research and development
capabilities, operational capabilities, and automation levels. A joint working
group with relevant departments of CNCB has been established to fully
promote core banking system upgrades.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group emphasises the importance of rigorous corporate governance
and risk management, and strives to maintain robust risk management
and internal control systems. As part of its efforts to implement regulatory
requirements, risk management capabilities were bolstered and a number
of risk management enhancement initiatives were pursued, including
fulfilling CNCB's risk prevention and control requirements, implementing
the “Basel Ill" Reform Package and Operational Resilience work arrangement,
and completing a new round of Cyber Resilience Assessment. An effective
climate risk management framework was implemented to strengthen
resilience against climate-related risks.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

In addition, the Group actively promotes the development of RegTech,
integrates the existing well-established three lines of defence and
management framework, and continuously strengthens internal control
and compliance management capabilities to cope with the ever-changing
business environment and new regulatory rules. By organising various
publicity, education, and training activities, employees' awareness and
understanding of financial crimes and compliance culture were enhanced.
The Group continued to implement its medium- and long-term anti-money
laundering work plan, optimise the financial crime compliance management
system and processes, and improve the level of anti-money laundering risk
management.

Human Resources Development

The Group consistently prioritises growth together with its employees,
and actively promotes the development of bank culture and Agile Culture
transformation. Initiatives such as “Leading in an Agile Workplace®, "Agile
Tools Workshops” and “Agile Week 2024" were organised to encourage
employees to learn, share and practice Agile Culture, enhancing efficiency
and customer experience. By strengthening integration and collaboration
with CITIC Group and CNCB, various training and exchange programs were
conducted to deepen employees’ understanding of Mainland China.

The Group is deeply committed to the well-being of its employees and
places great importance on their opinions and suggestions. During the year,
a new human resources system was launched to streamline and enhance
the entire management process, simplifying procedures and improving the
employee experience. A comprehensive review of employee benefits was
conducted to optimise medical insurance and improve employee medical
check-up arrangements. Regular wellness refreshments and health talks
were organised, along with large-scale team-building activities such as
“CNCBI Team Power Obstacle Challenge cum Family Fun Day” and various
family-friendly events. These initiatives aimed to foster team cohesion and
underscore the Group's commitment to being a family-friendly employer.
The 2024 Employee Engagement Survey saw an impressive participation
rate of 97%, with highly encouraging scores. This demonstrates the
employee’s strong recognition of the Group and their trust in management.
The workforce remains stable.

The Group also cares about youth development. Various tertiary institution
career fairs and summer internship programs for university students were
engaged. Diversified training programs such as the Trainee Programs
of Wholesale Banking Group and Treasury and Markets Group, “Fintech
Associate Program” with Personal and Business Banking Group were
provided to recruit young talents and ensure a diverse talent pool for the
Group.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

ESG and Sustainable Development

The Group diligently adhered to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s
“Planning for Net-Zero Transition” guidelines and CNCB’s ESG work
requirements. By integrating ESG principles into its strategic planning, the
Group promoted sustainable development and successfully achieved its
annual objectives.

In the realm of business development, green and sustainable finance related
loans saw remarkable growth, with the balance reaching HK$15.09 billion,
marking a 66.9% increase from the end of 2023. The green and sustainable
bond underwriting business also experienced expansion. Throughout
the year, 65 green and sustainable bonds were underwritten in the open
market, representing an increase of 42 bonds from the previous year, with a
total scale of US$19.61 billion, an increase of 152.1% year-on-year. As of the
end of 2024, a total of 33 ESG funds, 43 ESG bonds and 11 ESG insurance
products were listed, enabling customers to tap into opportunities within
the sustainable financial development sector. The Group's outstanding
performance and professional services in green finance earned market
recognition, resulting in several awards from “The Assets’, “Asian Banking
and Finance’, the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, etc.

For climate risk management, the Group successfully completed the
climate risk stress test, developed quantitative indicators of climate risk, and
integrated them into climate risk appetites and credit strategies, continually
monitored and managed the credit portfolios of industries with high
emissions and pollution levels.

In terms of green operations, the Tsim Sha Tsui ESG flagship branch was
inaugurated in March 2024, and the operational model was extended to the
Tuen Mun and North Point branches. Additionally, other green initiatives
include gradually transitioning old-fuel vehicles to electric vehicles,
employing energy-efficient devices in office spaces, expanding the use
of electronic forms across all branches, etc., demonstrating the Group's
dedication to daily carbon reduction efforts.

Regarding corporate social responsibility, the Group organised a number
of activities, such as “Building Tomorrow Together’, “Draw Hong Kong’,

“Community Care Plan”, “Bank Office and Branch Tour”, etc. Such social
contributions have garnered recognition from all sectors.
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The Asset

"Best Sustainability-Linked Loan (Aluminum)

"Best Sustainability-Linked Loan (Battery Manufacturing)”
“Best Sustainability-Linked Loan (Healthcare)”
(
(

"

"Best Sustainability-Linked Loan (Asset Management)”
"Best Sustainability-Linked Loan (Private Equity)”
"Best Sustainable Loan”

"Best Syndicated Loan - Singapore”

"Top Investment House in Asian G3 Bonds”

"Top Investment Houses in Asian Local Currency Bonds”
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The Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

“Mentor Pioneer Award for ESG Connect”

"Outstanding Award for Green and Sustainable Bond Lead Manager (Banking Industry)”

"Outstanding Award for Green and Sustainable Loan Facilitator (Construction and Engineering Industry)”

Report of the Chief Executive Officer
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[REEFRHE] Asian Banking & Finance
FinanceAsia “Innovative Deal of the Year — HK"

FinanceAsia Achievement Awards 2024
"Best Bond Deal Award”
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P'J" # === Chinese Financial Association of Hong Kong

. = ;’ 2024 Outstanding Cross-border Financial Services Award
— First Prize”
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"Outstanding Award for Green and Sustainable Loan Facilitator (Rare Metal Industry)”

"Outstanding Award for Green and Sustainable Loan Structuring Advisor (Asset Management and Custody Industry)

"

"Outstanding Award for Green and Sustainable Loan Structuring Advisor (Battery Materials Manufacturing Industry)”

(
“Outstanding Award for Green and Sustainable Loan Structuring Advisor (Steel Industry)
(

"Outstanding Award for Green and Sustainable Loan Structuring Advisor (Trading Companies and Distributors Industry)”
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Ming Pao

Awards for Excellence in Finance 2024 "Financial
Services — Award for excellence in Cross-border
Wealth Management Solutions”
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Environment and
Conservation Fund
Carbon Neutrality Campaign

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

JobsDB

"Team Engagement Trophy”
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65

[2023/24 AN ERKE]
“2023/24 Grand Award of PEOPLE"
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HKO1 The Asian Banker

"01 FinTech Excellence Awards
2024 - Mobile banking service”

"Financial Technology Innovation Awards
2024 - Best Big Data and Analytics
Infrastructure Implementation”
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[BmEREEERTE]
The Community Chest
"Corporate and Employee
Contribution Programme”
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

.
caringcompany

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
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Hong Kong Committee for
UNICEF

“Breastfeeding Friendly Workplace
Certificate of Appreciation”
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Equal Opportunities
Commission

"Universal Design Award
Scheme 2024/25 - Gold
Award”

Hong Kong Labour Department

"Good Employer Charter” 2024

“Supportive Family-friendly Good Employer”
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The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service

“20 Years Plus Caring Company”
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Outlook

In 2025, international trade performance will likely be influenced by the
new U.S. administration’s tariff policy. Mainland China's monetary policy is
expected to remain loose in view of the country’s stable consumer prices,
with room for interest rate and reserve requirement ratio cuts to support the
property market and economic growth. In Hong Kong, the Federal Reserve's
rate cuts may, in theory, help boost the financial market’s activity level.
However, positive impacts on economic activities, banking sector asset
quality, and the property market will take time to materialise. Meanwhile,
private consumption is expected to improve in light of Hong Kong's healthy
labour market and rising income levels.

Under the guidance of CITIC Group and CNCB, the Group will adhere to
the principles of “stability” and “innovation” in pursuit of steady progress
and innovative breakthroughs, while fully complying with regulatory
requirements. Anchoring its strategic position as CNCB's major platform for
offshore business and channel for cross-border collaboration, the Group will
focus on integration, collaboration, quality, and efficiency. The Group will
spare no effort in expediting capability-building and achieving high-quality
development to further unleash its potential.

Firstly, closer integration. The Group will seek to deepen integration into
the bigger ecosystem of CITIC Group and CNCB from a higher and broader
perspective. Comprehensive integration across philosophy, culture, strategy,
human resources, and business will be implemented in alignment with
CITIC Group's Hong Kong and Macao development strategy and CNCB's
international development strategy. The Group will broaden its integrated
cross-border financial service capabilities and increase its value contribution
to CNCB. Simultaneously, the Group will strive to integrate into Hong Kong's
overall development, supporting major government initiatives such as the
Northern Metropolis Development.

Secondly, deeper collaboration. The Group will discharge its duties as
Chairman of the “"CITIC Group Collaboration Committee - Hong Kong
and Macao Regional Branch’, aligning with CITIC Group's Hong Kong and
Macao business development strategy, to strengthen markets, resources
and information connection and exchange, with the aim of implementing
and completing major initiatives. The Group upholds the belief of steadfast
development through collaboration, emphasising the importance of
collaboration and efficiency, and leveraging the Group’s geographical
advantage, resources, and unique capabilities to drive cross-border business
development.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Thirdly, greater quality enhancement. Emphasis will be on the continued
enhancement of asset and liability structures, improving asset quality,
and resolving non-performing assets through strengthened credit risk,
compliance and internal control management. The Group remains
customer-centric, focusing on building a strong customer base, creating
customer value, and managing loan growth-price balance.

Fourthly, further efficiency enhancement. The Group will focus on
increasing revenue and reducing costs to improve the effectiveness of its
cost reduction measures and drive efficiency and productivity. This includes
optimising funding, risk, operational, tax, and capital costs to support profit
growth.

The year 2025 marks the final year of the National “14th Five-Year Plan"and
a critical juncture for the Group as it transitions to a new three-year Strategic
Plan. The Group prioritises Fintech and light-capital transformation, with a
strong emphasis on cost reduction and efficiency improvement, striving
for both growth and progress. Concurrently, efforts will be intensified to
deepen collaboration with the parent bank and enhance integration into
the CITIC ecosystem, with increased contribution to CNCB's “Five Leading”
bank strategic goal, while remaining committed to integrated operations
and pursuing high-quality development. Meanwhile, the Group continues
to support Hong Kong in reinforcing its status as an international financial
hub with long-term prosperity and stability.

SHEN Qiang
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

24 March 2025
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Sustainable Development and
Corporate Social Responsibility

China CITIC Bank International Limited ("CNCBI” or “the Bank”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) place great emphasis on the positive
impact of environmental, social, and governance (“ESG") activities on the
development of banks and society. Under the guidance of the Board of
Directors and the parent bank, China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
("CNCB"), and with the promotion by the ESG Steering Committee, the
Group has deeply integrated the ESG principles into business development
and operations. ESG work goals and review mechanisms have been
established, and the implementation of sustainable development strategies
has been continuously promoted to create well-being and long-term value
for customers, employees, shareholders, partners and the community.

In response to the “Net Zero Transition Plan” of the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority and the ESG work requirements of CNCB, the Group has
incorporated ESG into the overall strategic planning across the bank,
comprehensively promoting sustainable development from the top, and
achieving notable progress in efforts.

Sustainable Business Development

Green and sustainable finance related loans have achieved rapid growth.
As of the end of 2024, the loans reached HK$15.09 billion, an increase of
66.9% from the end of 2023, spanning 12 industries, including new energy
materials, public infrastructure construction, and internet communications.
In terms of green and sustainable development bond underwriting, the
Group's total bond underwriting in the public market in 2024 reached
US$19.61 billion, a year-on-year increase of 152.1%. For personal and
business banking business, the Group introduced the “Green Mortgage'
and continued to offer a diverse range of ESG funds and bonds, enhancing
customers’ sustainable financial investment options. Furthermore, the
Group optimised the functions of the mobile banking platform, inMotion,
to enable paperless account opening, and promoted the use of electronic
forms across all branches.

"

The Group's advancements in green finance have been acknowledged by
the market. It garnered multiple awards related to sustainable development
loans at the 2024 Triple A Awards for Sustainable Finance” by “The Asset”
magazine. Additionally, it received the “Innovative Deal of the Year — Hong
Kong” award at the “Asian Banking & Finance Corporate and Investment
Banking Awards 2024". The Group also won four “Outstanding Award for
Green and Sustainable Loan Structuring Advisor’, two “Outstanding Award
for Green and Sustainable Loan Facilitator” awards, one “Outstanding Award
for Green and Sustainable Bond Lead Manager’, and the organisational
award “Mentor Pioneer Award for ESG Connect” at the “Hong Kong Green
and Sustainable Finance Awards 2024" organised by the Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency, showcasing the Group's professional capabilities and
commitment to green and sustainable finance.
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Sustainable Development and Corporate Social Responsibility

Sustainable Business Operations

The Group continually enhances its capabilities in managing climate risk and
integrates climate risks into a comprehensive risk management framework
to address the potential impacts of climate change on business operations
and the economy. An effective climate risk governance framework has been
established through the Credit and Risk Management Committee, which is
delegated by the Board of Directors, to manage matters related to climate-
related risk. This includes assessing climate-related risks and opportunities,
formulating and reviewing internal guidelines, developing the Green
Taxonomy, conducting climate risk stress testing, and publishing the Task
Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosure.

The Group has persistently implemented green operations and carbon
reduction measures. In March 2024, the first ESG branch was inaugurated
in Tsim Sha Tsui. This pioneering branch in Hong Kong utilises solar panels
as external wall materials and adopts a green paperless operation model,
embodying the concept of sustainable operation. The success of these
initiatives has led to their adoption at the Tuen Mun and North Point
branches. Moreover, in 2024, the Group transitioned four old fuel vehicles
to electric vehicles and implemented additional measures such as the
installation of motion-sensing lighting control and LED lighting in offices,
resulting in an 8.2% reduction in total Scope 1 and 2 operational carbon
emissions.

In acknowledgement of its exceptional performance and substantial
contribution to fostering an accessible built environment, the Equal
Opportunities Commission honoured the Group with the “Universal Design
Award Scheme 2024/25 - Gold Award". Moreover, the Group distinguished
itself as the only financial sector organisation to receive the “Team
Engagement Trophy”in the “Carbon Neutrality Campaign” organised by the
Environment and Conservation Fund. Additionally, CLP Power awarded the
Group a 70-tonne “Carbon Credit Certificate” for its outstanding efforts in
reducing carbon emissions in daily operations.

Carbow (Dredic (Cerrificar

Charo CTTHC Tusk Insmenons Limagd

b oy ressbomand (T b By oF (T
Pur b e i P

CLP@E‘J' CLPCCI0I21RI M ﬁ
REE N T0NM [REREE]
70-tonne “Carbon Credit Certificate” was awarded by CLP Power



AREERLRCEHEEE

TrELESEME

rEERBRGBRTCELEET  BEEDE
FEALT  RBEAFERE °2024F - dlE
TLJOORETR2HEBBIOEAREZEY » 2
BABEIT13,800A

ZrbREED

AEBHEZEFFMNERETZHERADA
B BRBEIMAEAX]FIXERKSRE
S00fEHMEMRARE - REHEEMETS[EH
ERIXKEERBENERRTENZELRRE
BHERE - I AEBEIBEZER ST
RHTERYE  XBRAKTREEREE K
FMRE LAY HEZ5 [ HRXEE ]
RERE BEAREREEZXLYE - K
SENTSBEIEL2E[E+HELEE
HEEABEREIEIRE=HHXaH
[Teenl5t 8] ERHEEHER °

RERBEIE  AEERRZHOKITH
XEFARE[HFERIRA2024] 2REERE
EREEIFESE  NERTHHHLRIRR
R RITEERERNOERE —H D -

TR RN ENHE

AEBEBBENZ SR HEAENNHAT
1Sy - BIE135EM AMHEERE - BE1,7000L
2MEDZEPHRASERRTETEE - A&
B 2REE 58 - AT 2R
[SRITMRAERHTTLEA] BREEFTBRH
BRERANHIEHMEBEI RS BEES
BHEANIBYEAERE T A -
BMAOABENEEZIFRETARBALINS
B B B K T2 B R0 2 o

Sustainable Development and Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group actively fulfils corporate social responsibility, demonstrating
care and supporting those in need and showcasing the warmth of CITIC. In
2024, more than 1,100 employees were organised to participate in over 70
charitable activities, benefitting nearly 13,800 individuals.

Diversified public welfare activities

The Group conducted numerous public charitable activities in collaboration
with various non-profit organisations. This included supporting 500
low-income families in Sham Shui Po District through the “Tomorrow
Together” initiative, as well as assisting grassroots students and children
with special needs in exploring their artistic potential through the large-
scale community art programme “Draw Hong Kong". Additionally, the
Group's volunteer team engaged in various social services, supporting the
Nanchang East Sub-district Care Teams in Sham Shui Po District to carry
out volunteer activities, and organising a number of “Community Care
Programmes” to deliver supplies to the homeless, low-income families and
the elderly. The Group also encouraged employees to register for the “Hong
Kong Volunteer Programme of the 15th National Games”and the third “Strive
and Rise Programme” with the aim of contributing to society.

For environmental conservation, the Group organised a number of recycling
activities, supported the Community Chest's “Green Low Carbon Day 2024,
participated in the group meal preparation activities with Food Angel,
and took concrete actions to support the community's source reduction
of waste and contribute to building a more environmentally friendly

community.
Financial fraud prevention and financial education

The Group conducted several financial fraud prevention and financial
knowledge workshops, including 13 financial knowledge seminars,
to disseminate fraud prevention knowledge and instil sound financial
habits in over 1,700 participants. Furthermore, the Group supported the
“Project WeCan" programme, organised “Bank Office and Branch Tours"
for two secondary schools, co-organised the “Financial Literacy Exchange
Programme” with Harrow International School Hong Kong, and co-
organised the “Financial Management Master Simulation Game"” with
St. James’ Settlement, aiming to inspire and enhance the financial fraud
prevention and financial knowledge of individuals of all ages and various
backgrounds.
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Large-scale community art programme “Draw Hong Kong" was
held to assist grassroots students and children with special

needs in exploring their artistic potential
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Sustainable Development and Corporate Social Responsibility

The acknowledgement of social contributions

In 2024, the Group was recognised by the Labour Department as one of the
2024 "Good Employer Charter” signatories and was awarded the “Supportive
Family-friendly Good Employer”logo. Furthermore, it received the “20 Years
Plus Caring Company” logo from the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
for the second consecutive year, the “Breastfeeding Friendly Workplace
Certificate of Appreciation” from the Hong Kong Committee for UNICEF for
the fourth consecutive year, and the “Corporate and Employee Contribution
Programme” certificate from the Community Chest for the third consecutive
year. Additionally, six employees of the Group were honoured by the Hong
Kong Chinese Enterprises Association at the “2023 Volunteer Recognition
Ceremony’, and one employee received the “Outstanding Young Volunteer
Award” at the “8th Hong Kong Volunteer Alliance Outstanding Volunteer
Awards’, thereby acknowledging their contributions to society.

ERKSE E RME SRS S [ 1R XE 3]
Organised a number of “Community Care Programmes” with
Nanchang East Sub-district Care Teams in Sham Shui Po District

In 2025, in response to the constantly evolving external environment,
the Group will continue to exert every effort to implement the ESG
philosophy. By adhering to regulatory and CNCB requirements and
benchmarking against industry best practices, the Group aims to promote
the development of sustainable financial business. This includes optimising
climate risk management, implementing the operational and financial net
zero roadmaps, fulfilling corporate social responsibility, and contributing
CITIC's strength to the sustainable development of society, while achieving
the Group's own sustainable and steady development.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. SHEN Qiang

(Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, Member of the Credit & Risk
Management Committee)

Appointed Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on
27 December 2024. Mr. Shen is also Director of The Hong Kong Chinese
Enterprises Association. Mr. Shen has worked in the banking industry for
many years, possessing expertise in operations and management from
various offices both locally and abroad across functions within China
CITIC Bank Corporation Limited ("CNCB") with exposure to business areas
encompassing forex capital, financial management, corporate banking,
investment banking and risk management. Prior to joining the Bank,
Mr. Shen had held a number of roles at CNCB including Deputy General
Manager of Business Department of the Head Office, as well as General
Manager of Investment Banking, General Manager of General Office,
President of Chengdu Branch and General Manager of Credit Approval of
CNCB. Mr. Shen graduated from Renmin University of China with a Bachelor
of Economics Degree in 1995 and subsequently a Master of Management
Degree in 2006. He earned a Doctor of Management Degree from the
School of Economics and Management of University of Chinese Academy of
Sciences in 2018.

Mr. BAl Lijun

(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Head of Wholesale
Banking Group and Treasury & Markets Group)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 20 August 2018. Mr. Bai is also Deputy
Chief Executive Officer, and Head of Wholesale Banking Group and Treasury
& Markets Group of the Bank. Mr. Bai's scope of responsibilities encompasses
the overall management of the Bank's Treasury & Markets Group with a view
to strengthen funding and liquidity management, in addition to fortifying
wholesale banking products and business controls while driving CNCB and
CITIC Group-related collaboration for enhanced business development for
the Bank. He is also Director of various subsidiaries of the Bank, including
Carford International Limited, CITIC Bank International (China) Limited,
CNCBI Trustee Limited and The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited. Mr. Bai
joined CNCB's Financial Markets Department from Bank of Beijing in 2006.
In 2009, he took up an additional role at the Chairman Office of CITIC Group,
assisting the Group's Chairman with corporate governance, group projects
and business affairs. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Bai was CNCB's Deputy
General Manager of the Office of the Board of Directors and Supervisors.
Mr. Bai holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree from the School of Economics
at Nankai University in Tianjin, and a Master of Finance Degree from the
School of Finance at Renmin University of China in Beijing.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. HU Gang

(Non-executive Director, Member of the Audit Committee and the Credit &
Risk Management Committee)

Appointed Non-executive Director of the Bank on 4 March 2021. Mr. Hu is
currently the Party Committee Member, Executive Director, Vice President
and Chief Risk Officer of CNCB. Mr. Hu joined CNCB in 2000 and used to be
Deputy Head of the preparatory team for the establishment of the Changsha
Branch, Party Committee Member and Vice President of Changsha Branch;
Party Committee Member, Vice President, Secretary of Party Committee
and President of the Chongqing Branch; Secretary of Party Committee and
President of the Shanghai Branch; and Head of Risk Management of Head
Office and Head of the Wholesale Business. Prior to that, he successively
worked for the Political Department of Hunan Provincial Procuratorate,
and served as Deputy Section Chief at the Personnel Department of Hunan
Provincial Party Committee Office, Assistant General Manager and General
Manager of Beihaixiang Properties Development Company, Vice Chairman
of the company’s affiliated Hongdu Enterprise Company (both affiliated
to Hunan Zhongli Industrial Group Co., Ltd.) and Chairman of Changsha
Xiangcai Urban Credit Cooperative in Hunan Province. Mr. Hu graduated
from Hunan University with a Doctoral Degree in Economics. He is a
“Senior Economist” with over 20 years of experience in the Chinese banking
industry.

Ms. LI Shuk Yin Edwina

(Independent Non-executive Director, Member of the Audit Committee)
Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on
28 September 2018. Ms. Li is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She was formerly with KPMG from 1994 with her last
role as the partner in charge of KPMG China's Financial Services Assurance
team until her retirement in March 2018. Ms. Li has significant experience
in accounting, capital market, market entrance, regulatory compliance
related internal control and risk management in Hong Kong and mainland
China. Prior to joining KPMG, Ms. Li qualified as a Chartered Accountant
with a multinational accountancy firm and as Controller with a real estate
company and a financial services group in London. Ms. Li holds a Bachelor’s
degree with Honours in Accountancy from University of Exeter, England, a
Postgraduate Diploma in Enterprise Risk Management from HKU SPACE, a
Master of Science Degree in Risk Management from Glasgow Caledonian
University, Scotland and a Master of Social Sciences Degree in the field
of Sustainability Leadership and Governance from the University of
Hong Kong. She is also an Independent Non-executive Director of China
Everbright Environment Group Limited and CNOOC Limited, as well as a
Director of Elite Beam Limited.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. TANG Shisheng

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, Member of the Credit & Risk
Management Committee)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on
13 November 2013 and elected Chairman of Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee on 17 June 2022. Mr. Tang is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of Wison Engineering Services Co. Ltd.
He has extensive experience in finance and securities industries. Mr. Tang
graduated from Hunan College of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Finance. He received his Master's Degree in Economics and
Doctor’s Degree in Economics respectively from the Graduate School of The
People's Bank of China and the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences. Mr. Tang was granted the title of “Senior Economist” by The
People’s Construction Bank of China in 1993.

Ms. TSANG King Suen Katherine

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Credit & Risk
Management Committee, Member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
December 2016.
Ms. Tsang is a well-recognised member of the Asian financial and business

Credit & Risk Management Committee of the Bank on 1

community. Fortune Magazine (China) named her as No.6 China's Most
Influential Businesswomen in 2012 and she was on the top 25 list from
2010 to 2013. Ms. Tsang is the Founder of Max Giant Group, an asset
management business that has established a host of funds investing in both
public markets and private equities globally. She is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of Fosun International Limited and Budweiser
Brewing Company APAC Limited, Non-executive Director of Fidelity
Emerging Markets Limited, Director of Pride Vision Group Limited and
Try Door Limited, Member of the Advisory Council for China of the City of
London, and Honorary Board Member of Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
Ms. Tsang was formerly with Standard Chartered Bank for over 20 years with
her last role as Chairperson of Greater China before she retired in August
2014. She attained her Bachelor of Commerce Degree from University of
Alberta, Canada.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. WANG Guoliang

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Member of the Credit & Risk Management Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 12 August
2016 and elected Chairman of Audit Committee on 2 November
2016. Mr. Wang is a Professor-Level Senior Accountant and is currently
Independent Director of COSCO Shipping Lines Co., Limited. Mr. Wang
worked as Chief Accountant of China National Petroleum Corporation and
was Chairman of Bank of Kunlun. He has extensive experience in finance
and accounting. Mr. Wang graduated from Harbin University of Commerce
with a Bachelor's Degree in Economics. He received his Master's Degree in
International Economics from Hebei University.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Ms. Christine YAU

(Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief Compliance and Operations Officer)
Joined the Bank in January 2019 as Chief Controls & Compliance Officer.
Ms. Yau is currently the Bank's Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Compliance and Operations Officer and serving as Group Chief Compliance
Officer of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited, responsible for
managing the Bank's general compliance, legal, financial crime compliance
and operations management. Ms. Yau has over 20 years of experience in
internal control, audit, risk management and governance in the financial
services industry across Asia. She has held various senior positions in banks
and professional firms including Bank of America Merrill Lynch, National
Australia Bank, Hang Seng Bank, KPMG and Ernst & Young. Prior to joining
the Bank, Ms. Yau was Managing Director & Head of Operational Risk, Bank
of America Merrill Lynch Asia Pacific. Ms. Yau holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and she is a
Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Ms. LI Haixia

(Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Chief Human Resources Officer)

Joined the Bank in September 2021 as Deputy Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Human Resources Officer. Ms. Li also serves as Group Chief Human
Resources Officer of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. She
is also a Director and Member of the Executive Committee of The Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers. Ms. Li has more than 20 years of experience
in the banking industry specialising in human resources management.
Before joining the Bank, she was Chief Business Manager of Globalization
Office, Bank of China Limited at which she had held various other senior
management positions including Deputy General Manager of Human
Resources Department and Vice President of Beijing Branch, in addition
to General Manager of Human Resources Department at Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited. Ms. Li holds a Bachelor's Degree in Engineering and a
Master's Degree in Economics from Tsinghua University. She subsequently
obtained a PhD in Financial Engineering from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Ms. SUI Yang

(Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer)

Joined the Bank in February 2022 as Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Sui is
currently the Bank's Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer. She also serves as Group Chief Financial Officer of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited. Ms. Sui has more than 20 years of experience
in accounting and financial management. Prior to joining the Bank, Ms.
Sui was the Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, overseeing its Financial Management
Department, General Accounting and Accounting Policy Department,
Treasury, as well as the Economics & Strategic Planning Department. Before
that, she had held various senior management positions at Bank of China
Limited including Deputy General Manager of Financial Management
Department and Deputy General Manager of Management Information
System Centre. Ms. Sui obtained a Bachelor's Degree and a Master's Degree
in Economics from the Central University of Finance & Economics (formerly
the Central Institute of Finance and Banking), and a PhD Degree in Finance
from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics. Ms. Sui is a
Member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Wendy YUEN

(Head of Personal & Business Banking Group)

Joined the Bank in August 2022 and is currently Head of Personal &
Business Banking Group of the Bank. Ms. Yuen has more than 20 years'
experience in the banking industry. Over the years, she has served a number
of senior roles as in retail channel management, commercial banking
development, overseas branch management and operations, securities
and investment products management as well as market research and
product development. Prior to joining the Bank, Ms. Yuen was Head of Retail
Distribution, Hang Seng Bank Limited. Ms. Yuen holds a Bachelor of Science
Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master's Degree of
Professional Studies in Agricultural Economics from Cornell University in the
US and an Kellogg-HKUST EMBA from the Kellogg School of Management
awarded jointly by Northwestern University in the US and The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. She is a Chartered Financial Analyst,
Fellow of The Institute of Public Accountants, Certified Banker and an
Associate Fintech Professional (CPFinT(A)) of The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Clement WOO

(Chief Risk Officer)

Joined the Bank in December 2022 as Chief Risk Officer and is responsible for
overall management of the Bank’s risk function. Mr. Woo has more than 20
years of work experience in the banking industry, with abundant experience
in risk management areas. Prior to joining the Bank, he was Chief Risk Officer
of Chong Hing Bank Limited, and had served a number of senior roles in
reputable financial institutions, including ICBC (Asia) Limited, Standard Bank
Asia Limited, ABN AMRO Bank N.V. Hong Kong Branch, UFJ Bank Limited
Hong Kong Branch and Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Woo holds
a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a Bachelor's Degree in Applied Accounting from Oxford
Brookes University in the UK respectively. He is a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Chartered Financial
Analyst.

Mr. Frazer LAM

(Chief Information Officer)

Joined the Bank in April 2022 as Chief Information Officer and is responsible
for managing the Bank's information technology functions. Mr. Lam is also
the Chairman of the Bank's technology subsidiary CNCBI Digital Intelligence
(Shenzhen) Information Technology Limited. He has more than 20 years
of experience in the banking and consulting industries, with expertise
particularly in application development and FinTech technology. Prior
to joining the Bank, Mr. Lam was the General Manager of Technology &
Digital Services Department at New World Development Company Limited.
Before that, he had held various senior positions such as Deputy General
Manager, Information Technology Department of Bank of China (Hong
Kong) Limited. Mr. Lam is currently the Advisor of Hong Kong Computer
Society’s Fintech Specialist Group, taking an active role in promoting the
use of FinTech in Hong Kong and providing advice to the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and other stakeholders on
FinTech development in Hong Kong. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Information Technology from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Eddy YUEN

(Chief Auditor)

Joined the Bank in June 2024 and is currently Chief Auditor of the Bank
and Group Chief Auditor of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited.
Mr. Yuen has over 25 years of experience in the financial services industry
specialising in internal and external audit. Before joining the Bank, he was
Head of Internal Audit for China Everbright Bank Company Limited, Hong
Kong Branch. Prior to that, he had worked for a number of reputable banks
including Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited, Intesa Sanpaolo
SPA Hong Kong Branch and MUFG Bank, Ltd, Hong Kong Branch. Mr. Yuen
holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy from the City University of
Hong Kong. He is a Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, Certified Information Systems Auditor and Certified Anti-
money Laundering Specialist.
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Executive Directors
Mr. SHEN Qiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. BAI Lijun (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. HU Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. LI Shuk Yin Edwina

Mr. TANG Shisheng

Ms. TSANG King Suen Katherine

Mr. WANG Guoliang

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Mr. WANG Guoliang (Chairman)
Mr. HU Gang

Ms. LI Shuk Yin Edwina

Credit & Risk Management Committee
Ms. TSANG King Suen Katherine (Chairman)
Mr. HU Gang

Mr. SHEN Qiang

Mr. TANG Shisheng

Mr. WANG Guoliang

Nomination Committee

Mr. TANG Shisheng (Chairman)
Ms. TSANG King Suen Katherine
Mr. WANG Guoliang

Remuneration Committee
Mr. TANG Shisheng (Chairman)
Ms. TSANG King Suen Katherine
Mr. WANG Guoliang

Registered Office

61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3603 6633

Fax: (852) 3603 4000
www.cncbinternational.com
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

China CITIC Bank International Limited (the “Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at
61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. Outside of Hong Kong, the Bank
has branches operating in Macau, Singapore, New York and Los Angeles.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the
provision of general banking and related financial services, primarily in Hong
Kong. Particulars of the Bank's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024
are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business (including an analysis using financial
key performance indicators), a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of 2024, an indication of likely
future development in the Group's business, a discussion on the Group's
environmental policies and performance as well as its compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on it, and an
account of the Group's key relationships with its employees, customers,
suppliers and others that have a significant impact on it can be found in
“Financial Performance’, “Report of the Chief Executive Officer’ “Notes to the
Financial Statements” and “Corporate Governance and Other Information”
sections. The above sections form part of this report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated profit of the Bank and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2024 is set out in the consolidated income statement on page
50.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).
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Report of the Directors

SHARE CAPITAL

The Bank did not issue any shares during the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: Nil). Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 32(a) to the financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Bank did not issue debentures for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: The Bank issued USD500,000,000 Tier 2 Subordinated Notes in
December 2023 for its funding and general corporate purposes). Details
of the debentures issued by the Bank are set out in note 31 of the financial
statements.

OTHER EQUITY SECURITIES ISSUED

The Bank did not issue other Capital Securities for the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: Nil). Details of the other equity securities issued
by the Bank are set out in note 33 of the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Bank did not enter into any equity-linked agreement during the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

DIRECTORS

(a) Directors of the Bank
As at the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Bank comprises:

Executive Directors
Mr. SHEN Qiang (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on 27 December 2024)
Mr. BAI Lijun (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. HU Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. LI Shuk Yin Edwina

Mr. TANG Shisheng

Ms. TSANG King Suen Katherine

Mr. WANG Guoliang
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Report of the Directors

In accordance with Article 105 of the Bank’s Articles of Association, all
present Directors shall retire from office by rotation at the next Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report,
there are movements in the Directors of the Bank as follows:

Mr. FANG Heying retired as Non-executive Director on 27 June 2024.

Mr. Bl Minggiang resigned as Executive Director with effect from 1 November
2024.

Mrs. KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen resigned as Executive Director with effect
from 1 January 2025.

Mr. LIU Cheng resigned as Non-executive Director with effect from
25 February 2025.

All resigned Directors of the Bank have no disagreement with the Board
and nothing relating to the affairs of the Bank needed to be brought to the
attention of the members of the Bank.

(b) Directors of the Bank’s subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, Mr. BAI Lijun, who is Director of the Bank, is also director of certain
subsidiaries of the Bank.

Other directors of the Bank's subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report include Mr. CHOI Wing
Tsan Varden, Ms. GE Danping, Mr. HUA Feng, Mr. LAM Shiu Yip Frazer,
Mr. LI Chao, Ms. LI Haixia, Mr. MA Xiaohui, Mr. MOU Lei, Ms. SUI Yang,
Mr. SUO Xuquan, Mr. WANG Feige, Mr. WONG Man Kin Jack, Mr. WOO
Kwan Pok Alvin, Mr. WOO Pak Kin Clement, Ms. YAU Wai Man Christine,
Mr. YIM Wai Tak Peter, Mr. ZHONG Wenhui Edward and Mr. ZHU Ning.
Mr. BI Minggiang and Mrs. KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen had been director of the
Bank's subsidiaries and have resigned during the year and up to the date of
this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance in relation to
the Bank's business to which the Bank, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the
Bank and the Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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Report of the Directors

At no time during the year or at the end of the year was the Bank, or any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or
existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report,
a permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank
isin force.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANKING (DISCLOSURE) RULES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 have
complied with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been
audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment as auditor of the Bank upon expiration of its current term of
office at the close of the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
SHEN Qiang
Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2025
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Independent Auditor's Report

e

to the members of China CITIC Bank International Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank International Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 50 to 209, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

ECL allowances on loans and advances to customers at amortised cost

Refer to note 20(a) and (c) and 38(a)(vi) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 65 to 67.

The Key Audit Matter

Total allowances for expected credit losses (“ECL") on the Group's
loans and advances to customers at amortised cost as at 31
December 2024 amounted to HKS$2,495 million, comprising of
HK$488 million, HK$228 million and HKS$1,779 million in stages 1, 2
and 3 respectively. Refer to notes 20(a) and (c), and 38(a)(vi) to the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

ECL allowances of the Group are determined based on
management’s assessment of changes in credit quality of the loans
and advances to customers at amortised cost since their initial
recognition using a three-stage impairment model. Loan exposures
are classified as stage 1 when there is no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition (“SICR"), for which a 12-month
ECL allowance is recognised. Loan exposures that experience a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classified
as stage 2 and those that are credit-impaired are classified as stage
3. For loan exposures that are classified as stage 2 or stage 3, the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

For loans and advances to customers at amortised cost classified
as stage 1 or stage 2, a risk parameter modelling approach
applies, which considers the probability of default, loss given
default, exposure at default, and adjustments for forward-looking
information, including management's macro-economic forecasts
("MEFs") and their likelihoods. For loans and advances to customers
at amortised cost in stage 3, the ECL allowances are determined
based on future cash flows expected to be received from those
loans and advances at amortised cost.

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance on loans and
advances to customers at amortised cost included the following:

understanding and assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key internal controls on
the governance process over the ECL methodology and
the assumptions used in the ECL models. This included
assessment of significant management judgements applied
over SICR and credit ratings and determination of probability
weighting assigned to economic scenarios.

assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over key data inputs
into source systems. With the involvement of our information
technology specialists, assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of user access management
and interfaces between the source systems and financial
reporting system in relation to the ECL calculation.

with the assistance of our financial risk management
specialists, assessing the model compliance with HKFRS9, the
appropriateness of the key assumptions in the ECL models,
including the criteria used by management in determining
loss stages, the probability of default, loss given default,
adjustments for forward-looking information.

Assessing the accuracy of the loan information in the ECL
model by comparing individual loan information, on a
sample basis, with the underlying agreements and other
related documentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

ECL allowances on loans and advances to customers at amortised cost

Refer to note 20(a) and (c) and 38(a)(vi) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 65 to 67.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

We identified the measurement of ECL allowances on loans and -
advances to customers at amortised cost as a key audit matter
because of the inherent uncertainty and management judgment
involved and because of its significance to the financial results and
capital of the Group.

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

assessing, on a sample basis, the reasonableness of the
SICR assessment as well as the credit ratings which in turn
drives the probability of default used in the ECL calculation.
Our assessment considered the financial and non-financial
information of the borrowers, along with any available
external information, including adjusting events occurred
after the year end of 31 December 2024, if any.

assessing, on a sample basis, the ECL calculation for stage 3
exposures, including the reasonableness of management’s
estimates of the timing and amount of recoverable cash flows
under a range of possible scenarios and their weightings
based on financial information of borrowers, collateral
valuations and information on other available sources of
recovery.

evaluating whether the presentation and disclosures on ECL
allowances on loans and advances to customers measured
at amortised cost meet the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Wong Po Shan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2025

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
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HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2024

(AB¥E RELL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2024 2023
B 5E BT T BT T
Note HK$'000 HKS'000
MESA Interest income 4 20,826,744 20,471,084
FEXH Interest expense (13,161,489) (12,866,500)
FEREWA Net interest income 7,665,255 7,604,584
FEBNMBSWA Fee and commission income 1,849,082 1,422,928
FEERASIH Fee and commission expense (240,599) (168,410)
FFEEBRASKA Net fee and commission income 6 1,608,483 1,254,518
FERX WA Net trading income 7 1,004,542 1,035,805
EHEI DA ASEE AEZEA  Net gain on financial instruments mandatorily
Bl TEFW classified at fair value through profit or loss 107,891 4,076
HERRARBEGFAEMEEUES  Net gain on disposal of financial investments
B @ BN B I at fair value through other comprehensive income 159,680 73,638
HAn g & A Other operating income 8 35,560 27,328
KR A Operating income 10,581,411 9,999,949
KETH Operating expenses 9 (4,059,893) (4,151,415)
BRI B 2 AT H &R T Operating profit before impairment 6,521,518 5,848,534
SR TEABEEEELX Expected credit losses on financial instruments 11 (3,266,635) (2,854,333)
H&EERAE Impairment losses on other assets (17,500) -
PERIERI=E S Impairment losses (3,284,135) (2,854,333)
KERF Operating profit 3,237,383 2,994,201
HEYHE  RERELEE Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property and
Fh S (BK) equipment and intangible assets 7,542 (6,735)
BEMESH (1BKR) K Revaluation (loss)/gain on investment properties 22 (12,762) 1,843
BADR R Profit before taxation 3,232,163 2,989,309
PS5 Income tax 12 (490,440) (402,412)
N F R F Profit for the year 2,741,723 2,586,897

5685|5209 BB AT FBlEK —

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B

vl

o

The notes on pages 56 to 209 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.




ReEmENER Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

HE2024F12A31BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2024
(AB¥E RELL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2024 2023
B 5E BETT BT T
Note HK$'000 HKS'000
KEERF Profit for the year 2,741,723 2,586,897
AEEHMEZEKE (BX) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 13
EREHERSR  HBTEEERN Items that will be reclassified subsequently to
PEEHFEWRERNIER : consolidated income statement when specific
conditions are met
TFINFE TS ) BT T R B Exchange differences on translation of financial
&R =% statements of foreign operations (56,168) (29,614)
MAREBEFAREMEERZER Financial investments at fair value through other
TREE comprehensive income
- EBITANAAEEE — change in the fair value of debt instruments 720,399 1,038,117
— 8 il B AR IR — deferred tax related to the above (124,037) (171,675)
— HeEREEIhEE — transfer to income statement on disposal (159,680) (73,638)
— BEEEREZEWER — transfer to income statement on impairment 34,489 30,989
471,171 823,793
HETESEFIEEHRAWER  Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
WIEA : consolidated income statement
MEEMFHE Property revaluation reserve
EMMEEFTHEEREYWE - surplus on revaluation of other premises upon
E#Fimiﬁmﬁ? reclassification to investment properties 73,838 -
AR EES AEMEERRT Financial investments at fair value through other
TR E comprehensive income
—BRETIAENAAEEES — change in the fair value of equity instruments (1,779) 808
— Hi Pl A RERELERIE — deferred tax related to the above 293 (134)
(1,486) 674
AEEHMEERES Other comprehensive income for the year 487,355 794,853
AEE2HKREE Total comprehensive income for the year 3,229,078 3,381,750
F56 B EHFE 209 B MM B A KRR —FLH - The notes on pages 56 to 209 form part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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#R2024F12F831H

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

At 31 December 2024

(AB¥E RELL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2024 2023
B &E BT T BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
We MIERIT NP RIBITOET Cash and balances with banks and central banks 15 10,537,339 16,931,919
EIRITTRFER R BR Placements with and advances to banks 16 70,361,763 55,052,186
BEARESREE Financial assets held under resale agreements
—UAREBERAER — at fair value through profit or loss 17 2,982,785 3,101,202
— AR AT & — at amortised cost 17 3,174,582 4,592,502
PTHESHBIA Derivative financial instruments 19(b) 19,365,077 19,414,161
SRIRE Financial investments
— U AREEFTABRDR — at fair value through profit or loss 18(a) 2,040,808 2,449,217
—LARARBEFAEMEEWEZ - at fair value through other comprehensive income — 18(b) 139,264,603 128,792,744
— DR AT 2 — at amortised cost 18(c) 90,179 -
BFERRBH R EAIRIE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 20
— A AAEER AlEE — at fair value through profit or loss 11,960,075 5,435,290
— SRR ANGT 2 — at amortised cost 227,140,524 232,067,544
B qEE Tax recoverable 29(a) 290 9,582
FRAREE Right-of-use assets 23 820,633 979,571
L EISE L] Property and equipment 22
—REWME - Investment properties 409,073 401,335
— HmEREZAE — Other premises and equipment 608,937 571,345
mEEE Intangible assets 24 537,835 401,188
ELEFIREE Deferred tax assets 29(b) 874 187,145
EEAR Total Assets 489,295,377 470,386,931
BERER LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
=R+ Liabilities
IRIT R E b & BB AT Deposits and balances of banks and other
e financial institutions 12,141,506 11,531,352
BEPER Deposits from customers 25 371,313,584 340,730,699
NARnBEFABRNSHAR Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 26 99,849 8,583
BEHEESREEN Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
— URAREBEFAER — at fair value through profit or loss 27 2,294,942 2,835,191
— DU SRR ARG T 2 - at amortised cost 27 7,652,423 16,300,747
PTHEERIA Derivative financial instruments 19(b) 18,393,793 19,408,277
EEITERE Certificates of deposit issued 28 1,760,216 1,561,841
AEBRIERE Current tax liabilities 29(a) 283,315 209,146
RIETIAR B Deferred tax liabilities 29(b) 1,648 1,194
Hip & (& Other liabilities 30 14,170,136 15,401,974
HEaE Lease liabilities 956,170 1,075,740
BIBER Loan capital 31 3,859,664 7,806,176
BEAR Total Liabilities 432,927,246 416,870,920

E56 8 BB 209 B F B A SHMER—2D -

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

statements.

The notes on pages 56 to 209 form part of these consolidated financial
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Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position

At 31 December 2024

(AB¥E RELL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2024 2023
BiEE BT T BT T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
= Equity
&7 Share capital 32(a) 18,404,013 18,404,013
(e Reserves 28,628,722 25,776,602
REREREE Total shareholders' equity 47,032,735 44,180,615
HittfixiE LA Other equity instruments 33 9,335,396 9,335,396
ERBE Total Equity 56,368,131 53,516,011
EEkEERAE Total Equity and Liabilities 489,295,377 470,386,931

R FGRERO 20253 A4 HEEE S ET

A o

&
SHEN Qiang
FFE

Director

%56 B 555209 B MM 1B ARB 5 H

2025.

HIE
BAI Lijun
EF

Director

statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March

ki —H0m o The notes on pages 56 to 209 form part of these consolidated financial
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HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2024

(AB¥E RELL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
L4
EYEE  WEE(F REEH  iERR  iR-H BEIR
Ba  &xEE  -BER i i ] N B REEY  BEEE (N  RREE
Exchange  Property  Investment Regulatory Other equity
Share Capital ~ General differences revaluation revaluation  Statutory  general  Retained Total ~ instruments Total
pital  reserve  reseve  reseve  reserve feserve  reseve reseve profits  reserves  (note33) equity
BT BETn Bt ABfn Rt BETn MR BT Aifn BT REfR TR
HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HIS000 HKS000. HKS000. HKS000. HKS000. HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
RNUEIBIR At 1 January 2024 18,404,013 3 100000 (110462) 294533 (407,964) 69,250 INBIT 25515657 25776602 933539 53,516,011
BZ0MENERED . Changes in equity for 2024
TEE AT Proftfor the year - - - - - - - S MB 2MB - B
KEEEWRM(B%)/  Ohercomprehensive (oss)income
e forthe year - - - (56,168) 73,838 469,685 - - - 487,355 - 487355
KEERENESE Total comprehensiveincome forthe year - - - 6168 T3EB 469685 - - M3 329078 - 3078
EEREAT Transferfiom retained profi - - - - - - 518 (50 (4433 - - -
SRBI-EREE  Distibution payment for Adcitonal Tier |
28 Capital Securities (AT1 Capital Securities') - - - - - - - - (376958 (376,958) - [316958)
H0uENAN A At 31 December 2024 18,404,013 3m 100000 (166630 368371 61,721 74433 31,067 27875989 28,628,722 933539 56,368,131
MmEIAE AtT January 203 18404013 37 100,000 (80848) 204533 (119479) 65,748 U397 BHI6TI3 BUATAIE 1324074 69415
BENBERERED:  Changesin equityfor 2023
KEREH Proficforthe year - - - - - - - - LS8 2586897 - 2s8
KEEEW2A(B%)/  Ohercomprehensive oss)income
Y& forthe year - - - (29614) - 824467 - - - 194853 - 194853
KEERANEEE Toul comprehensiveincome forthe year - - T - R - ST 331750 X NE
EEREAT Transfer from retained profis - - - - - B B0 6K (8 - - -
iﬁ%ﬁﬁ\ BERESEZE Distbution peyment for ATI Capltal Secures - - - - - - - ST 6567) - %6)
BES—ELRES  Redemption of ATI Capit Securtes - - - - - - - - BAY B4 BYTRE (390739
Hﬁﬁ it Other adjustments - - - - - 7106 - - - 7106 - 7106
MO3ENAYA {31 December 203 18404013 3 100,000 (110462) 194533 (407964) 69250 N7 BT BII660  93353% 53516011
F56HEF 209 BRI B AR BHRE—HBH The notes on pages 56 to 209 form part of these consolidated financial

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
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HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2024

(AB¥E RELL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2024 2023
k=3 BETT BT
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
RE(AR) BEEEN Net cash flow generated from/(used in) operating
RERFHE activities 34(a) 12,600,454 (5,565,786)
®EB (AR REEBWRESR Cash flow generated from/(used in) investing activities
EE R E A IRE Dividends received from equity securities 8 2,804 2,934
BAMERSBRELEE Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets (455,772) (450,895)
HEMERRERELEE Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment and
FT{S51IR intangible assets 160 58
ARBREXEBNESREE Net cash flow used in investing activities (452,808) (447,903)
RE (AR MEEENRER Cash flow generated from/(used in) financing activities
BITEBEARAISHRIE Proceeds from loan capital issuance 34(c) - 3,894,403
S AFERERE AR Payment for redemption of loan capital 34(c) (3,912,179) -
X ATHE @%ﬁéﬂ\*z&ﬁzﬁ ~FIH Payment for redemption of AT1 Capital Securities - (3,907,328)
XNBEI—RERELRR Distribution paid on AT1 Capital Securities 33 (376,958) (656,257)
TRHEBERIE Payment of lease liabilities 34(c) (235,636) (238,000)
TRHEBERF B Interest paid on loan capital (324,396) (181,498)
ARRMEERNEESRTFE Net cash flow used in financing activities (4,849,169) (1,088,680)
BeRBESEEM D) FHE  Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,298,477 (7,102,369)
MA1TENESRERSEEEE Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 60,327,388 67,858,338
ReRBESSEEEN Exchange differences in respect of cash and
ER#H cash equivalents (659,599) (429,081)
M12A31BWRERREEMEEE  Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 34(b) 66,966,266 60,327,388
F56 B EIF 200 BB AT B ImE—3 5 © The notes on pages 56 to 209 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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B 75 R R B 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

(BR¥FRIFIBASN - BB R L) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 REER 1  Basis of preparation
REIRTT (BRR) BRAE ([ARTT])) REK The principal activities of China CITIC Bank International Limited (“the
BARI(ATHBEIAER]) NEEEKE Bank’) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group"), which
RIRITRAEE SRR - BLEBHAE materially affect the results or comprise the assets and liabilities of the
EMEENEERBEEEEATE - Group, are the provision of banking and related financial services.
REIRTT (BIR) AR AR AR EBTMK China CITIC Bank International Limited is a licensed bank incorporated
SHRFREERTT - jﬂ&(%%%?ﬁ%)ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ : and domiciled in Hong Kong, and has its registered office at 61-65 Des
HaMmEEi N & B mEE+61-655% Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

(@) EHREH (@) Statement of compliance
TG EVBERRERETESTMASHE These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
- FTBERRNCEBMEREREL) (B prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
FrA #E AR E R BB EHREER] - (BB Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which includes all applicable
GEERD ERE)  BE-REANER individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
JRARRMAK - NEBRANEEGEHEER Accounting Standards (“HKASs"), Interpretations issued by the
PP EE2 © Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary
of the material accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in

Note 2.
ARG AGEMBIREEN BBV KR The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are first
HER - WAIRAFEREE RAITHE T effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
HIE RS EIR TR - EEAEBE A E period of the Group and the Bank. Note 1(c) provides information
B 6 B A YR B A S LT AT e R P S 308 on any changes in accounting policies resulting from the initial
RIS RN SFTBERER - EE"K application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant
SRR - BEAEREIIRHET1© to the Group for the current accounting periods reflected in these

financial statements.

(b) HEHRERER (b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
RTUTEERBEBEBENURAEBEYE The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
ON - IEBIBT R RS E B L A E A2 financial statements is the historical cost basis, except that the
o BRAFFBEHIIN TSR following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained

in the accounting policies set out below:

— EBRUAABEFABERNEHE - financial instruments classified as at fair value through profit or
=B Afﬁfﬁﬁ]\ﬁ’r@1@% i HY loss, at fair value through other comprehensive income (see
TRVEE (2BMFE2030v), (v) R (vi) 2K note 2(c)(iv), (v) and (vi)) or derivatives (see note 2(h))

PTEeRIT A (%@MTJEEZ ))

—  REWE (2EMEE20) - investment properties (see note 2(i)).
—  EE (26W5E2()) - —  other premises (see note 2(j)).

056 FIFIRIT (EIFR) BIRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

()

(d)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires that management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

This annual financial report has been prepared on a basis consistent
with the accounting policies adopted in the 2023 annual financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

Amendments to HKFRSs effective for the current accounting period
do not have a material impact on the Group.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2024 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far there are no other
standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to
have a material impact on the Group in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

—EMEFER
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

(a)

Material Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been continuously applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as
follows:

(i) Interestincome
Interest revenue is recognised in the income statement on an
accrual basis. Effective interest method is used for recognising
interest income on those financial instruments that are not
classified as fair value through profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, call and similar options) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised to the
income statement over their expected life.

For financial assets that were purchased or originated as
credit-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation of interest
income does not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of
the asset improves.

Interest on impaired loans is recognised using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(a)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the Group
fulfills its performance obligation, either over time or at a point
of time.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Group
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate. When a loan commitment is not expected to
result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase
contract

Finance income implicit in the finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of return on the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period. Commission paid to dealers for the
acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase contracts is
included in the carrying value of the assets and amortised to
the income statement over the expected life of the lease as an
adjustment to interest income.

Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised
in the income statement in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when
the share price of the investment is quoted ex-dividend.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, substantive rights and rights that are not protective (held
by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows, and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the income statement. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of
the entity are allocated for as if the group had directly disposed of
related assets or liabilities. This way means that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the Bank's statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(d)
(i), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(u)).
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2

()

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments

(0]

(i)

(iii)

Classification
The Group has classified its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

- Amortised cost

- Fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI");
or

- Fair value through profit or loss ("FVPL")

The classification depends on the Group's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income or loss. For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether the group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The group reclassifies
debt investments when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset together with substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred. Financial liabilities are
derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures financial assets at
their fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, such as
fees and commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit
orloss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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()

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group's business model for managing the financial asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI"), and that are not designated at FVPL, are
measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets
is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance recognised
and measured as described in the credit risk management
section of this annual financial report. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in ‘interest income’ using the
effective interest rate method. Loan origination fees and costs
are considered to be adjustments to the loan yield and are
recognised in credit fees over the commitment period which it
is unlikely that the commitment will be called upon, otherwise,
they are recognised in interest income over the term of the
resulting loan.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI")
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that
are not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment, interest revenue and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss in the same manner as financial assets measured
at amortised cost. On derecognition of debt instruments at
FVOCI, cumulative gains and losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss. Interest income from
debt instruments at FVOC! is included in ‘interest income” using
the effective interest rate method.
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Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL")

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOClI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain
or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at
FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and included in ‘'net trading
income’ in the period in which it arises.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, deposits, financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit in issue, loan
capital and other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at
inception and recognised initially at fair value, and in the case of
financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, plus or
minus transaction costs.

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is
measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in
fair value are recognised in the income statement, with interest
component being reported as part of the interest expenses.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit
or loss if it is so designated at inception. Financial liabilities so
designated include certain certificates of deposit in issue and
certain deposits received from customers that are embedded
with derivatives. A financial liability is so designated if it meets
one of the following criteria:

- eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring the financial liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases; or
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Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(v)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

- applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or
both that is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the Group is provided internally on that basis to the
key management; or

- relates to financial liabilities containing one or more
embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash
flows resulting from those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value and any gains and losses from
changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement,
except for fair value changes arising from own credit risks are
recognised as other comprehensive income and subsequently
reclassified to the retained earnings upon derecognition, unless
such would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss, then all gains and losses from changes in fair value are
recognised in the income statement.

Deposits, certificates of deposit in issue, loan capital, financial
assets sold under repurchase agreements other than at fair
value and other liabilities

Deposits, certificates of deposit in issue, loan capital, financial
assets sold under repurchase agreements measured other
than fair value and other liabilities, other than those classified
as trading liabilities or designated at fair value through profit or
loss are carried at amortised cost. Any difference (if available)
between proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do
not contain a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset to another entity; or to exchange financial assets
or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially unfavourable to the issuer.

If the instrument will or may be settled in the issuer's own equity
instruments, it is: (i) a non-derivative that includes no contractual
obligation for the issuer to deliver a variable number of its own
equity instruments; or (ii) a derivative that will be settled by the
issuer exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments. For this
purpose, the issuer’'s own equity instruments do not include
instruments that are themselves contracts for the future receipt
or delivery of the issuer's own equity instruments.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group's
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group's policy is to designate
equity investments as FVOC| when those investments are not
held for trading. When this election is used, fair value gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on
disposal.

(d) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of amortised cost and financial assets through
other comprehensive income

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses ("ECL") associated with its debt instrument assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI and with the exposures
arising from loan commitment and financial guarantee
contracts. The Group recognises a loss allowance for such losses
at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

(i) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

—EMEFER
Annual Report 2024

|065



M TSR M

2 EESHEE(E)

(d) EERE#E)
() RESEAERUDAAEBEFAHMS
T W5 K & BE EAURE ()
(i) EEHSEEER: &

(i) R¥mEAREEBEEN Ry
Eiﬁ&ﬂﬂ(i&/ﬁﬂk/ﬁiﬁ AlE & 72
AR ER -

BHRBAERRENNTERREE
KA REEEEHZENEHHEN
R RFE - UREEAFBENEMRTE
HAIRINERE - BAVIBAKRIETER AR
AEMENRRAE  CEZR(BREE
fibFr it ) T HR A IR IR 1R R (B (B R BV AR AN
TERSBENNEERE  BHORRBRE
FERTEHAIEK -

HRREREBEHHATHEHE
R3PS BURET ARSI T -

— FBEER: AEEBRBEZEN
EABHEEBRANEERLE
# - EREREREZBVBERE
CERBRABEALAT  BH
E#&%%SiEu{IHWE‘JLZ’]%
HHBERFREREBLASD -

—  F2MEER: K’EEI%E%M%EEZ{
BREERBREEERN LTINS
é?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ—rﬁé‘ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁfﬁa
KEOEEBRKER - HEROE
ERXERRERAREHR2
EAMW (RERIRI2MER) ATRE
BEMBEDHEN

- E3EE ARERREFNE
Hﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’iﬁ’ﬂfgﬁﬁﬁ-
- ERCEREERERESD
J“EHH%W NFrBAIBEMEN S
o REEMENTEREEET
-

066] FIFIRIT (EIFR) BIRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Impairment of assets (continued)

(0]

Impairment of amortised cost and financial assets through
other comprehensive income (continued)
(i) thetime value of money; and

(i)  reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecast of future
economic conditions.

The exposure of default (‘EAD") represents the expected balance
at default, taking into account the repayment of principal
and interest from the balance sheet date to the default event
together with any expected drawdowns of committed facilities.
The loss given default ("LGD") represents expected losses on
the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among
other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the
time it is expected to be realised and the time value of money.

A 3-Stages approach to impairment for financial assets that are
performing at the date of origination or purchase. This approach
is summarised as follows:

- Stage 1: The Group recognises a credit loss allowance at
an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. This
represents the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
from default events that are expected within 12 months
of the reporting date, assuming that credit risk has not
increased significantly after initial recognition.

- Stage 2: The Group recognises a credit loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses
for those financial assets which are considered to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. These are the portion of ECLs that result from
default events that are possible within the 12 months after
the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life
of the instrument is less than 12 months).

- Stage 3: The Group recognises a credit loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, that
result from all possible default events over the expected
lives of the items to which the ECL model applies. The
Group's definition of default is aligned with the regulatory
definition.
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(d)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(0]

(i)

Impairment of amortised cost and financial assets through
other comprehensive income (continued)

Purchased or originated credit impaired (“POCI") assets are
assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition. For POCI
assets, lifetime ECL are incorporated into the calculation of
the effective interest rate on initial recognition. Consequently,
POCI assets do not carry an impairment allowance on initial
recognition. The amount recognised as a loss allowance
subsequent to initial recognition is equal to the changes in
lifetime ECL since initial recognition of asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property and equipment (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts)

- intangible assets

- investments in subsidiaries.

- right-of-use assets

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(d)

(e)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii)  Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units), and then
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset is not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets, an impairment loss (except for
impairment on goodwill) is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the income statement in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Bank or the counterpart.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(f)

(9)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period without any deduction for
estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are priced at current
bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted market
price on a recognised stock exchange or a price from a broker/dealer
for non-exchange-traded financial instruments, or if the market for
them is not active, the fair value of the instrument is estimated using
valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate of prices which
could be obtained in actual market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future
cash flows are based on management'’s estimates and the discount
rate used is a market rate at the end of the reporting period applicable
for an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where other
pricing models are used, input is based on market data at the end of
the reporting period.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
these securities at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase
agreements) are retained in the financial statements and measured in
accordance with their original measurement principles. The proceeds
from the sale received are reported as financial liabilities and are
carried at amortised cost.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase
agreements) are reported not as purchases of the securities and
not recognised on the statement of financial position, but the
consideration paid is recorded as receivables, and are carried in the
statement of financial position at amortised cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements are recognised as interest income
or interest expense, respectively, over the life of each agreement,
using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(h)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for
subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the
item being hedged.

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes both the derivative and non derivative host
contract, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. If a hybrid
contract contains a host that is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS
9, the embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and
accounted for as a derivative when (a) the economic characteristics
and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the
host contract; (b) a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and
(c) the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract is
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies of financial
instruments (see note 2(c)(ii)).

The Group has elected to continue to apply the hedge accounting
requirements of HKAS 39 on adoption of HKFRS 9. The Group assesses
and documents whether the financial instruments that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of hedged items attributable to the hedged
risks both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis. The Group
discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when (a) the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised; or (b) the hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting; or (c) the Group
revokes the designation.
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(h)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Derivatives and hedging activities (continued)

(0]

(ii)

Fair value hedge

A fair value hedge seeks to offset the risks of changes in the fair
value of a recognised asset or liability that will give rise to a gain
or loss being recognised in the income statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with fair value
changes recognised in the income statement. If the hedged
item would otherwise be measured at cost or amortised cost,
then its carrying amount of the hedged item is adjusted by the
amount of the changes in fair value of the hedging instrument
attributable to the risk being hedged. This adjustment is
recognised in the income statement to offset the effect of the
gain or loss on the hedging instrument.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised; the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting; or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship, any adjustment up to that point, to a hedged item
for which the effective interest rate method is used is amortised
to the income statement as part of the recalculated effective
interest rate of the item over its remaining life.

Hedge effectiveness testing

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries out
prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that it expects
the hedge to be highly effective (prospective effectiveness)
at the inception of the hedge and throughout its life. Actual
effectiveness (retrospective effectiveness) also needs to be
demonstrated on an ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how
the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method which
the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend
on its risk management strategy.

For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilises the
cumulative dollar offset method or regressive analysis as
effectiveness testing methodologies.
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2

(h)

(i

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Derivatives and hedging activities (continued)

(i) Hedge effectiveness testing (continued)
For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes
in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during
the period for which the hedge is designated. For actual
effectiveness, the changes in fair value or cash flows must offset
each other in the range of 80% to 125% for the hedge to be
deemed effective.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(1)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land and buildings held
for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties shall be measured initially at their cost.
Transaction costs shall be included in the initial measurement.
Subsequently, they are stated in the statement of financial position at
fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
the income statement. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(a)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest
is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were
held under a finance lease (see note 2(I)(i)), and the same accounting
policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease income is accounted for
as described in note 2(a)(iii).

If an item of premises becomes an investment property because
its use has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of
premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However,
if a fair value gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment
loss classified under premises, the gain is recognised in the income
statement up to the amount previously debited.
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Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Other premises and equipment and right-of-use assets

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has been taken
of the transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80AA of HKAS 16,
Property, plant and equipment, issued by the HKICPA, with the effect
that other premises which are carried at revalued amounts in financial
statements relating to periods ended before 30 September 1995 have
not been revalued to fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The following items of property and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any (see note 2(d)(ii)):

- buildings held for own use;
- other items of equipment.

Changes arising in the revaluation of properties held for own use
are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, and
are recognised in the income statement on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to the
income statement.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items
of property and equipment (including right-of-use assets), less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives as follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

- Buildings are depreciated over 30 years or the unexpired terms
of the land leases, whichever is shorter.

- Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated over a term
of 3to 10 years.

- Right-of-use assets over the shorter of useful lives and lease
terms.
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(k)

U]

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Other premises and equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)
Where parts of an item of property and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) have different useful lives, the cost or valuation
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts, and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include the acquired software licenses and
capitalised development costs of computer software programmes.
Cost associated with maintaining software programme are recognised
as an expense as incurred. Development costs, which directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and software
products for internal use, are capitalised as part of the software and
included employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

Intangible assets for software that have a finite estimated useful life
are stated at cost less amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, and are amortised over their estimated useful lives (5 years)
on a straight-line basis. Intangible assets are subject to impairment
review on an annual basis if there are any impairment indicators
present that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use
over the contract period.

(i) Asalessee

On the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect
of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to recognise
the lease as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not recognised as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis
over the lease term.
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U]

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

(0]

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease term, after taking
into account payments to be made in the optional period if
the extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.

After initial recognition, interest expense is calculated using a
constant periodic rate of interest. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged to
income statement in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus
any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, then
discounted to its present value, and less any lease incentives
received.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss.
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U]

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

(0]

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a
rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change of lease terms, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in income statement if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A
lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
The rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(m)

(n)

(o)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take
possession of assets held as collateral through court proceedings
or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. Where it is
intended to achieve an orderly realisation of the impaired assets
and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the borrower,
repossessed assets are reported in “Loans and advances to customers
and other accounts”. The Group does not hold the repossessed assets
for its own use.

Repossessed assets are recognised at the lower of the carrying
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value less costs to
sell at the date of exchange. Subsequent measurement of repossessed
assets are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. They are not depreciated or amortised.

Impairment losses on initial classification and on subsequent
remeasurement are recognised in the income statement.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(ii) Staff retirement scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and
a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Contributions are charged
to the income statement as and when the contributions fall
due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(p)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits; that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(p)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(i), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investment in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on the deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in
the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Additional income tax that arises from the distribution of dividends
is recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(p) Income tax (continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(g) Translation of foreign currencies
(i)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong Dollars (HK$'000),
which is the Bank’s functional currency and the Group's
presentation currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(q)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(i)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into
Hong Kong dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments
are included in gains less losses from trading securities or
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit
or loss. All other exchange differences relating to monetary
items are presented as gains less losses from dealing in foreign
currencies in the income statement. Differences arising from
the translation of fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the investment revaluation
reserve.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statements of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to the income statement when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(r)

(s)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the holder) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the contractual terms of the debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to customers, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within other liabilities. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at
the time of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged had the guarantees not been available, where
reliable estimates of such information can be made.

The deferred income is amortised in the income statement over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
Financial guarantee liabilities are subsequently carried at the higher
of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments” and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognised in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15
‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers'.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
measured. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(t)  Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to

the Group if that person:

0

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

U]

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(t)

(u)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by that person in their dealings with the entity.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it
is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sales plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above criteria for classification as
held for sale are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up to date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale, and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below) or disposal
groups are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the Group and the Bank
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in the
income statement. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(v)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s management
committee members for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Critical estimates, judgements and errors

The preparation of financial statements requires that management
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities; the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of these financial statements; and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Management also
needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The Group has established procedures to ensure that
accounting policies are applied consistently and that the processes
for changing methodologies, determining estimates, and adopting
new accounting standards are continually evaluated and in proper
and reasonable manner.

Critical estimates, judgements and errors for financial

instruments

(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets
Business model assessment
The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets
in order to generate cash flows; that is, whether the Group's
objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from
the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and
cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is
applicable and they are held for trading purposes, the financial
assets are classified and measured at FVPL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Critical estimates, judgements and errors (continued)

Critical estimates, judgements and errors for financial

instruments (continued)

(i)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(continued)

Business model assessment (continued)

Factors considered by the Group in determining the business
model for a group of assets include past experience on how
the cash flows for these assets are collected, how the asset's
performance is evaluated and reported to key management
personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how
managers are compensated.

Solely payments of principal and interest test

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
“SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement.

Expected credit losses on financial instruments

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of key assumptions and inputs such as significant
increase in credit risk, measurement of expected credit loss,
forward-looking information and management overlay are
disclosed in the credit risk management section of note 38.



M TSR M

3

BASEIERTAL - HIETMEER ()

SR T ARG - HEMER (&)

(iii)

EMIANAAMEE
ARBEMATREREIEN  YAR
RESETAMBETSESNEE
ERERERETH  AKENSH
TANAARBEIZENBEMNAER
ENTISME  HEERBILRRK
KB RAHTIS2 B A EER
B RBHIGTRBAIBRNTISE
BHemITANRRBENAERR
EELMEE - EEELTEHEME
anfif BRI -

P A (BB EL 72 P VR B 75 S o O L
ZHIETE R BRE - R REMER
T AEBBREGHEERRU
TR T AMREETLER  WRER
REERE#ETLE  AE—FPRE
FIRRZERRAY o

B LR A HEE M - R B P
AOBERALHEESR T ANRER
R BR3RE - RACREREME -
R PR T8 B R 2% 4 B A0 HL Ath PR SR 00 1 i
MEBAZE - MAERREBZEB T
ARegHE LAt A RAELENR
REEELERTE -

Notes to the Financial Statements

Critical estimates, judgements and errors (continued)

Critical estimates, judgements and errors for financial

instruments (continued)

(iii)

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics of
the financial instruments and relevant market information. The
majority of the Group's financial instruments reported at fair
value are based on quoted and observable market prices or on
internally developed models that are based on independently
sourced or verified market parameters. The fair value of financial
instruments without an observable market price in a liquid
market may be determined using valuation models. The choice
of model requires significant judgement for complex products.

All valuation models are validated before they are used as a
basis for financial reporting. Wherever possible, the Group
compares valuations derived from models with quoted prices
of similar financial instruments, and with actual values when
realised, in order to further validate and calibrate the models.

These techniques involve uncertainties and are materially
affected by the assumptions used and judgements made
regarding the risk characteristics of various financial instruments,
discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, future expected
loss experience and other factors. Changes in assumptions
could materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair
values.

—EMEFER
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FEWA 4  Interestincome
2024 2023
BET T BET T
HK$'000 HKS'000
LhESH Listed securities 2,056,798 1,322,899
FLEMHES Unlisted securities 3,413,129 2,073,239
FEIRTTAVAETE - TF MBI Balances and placements with banks and advances to banks 3,088,978 3,089,659
PR EEMIRIE Advances and other accounts 12,267,839 13,985,287
TREENMBURA Interest income on financial assets 20,826,744 20,471,084
He Of which:
Vid=Rize: § D N0 Interest income on financial assets measured at
TREENMELA amortised cost 15,419,990 17,142,536
REZAEBER AH M Interest income on financial assets measured at
PEHBEHEREEN fair value through other comprehensive
FBUA income 5,406,754 3,328,548
20,826,744 20,471,084
MEZY 5 Interest expense
0N
2024 2023
BET T BET T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
EPER Deposits from customers 11,381,063 11,477,061
RIT R E M & B R Deposits and balances from banks and other
GREET financial institutions 1,407,961 1,051,904
BB RE Certificates of deposit issued 77,012 88,506
BETERER Loan capital issued 257,715 217,462
HEaE Lease liabilities 37,738 31,567
DESRAATENeRIBE Interest expense on financial liabilities
FEZ W measured at amortised cost 13,161,489 12,866,500

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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FFEERASWA 6 Netfee and commission income
2024 2023
BET T T T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FEERBASWA : Fee and commission income:
B - BYRBMEFEE Loans, overdrafts and facilities fees 317,645 337,186
EoMERBEELRAS Trade finance and bills commission 95,413 90,855
AERER Custody services and investment fund 49,117 23,130
BEFERT S Debt capital markets 64,100 37,246
(E:RiEE I ON Card-related income 70,117 52,713
REREEEREER Investment and structured investment products 336,774 264,655
R BA Insurance brokerage 758,457 515,661
FPORE - B EA Account services, remittance and others 157,459 101,482
1,849,082 1,422,928
FEEREASIH Fee and commission expense (240,599) (168,410)
1,608,483 1,254,518
Hep Of which:
EFEERASWA CREIEFTE Net fee and commission income (other than the
FTHERMNENERE) @R amounts included in determining the effective
WA R EEF ABRERD interest rate) relating to financial assets and
TREERARE: liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss:
—FEBRASWA - Fee and commission income 483,175 464,011
-~ FEBLMAESTH - Fee and commission expense (33,668) (34,284)
449,507 429,727

RERFEOL—  FFENRITRETE
EENMRHEREIRENERER A M

ENESMEWA -

The prior year fee and commission income from banking services has
been adjusted to fee and commission income from trade finance,

fee and commission income from custody services and investment

fund and fee and commission income from account services and

remittance to conform to the current year’s presentation.

—EomER
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ERXZEA 7 Nettrading income
2024 2023
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BB INE WS Net gain from dealing in foreign currencies 548,084 761,867
NARBEGAERNSE Net gain from financial investments at fair value
wEF through profit or loss 115,051 58,510
HihBEEEFWE,(FBK) Net gain/(loss) from other dealing activities 1,531 (141,989)
RABEHFFRE (BX) Net hedging gain/(loss) on fair value hedges 1,702 (232)
R RBEEFMNEWA Net interest income on trading activities
— ™ - Listed 35,263 17,734
—3ELET - Unlisted 302,911 339,915
1,004,542 1,035,805
Hh & WA 8 Other operating income
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
A B A Dividend income
—JELETMIRE — Unlisted investments 2,804 2,934
WEMEMEWA Rental income from investment properties 8,858 7,291
Hth Others 23,898 17,103
35,560 27,328
RERIT (B BRAE
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9 REIH 9  Operating expenses
2024 2023
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
(@ BIRK (a) Staff costs
HFeRkHME TR Salaries and other staff costs 2,276,541 2,379,179
RIS A (F5E35) Retirement costs (note 35) 167,095 160,619
2,443,636 2,539,798
(b) ER#EH (b) Depreciation and amortisation
Y REEITE (:E22) Depreciation — property and equipment (note 22) 139,806 131,855
RAEEERE (M5E23) Depreciation — right-of-use assets (note 23) 237,983 262,326
R EE#E (HiE24) Amortisation — intangible assets (note 24) 194,117 212,262
571,906 606,443
() HibE®xH (c) Other operating expenses
L EYS SR Property and equipment expenses
(FefEHE) (excluding depreciation) 448,225 410,393
1% ERAT B < Auditor's remuneration
—ZEER - Audit fee 6,213 6,213
— BT AR RS — Assurance related services fee 1,440 867
— Hfth - Others 1,194 1,838
EEE Advertising 64,404 67,302
WAE - BRI R EA® Communication, printing and stationery 195,396 193,581
ETFHEERE Electronic data processing 173,335 165,593
FERRBEEER Legal and professional fees 45,097 50,647
HAh, Others 109,047 108,740
1,044,351 1,005,174
REZHAKE Total operating expenses 4,059,893 4,151,415
—EMER
Annual Report 2024
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10 EEME 10 Directors’ remuneration
BEEECARUED) (B622F) E3831K K The Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
RABERESFEER I ERMBENE Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the Companies
EME T (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is

set out as below:

2024 2023
BET T BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEWE Directors' fees 3,620 3,745
Ha R REYMNZE (M) Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind (Note 1) 15,660 21,589
FIETEAL (3E2) Discretionary bonuses (Note 2) - 17,668
BRIRETEI R Retirement scheme contributions 1,446 1,595
20,726 44,597

MI5E Note:
1 EMH = iR EER RRE - 1 Benefits in kind mainly include housing allowance and insurance

premium.
2 EARITEERMNE ENRERINDER 2 The final remunerations of the directors who received remuneration
HiBIRH o from the Bank are still pending approval.

0921 RIFIRT (EIFR) BIRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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11 Expected credit losses on financial instruments

Expected credit losses (“ECL") charged/(reversed) on financial
instruments

2024
F1RR F2MER EIMER wazE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BEFT BETrx BT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ERTT P RIBITET Balances with banks and central banks - - - -
ERITRFR LB Placements with and advances to banks (3,158) - - (3,158)
AARBEGTAEMEE Financial investments at fair value through
Wz r & g & other comprehensive income 12,921 - 21,568 34,489
AR AT ERERIRE  Financial investments at amortised cost 3 - - 3
BEERMEBH KL Loans and advances to customers and
B ARIE other accounts 163,187  (416,458) 3,853,214 3,599,943
B HORYE M ER Loan commitments and guarantees (5,429) 15,525 - 10,096
167,524 (400,933) 3,874,782 3,641,373
el 3] Recoveries (374,738)
3,266,635
2023
EIRER F2MEER FEIMEER 42z
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETT BT BT AET
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
HEIRIT AP RIBITHETF Balances with banks and central banks (1,807) - - (1,807)
FERITF R RBR Placements with and advances to banks (6,395) - - (6,395)
AR EBEFTAEMEE Financial investments at fair value through
Wmr & it g other comprehensive income (1,388) - 32,377 30,989
e AGTE RS RIIRE  Financial investments at amortised cost (3) - - (3)
HEERRBRE Loans and advances to customers and
H{hBR1E other accounts (377,826) 221,475 3,228,365 3,072,014
B TURIE RIER Loan commitments and guarantees (41,670) (759) - (42,429)
(429,089) 220,716 3,260,742 3,052,369
Uy Bl & 28 Recoveries (198,036)
2,854,333
ZEZFR
Annual Report 2024
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12 ZREWBRRFARVFER 12 Income tax in the consolidated income statement
(@) HREWRBERAITHAES (@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
2024 2023
BET T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
AHBIE — FEMEHR Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
FRNLERE Provision for the year 391,396 208,809
BAFERIBEEREMIE /(E8)  Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 7,258 (9,083)
398,654 199,726
REABE — BB UNNRIE Current tax - Taxation outside Hong Kong
FRNEE Provision for the year 65,988 158,004
W FIE IR EE R Over-provision in respect of prior years (35,028) (20,101)
30,960 137,903
B IE Deferred tax
TR ERERA (HEE29) Origination of temporary differences (note 29) 60,826 64,783
490,440 402,412
2024 F FEEBNGHTIERAFE (A7 ER The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2024 is calculated at 16.5%
TSR FIFR R R 16.5% (20234 : 165%) 5T & - (2023: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
BN 1T R B A R IE B R AR AB R B K for overseas branches and subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
BEE IR TR R IR A - current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.
(b) BEXHEGSHEFIZREABEITEBRN (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at
¥AR& applicable tax rates
2024 2023
BT BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
758 B ) Profit before tax 3,232,163 2,989,309
#165%3 A B BEBEIREAFFE  Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated at a
TR ETE B AR M EY taxation rate of 16.5% and the different
HENIE taxation rates in other countries/regions 495,799 483,883
AR ST B R TR R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 353,930 256,663
HERTIMAN T IEZE Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (261,902) (204,858)
THEEIN—RERFELHEZEN Tax effect of distribution payment of AT1 Capital
MIET & Securities (62,198) (108,282)
BT G S IA 2 [0 1% Over-provision in prior years (27,770) (29,184)
Hith Others (7,419) 4,190
BERHBESH Actual tax expense 490,440 402,412
RIEIRTT (ERR) BRR AR

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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13 Other comprehensive income

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive

income
2024 2023
BAEE  BEXE REARE  UHEE  HEXY RUEIE
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
BETR  BE¥TT  B%Tn  BETR E¥TT A%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BINEB I B IRERMEL Exchange differences on translation of financial
=8 statements of foreign operations (56,168) - (56,168) (29614) - (29614)
WAREES AL Financial investments at fair value through
2RUENSREE other comprehensive income
- EBES - debt securities
— AR BER AL - net movements in fair value reserve of
2ENENERKRE financial investments at fair value through
AhEERETE other comprehensive income 560,719 (124,037) 436,682 964,479 (171,675) 792,804
- HEERE - impairment loss 34,489 - 34,489 30,989 - 30,989
MEE(RE Property revaluation reserve
- MEERRETE - net movement in property revaluation reserve 73,838 - 73,838 - - -
AR BE AR Financial investments at fair value through
2ENENSRIRE other comprehensive income
—ERIA - equity instruments
~DAREBFAEMRZA - net movements in fair value reserve of
WaEnNSBRERNER financial investments at fair value through
REFEEY other comprehensive income (1,779) 293 (1,486) 808 (134) 674
Htv2EkE Other comprehensive income 611,099 (123,744) 487,355 966,662 (171,809) 794,853
—EomER
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

14 Segment reporting

Segment information is prepared consistently with reportable
segments. Information is regularly reported to the chief operating
decision-maker, including management committee members, to
allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance.
The Group has identified the following five reportable segments:

Wholesale banking mainly comprises corporate lending and
syndicated loans, trade financing, deposit account services and cash
management in Hong Kong and at overseas branches.

Personal and business banking mainly comprises retail deposit
account services, residential mortgages, other consumer lending,
credit card services, Small and Medium Enterprises (“SMEs") banking
business, wealth management services and private banking in Hong
Kong and at overseas branches.

Treasury and markets covers the provision of foreign exchange
services, money market activities, the management of investment
securities and central funding management in Hong Kong and at
overseas branches.

Mainland subsidiary is the Bank’s wholly owned banking subsidiary
operating in Mainland China.

Others mainly comprises unallocated revenue and expenses as well as
corporate expenses.

For the purpose of segment reporting, the allocation of operating
income reflects the benefits of funding resources allocated to the
business segments based on the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism. Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred
by the respective business segments and the apportionment of
overheads on a reasonable basis to the business segments. Rental
charges at the market rate for the use of bank premises are reflected
as inter-segment income for the ‘Others’ segment and inter-segment
expenses for the respective business segments.

Income and cost allocation amongst reportable segments are
reviewed from time to time as management deems fit and in the
event of change, corresponding segment reporting information will
be updated to conform with latest allocation basis.
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14 DEERE(E)

14 Segment reporting (continued)

(@) FI2#HoEB (a) Reportable segments
2024
i )
BAR HER affaR
8550 RRmE HE R Elimination
NEEE  Personal and Treasury 47 and
Wholesale business and Mainland Eft Nt consolidation ga
banking banking markets subsidiary Others Subtotal  adjustments  Consolidated
BETR BRI BETR BETR BETR BETT AU BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERA Net nterest income 3,195,841 2,742,193 (207,416) 318101 161653 7665255 - 7,665,255
EEERA Other operating income 663,348 1,432,849 646,602 139,423 (29,876) 2,852,346 (95,870) 2,756,476
HERABEF AL  Netgain on disposal of financial
SEUENEREE  investments atfair value through
s other comprehensive income - - 153,908 5712 60 159,680 - 159,680
BEWA Operating income 3,859,189 4,175,082 593,094 463,236 1586720 10,677,281 (95,870) 10,581,411
meyi Operating expenses (403,495) (1,276,340) (314,094) (235,128) (1,911,239) (4,140,296) 80,403 (4,059,893)
HEHEZEE(FH)/  Interseqment (expenses)/
WA income (143,268) (644,300) (117,074) - 904,642 - - -
NRFEEER 2B Operating profit/(loss) before
&Hl/(8%) impairment 3,312,426 2,254,402 161,926 228,108 580123 6,536,985 (15,467) 6,521,518
SRTABHBEEWE  Expected creditlosses on
X financial instruments (2,589,648) (358,592) (23,961) (294,614) 180 (3,266,635) - (3,266,635)
EEERERE Impaiment losses on other assets - (17,500) - - - (17,500) - (17,500)
e/ (8%) Operating profit/(loss) 7,778 1,878310 137,965 (66,506) 580303 3,252,850 (15,467) 3,237,383
HEMERREREN Nt gain/(loss) on disposal of property
BESWE /(BX)  and equipment and intangible assets 7,440 (86) - 328 (140) 7,542 - 7,542
RENZER Revaluation deficit on investrment
X properties - - - - (12,762) (12,762) - (12,762)
BAnad /(8% Profit/(loss) before taxation 730218 1,878,224 137,965 (66,178) 567401 3,247,630 (15,467) 3,232,163
IR Income tax (490,440)
REERF Profit for the year 2,741,723
s iER Other segment items:
fEREH Depreciation and amortisation 20776 138,528 11,622 29,574 371,406 571,906 - 571,906
THEE Segment assets 145,661,950 72,129871 265,632,456 21,499,284 8,427,945 513,351,506  (24,056,129) 489,295,377
AHEE Segment liabilities 117,778,734 248,872,576 64,004,919 19,770,485 7,142,537 457,569,251 (24,642,005) 432,927,246
REEEEN Capital expenditure incurred
EREY during the year 8,696 33,79 - 5,731 407,551 455,11 - 455,11
—E-FER

Annual Report 2024
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14 SBER(E) 14 Segment reporting (continued)
(@) TEFRDI(E) (@) Reportable segments (continued)
2023
HRR
AR BER CUEES
BB ED O HER Elimination
NCES Personal and Treasury TR and
Wholesale business and Mainland £ gt consolidation 54
banking banking markets subsidiary Others Subtotal  adjustments Consolidated
AR AETT AETT AR BB BB AETT BB
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FHERA Net interest income 3883341 2,155,789 (176462 280909 1463754 7,607,331 (2747) 7,604,584
EthamaiiA Other operating income 610,625 1,038,179 581,206 106,298 45352 2,381,660 (59,933) 231,727
HELRABEFALR  Netgain on disposal of financial
SEMEHERIRE  investments at far value through
s other comprehensive income - - 70028 3610 - 73638 - 73638
"2 A Operating income 4493966 3,193,968 474772 390817 1,509,106 10,062,629 (62,680) 9,999,949
mESH Operating expenses 1408032 (1262279) (48004) 0038 (196405)  (42126%) 61,81 (4151415)
PEHZEE(FH)/  Inter-seqment (expenses)/
WA income (142262) (582,746) (110,902) - 835910 - - -
NRFEEER 28 Operating profit/(loss)
%R/ (B%) before impairment 394367 1348943 15,866 160489 8093 584998 (1399 5848534
SBIARERE Expected credit losses on
REEX financial instruments (2571.862) (221,398) (61,542) 269 200 (2854333 - (2854333)
EhEEHERR Impairment losses on other asses - - - - - - - -
e/ (8%) Operating profit/(loss) 1371810 1,127,545 (¢5676) 160,758 381,163 295,600 (1399) 2994201
HEMERRERER  Netloss on disposal of property and
EEFEX equipment and intangible assets (5) (166) (13 (50) (6454) (6735) - (6735)
RENZER Revaluation surplus on investment
e properties - - - - 1843 1843 - 1843
BAnad /(8% Profit/(loss) before taxation 1371758 1127379 (45,689) 160,708 376552 299,708 (1399) 2989309
FER Income tax (402412)
REER Profit for the year 2,586,897
s iER Other segment items:
fEREH Depreciation and amortisation 20712 130481 13712 29939 41159 60643 - 60643
THEE Segment assets 141,110,553 72,727,048 256,394,264 19,877,993 10,149,503 500,259,361 (29.872430) 470,386,931
k= Segment liabilities 129470043 210,486,287 71606473 18,029,599 11,275,116 446867518 (29,996,598) 416870920
REEEEN Capital expenditure incurred
EARY during the year 4430 4453 1,584 4770 435,658 450,895 - 450,895

098] FIFIRIT (EIFR) BIRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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14 Segment reporting (continued)

(b) Geographical information
The geographical information analysis is based on the location of the
principal operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank itself,
of the location of the branches responsible for reporting the results or
booking the assets and liabilities.

2024
FERBARR
HEthE#ER
BEEE
Credit related
commitments
BARR and financial
(%) guarantees, other
Profit/(loss) FE-TON commitments and
before REE Bam Operating contingent
taxation Total assets Total liabilities income liabilities
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 3,528,665 457,303,082 401,374,452 9,681,578 119,035,193
HERH Mainland China (72,809) 20,357,765 19,885,256 458,666 2,978,518
e United States (234,636) 15,180,440 15,411,201 206,783 4,353,590
e Singapore 16,675 14,278,207 14,272,689 299,712 32,279,168
£t Others (5,732) 3,001,289 2,974,228 14,710 2,529,929
HEFEER Inter-segment items - (20,825,406) (20,990,580) (80,038) -
3,232,163 489,295,377 432,927,246 10,581,411 161,176,398
2023

RERBRER

FBER

EthAGER

RERE

Credit related

commitments

HAEF/ and financial
(B%) quarantees, other

Profit/(loss) BEA commitments and
before BEE LY=L Operating contingent

taxation Total assets Total liabilities income liabilities

BETT BETT BETT BETFT BETT

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

B Hong Kong 2,561,957 431973571 379,144,093 9115423 106,364,731
HER Mainland China 155,559 21,667,334 19,954,556 391,693 3,591,961
e United States (112,796) 16,500,733 16,861,135 324,556 4,700,619
# Singapore 380,288 22,304,857 21,840,705 335,467 30,591,081
) Others 4309 2,410,842 2,355,930 39,600 1,027,577
HEbfEIAE Inter-segment items 8 (24,470406) (23,285,499) (206,790) -
2,989,309 470,386,931 416,870,920 9,999,949 146,275,969
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15 RERAERITRPRBITHER

Notes to the Financial Statements

15 Cash and balances with banks and central banks

2024 2023

BETT BEETIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Re Cash in hand 247,720 266,373
FERRRERITHAETE Balances with central banks 5,186,077 3,902,909
FERTTOETT Balances with banks 5,103,563 12,762,658
10,537,360 16,931,940

TEHIE BB R — H1BER Expected credit losses allowances — Stage 1 (21) 21
10,537,339 16,931,919

HZE2004F 12 A3 HEES RN EE R MY
R RIRTTHAS T ER 58 208 15 595,339,000 7T

(2023 : 7#15738,124,0007T) °

16 HERITHERRER

Included in the balances with central banks are balances subject
to exchange control or regulatory restrictions, amounted to

HK$595,339,000 at 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$738,124,000).

16 Placements with and advances to banks

2024 2023
BET T T T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
EIRITHFR Placements with banks 67,307,420 53,842,124
FEERITHY B K Advances to banks 3,066,778 1,225,655
70,374,198 55,067,779
TEEMEERAEE — F 1R Expected credit losses allowances — Stage 1 (12,435) (15,593)
70,361,763 55,052,186

E|HfH - Maturing:
—1MEAR — within 1 month 38,291,202 28,995,932
—1EAZ1FRN ~ between 1 month and 1 year 31,682,413 26,056,254
—1FE5FK - 5 years or less but over 1 year 388,148 -
70,361,763 55,052,186

RERIT (B BRAE
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEANREEREE 17 Financial assets held under resale agreements
2024 2023

BET T BT T

HK$'000 HKS$'000
RXSZHEFEISM By types of counterparty
SR1T Banks 1,034,443 2,574,895
JEIRTT & AU IS Non-bank financial institutions 1,948,342 526,307
UAREBESAEBZNIEEMEE Carrying amount at fair value through profit or loss 2,982,785 3,101,202
R1T Banks 635,671 -
FERIT & RUE IR Non-bank financial institutions 2,538,911 4,592,502
DAEERRRK NS 2 R85 Gross amount at amortised cost 3,174,582 4,592,502
AR E BB R ERE Expected credit losses allowances - -
DA ATt EMREFE Net amount at amortised cost 3,174,582 4,592,502
ast Total amount 6,157,367 7,693,704
RIERWMERI D By types of collateral

R2024F % 2023F 12 A31H - KEBKWE
ANRESBMEEERYEBEIEAES -

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group's types of collateral for
financial assets held under resale agreements are all bonds.

SRRE 18 Financial investments
UAREEAEBR (@) Atfair value through profit or loss
2024 2023
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BERES Debt securities 696,786 1,060,285
EEES Equity securities 40,240 -
Hihir&E Other investment 1,303,782 1,388,932
2,040,808 2449217
BITHBWOT : Issued by:
RS 1 8 Sovereigns 88,135 524,599
SRIT R H b & RS Banks and other financial institutions 411,080 460,518
2 Corporate entities 1,523,079 1,464,100
NN Public entities 18,514 -
2,040,808 2449217
i) Listed 640,360 1,046,789
JEET Unlisted 1,400,448 1,402,428
2,040,808 2449217
ZEOER
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18 £WMRE (&)

(b) BAABEFAHMEEYE

Notes to the Financial Statements

18 Financial investments (continued)

(b) At fair value through other comprehensive income

2024 2023
BETT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

BERS Debt securities
BN FHRE — Certificates of deposit held 12,119,811 5,216,357
BlE 5 — Treasury bills 35,173,720 64,767,618
HEREH — Other debt securities 91,897,329 58,732,952
139,190,860 128,716,927
ERFES Equity securities 73,743 75,817
139,264,603 128,792,744

BITHBNT Issued by:
TS T 14 Sovereigns 49,796,694 76,457,895
RIT R E M & Bk Banks and other financial institutions 63,681,134 37,034,055
2 Corporate entities 13,557,912 10,978,955
NN Public entities 12,228,863 4,321,839
139,264,603 128,792,744
T Listed 59,214,684 40,342,518
JEETH Unlisted 80,049,919 88,450,226
139,264,603 128,792,744
RISERTT (BIFR) BRRAE]

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(b)

A REES A2 EYE (&)
BBAEMEZEWSEUAAABEFESHEE
HERESENRREERAEFESHHIR

IAREMS - REESEAREETA
Hit2E WS SRR ENAAEE - RE
ENEB T ARMEEYE - BRZEHE
ERKLEE - FBRA RSP ERD

PE S AREBRSD

Notes to the Financial Statements

18 Financial investments (continued)

(b)

At fair value through other comprehensive income (continued)
Reconciliation of carrying amount and ECL allowances for
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

For the purposes of this disclosure, the carrying amounts refer to the
fair values of the debt securities measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of ECL allowances, interest revenue and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and

loss.
2024
EBAY
BENEE
SRR HE2RBR SE3MER TREE e
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
BET T BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHEERLES ECL allowances
RM2024F1818 At 1 January 2024 14,856 - 164,646 - 179,502
mERHOEECMAESN  Net charge for the year arising from
BEFEM net change in exposures 10,735 - - - 10,735
BRI R Changes in model inputs 2,186 - 21,568 - 23,754
B Amount written-offs - - (173,152) - (173,152)
Hip Other movements 1 - (2,987) - (2,986)
#2024%12A831H At 31 December 2024 27,778 - 10,075 - 37,853
2024
EEAR
BENEE
SRR EpLdE 3R TREE k]
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
BETT BETR BETT BETR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REAE Carrying amount
R2024F181H At 1 January 2024 128,656,459 - 25,146 35,322 128,716,927
Mo Eg Net change in exposures 10,471,138 - (9,468) 17,857 10,479,527
B Amount written-offs - - (5,594) - (5,594)
2024%12H31H At 31 December 2024 139,127,597 - 10,084 53,179 139,190,860

—E[UER 103
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18 £WMRE (&) 18

(b) HARBETFARMEEKE (F) (b)
BRBAEMEZEWSEUAAABEFESHEE
MRESENANFERAEFAESNYIR

Financial investments (continued)

At fair value through other comprehensive income (continued)
Reconciliation of carrying amount and ECL allowances for
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

(&) income (continued)
2023
BEAR
RERMEE
F1PEER Eplidey F3MEE TREE ek
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
BB BT BB BT BB
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BHEERREE ECL allowances
720231 518 At 1 January 2023 16,244 - 203,155 - 219,399
fEEER Transfer between stages (1) - 91 - -
mER I D FEEMESER  Net charge for the year arising from
EEFEM net change in exposures 2,641 - 5,409 - 8,050
BRI E R Changes in model inputs (3,938) - 26,877 - 22,939
ZIEEEE Amount written-offs - - (67,495) - (67,495)
Hin g Other movements - - (3,391) - (3,391)
2023512 A31H At 31 December 2023 14,856 - 164,646 - 179,502
2023
BEAR
REMEE
F1REE FMEE F3fEE TREE ek
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
BT BT BT BT BT
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
FH&E Carrying amount
#202361 418 At 1 January 2023 112,745,255 - 29691 - 112774946
PEERER Transfer between stages (12,050) - 12,050 - -
i Net change in exposures 15,923,254 - (10,858) 35,322 15,947,718
A Amount written-offs - - (5,737) - (5,737)
7202312 /318 At 31 December 2023 128,656,459 - 25,146 35,322 128,716,927

104 R{ER1T (B BIRAF
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19

Notes to the Financial Statements

ERIRE (2) 18 Financial investments (continued)
LU sA R AN FHE (c) Atamortised costs
2024 2023
BEET T BT
HKS$'000 HKS'000
BExES Debt securities
B E 5 Treasury bills 90,182 -
TEHAEEBRER — F1BE Expected credit losses allowances — Stage 1 (3) -
90,179 -
BITHEBWNT : Issued by:
TR 1 Sovereigns 90,179 -
JE LT Unlisted 90,179 -
TTEERMIA 19 Derivative financial instruments

Tfﬁﬁmil/ﬂﬂﬁ BEEEMLETEPER

ERRERE RN EBRLEERN—EEE
o VFREEHBEEEREN IR &

LT A MEEEASEARSFAZNT
BE - NEBPTANEENTETARER
EMEXEENAL - TERBIN BT

ATH - AEEHBERSRNEENITET
BEK - REEAZ /NAEPNERAE
HWhRBEEREMHEANTETARR - BLE
AEMME  TTAETABEAFHEETX
FefES o

The use of derivatives for proprietary trading and sales to customers

as risk management products is an integral part of the Group's

business activities. These instruments are also used to manage the

Group's own exposure to market risk as part of its asset and liability

management process. The principal derivative instruments used by

the Group are interest and foreign exchange rate-related contracts,

which are primarily OTC derivatives. The Group also participates

in exchange-traded derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivative

positions have been entered into to meet customer demand and to

hedge these and other trading positions. For accounting purposes,

derivatives are classified as either held for trading or held for hedging.

—EomER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19 {T£E€@MT A (&) 19 Derivative financial instruments (continued)
(a FTEIENEBZSE (@) Notional amounts of derivatives
PTET AERERE BN ZBEEBEESIE Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
HHEERETEBENTEEL - BET the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
ENZRBBRRRTHHZ S8 - LK amounts of these investments indicate the volume of outstanding
%J—U‘ 58 o transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.
UTRAKEERBTFENMETANER SR The following is a summary of the notional amounts of each
M significant type of derivative entered into by the Group:
2024 2023
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
ERMTETA Currency derivatives
REIR 5 Forwards 72,890,484 68,190,274
RS Swaps 1,067,992,496 1,108,997,386
B A B Options purchased 79,419,924 71,129,225
= Options written 78,184,366 65,478,211
FZEFTETR Interest rate derivatives
REREIER S Forwards/Futures 3,376,883 554,454
B S Swaps 1,128,669,080 1,036,122,182
B A% Options purchased 4,152,630 1,000,000
= Options written 4,340,410 1,000,000
2,439,026,273 2,352,471,732
2024512 318 - REBES REHAF] At 31 December 2024, the interest rate swaps held for hedging
Rig IR 5B RS AE5626387,0007T amounted to HK$5,626,387,000 (2023: HK$788,730,000).
(2023412 A318 : ##788,730,0007T) °
BEAEENSHTEGLSEEARE - Trading includes the Group's principal risk taking positions in financial
BHTEPHRSESHNEHREHME instruments, positions which arise from the execution of trade orders
ERER - URABHHEMRK G ITEMEEE from customers and market making, and positions taken in order to
F0p=x: hedge other elements of the trading book.
RERIT (B BRAE
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(c)

TTHELRMI A (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

19 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

TTHEIEMARER (b) Fair value of derivatives
2024 2023
AREE AREE NREE NREE
BE =L BE =X
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BET T BET T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
EXTETER Currency derivatives 11,631,471 10,738,994 10,974,026 11,104,705
FEHTETE Interest rate derivatives 7,733,606 7,654,799 8,440,135 8,303,572
19,365,077 18,393,793 19,414,161 19,408,277

EERYWHRIANITETANAAEE
AT RASER S AEmITE TRIRE

(c) Fairvalue of derivatives designated as hedging instruments

The following is a summary of the fair value of derivatives held for

mEBREI D AREBERE hedging purposes by product type entered into by the Group:
2024 2023
AREE DAREE AREE AREE
BE afE BE BE
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BT BT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
*‘J%él’] Interest rate contracts
— AREEE - Fair value hedge 129,035 30,785 3,488 -
AABEEFEERERERES TEER Fair value hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps that are
REENIBENANEBEAMSANEEE)Mm used to protect against changes in the fair value of certain fixed rate
IR N R4 B o assets or liabilities due to movements in the market interest rates.

—EMEFER
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19 TEEMIA(E

d) FTETAEMNSGTNEH

TREHASEREBBEEER (RN
)

Notes to the Financial Statements

19 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(d) Remaining life of derivatives

The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts of

ERNRTEEREAR) Sl9ITETA derivatives of the Group by relevant maturity grouping, based on the

BERSEIN remaining periods to settlement at the end of the reporting period:

2024
BRTFRNEREHE
Notional amounts with remaining life of
10 EESSF
Fob ] 1EHT  Over1yearto 5EHE
Total  1yearorless 5 years Over 5 years
BT T BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXRITETE Currency derivatives 1,298,487,270 1,191,590,285 105,785,270 1,111,715
AMEHGTAET A Interest rate derivatives 1,140,539,003 609,222,236 495,194,109 36,122,658
2,439,026,273 1,800,812,521 600,979,379 37,234,373
2023
RTFHNLETRE
Notional amounts with remaining life of
1EUEESE

1B TFEHRIAT  Overlyearto SELE
Total 1 year or less 5 years Over 5 years
AT BT BRI BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EX{THETHE Currency derivatives 1313795096  1,202,479,859 109,991,741 1,323,496
METETH Interest rate derivatives 1,038,676,636 513,821,360 487,328,921 37,526,355
2,352,471,732 1,716,301,219 597,320,662 38,849,851

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH
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(a)

EFEREBRRAEMIRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

20 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

EEEFNRAR K HMEREHEREERX (a) Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less

expected credit losses

2024 2023
BET T BEETIT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
DR ASTENEPERRBR Loans and advances to customers
at amortised cost
BEERNBRARTE Gross loans and advances to customers 217,229,934 220,850,976
— TEAME BB RS — Expected credit losses allowances (2,494,528) (1,193,248)
214,735,406 219,657,728
AR EERABRED Loans and advances to customers at fair value
ERERERBR through profit and loss 11,960,075 5,435,290
226,695,481 225,093,018
HAnBRIE Other accounts 13,565,821 13,222,978
— TBHEEIBRER — Expected credit losses allowances (1,143,203) (813,162)
— HAb R E2ERH — Other impairment allowances (17,500)
12,405,118 12,409,816
239,100,599 237,502,834
ZEZFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

20 EFERREBRRHMIRE (2) 20 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)

(b) RITEDTHTNEFERRBR (b) Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry sectors
AR BETEETHN ST EREE SR The following economic sector analysis is based on categories and
ERR([2ER])) MEANSBERERE definitions used by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA"):

H o
2024 2023
EFERR REEF BEPERR HEZP
BREE ERRBR B 4aEE ERRER
Gross loans Impaired loans Gross loans  Impaired loans
and advances and advances and advances and advances
to customers to customers to customers to customers
BEFR  BETR BMTR  BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IHeR Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEER - Property development 6,566,953 988,181 7,042,615 1,160,060
—MEEKE - Property investment 22,837,176 156,345 22,474,814 149,585
—TREE ~ Financial concerns 25,982,832 51,382 22,989,260 51,382
— B4 - Stockbrokers 1,966,095 - 1,497,664 -
—HERTEXE ~ Wholesale and retail trade 8,716,204 322,834 8,761,242 371,978
—BUER - Manufacturing 5,566,953 34,983 5,904,061 124,833
- BHhEHERE - Transport and transport equipment 3,298,519 - 3,385,442 -
— IREEE B ~ Recreational activities 205,698 - 660,273 -
— BB ~ Information technology 600,865 - 598,783 -
— Hf - Others 12,638,358 80,945 9,596,138 79,738
fEA Individuals
-BEIEEBEER — Loans for the purchase of flats under
gl [RAZERS the Home Ownership Scheme,
BEEE R[S Private Sector Participation Scheme
EHEFENET and Tenants Purchase
B Scheme 13,767 - 13,970 -
—BEEMEEWENE - Loans for the purchase of other
= residential properties 24,382,678 71,640 22,343,811 49,289
—ERARER - Credit card advances 864,995 6,167 619,417 4,851
— Hfh - Others 14,784,675 39,103 16,951,606 90,927
EREAFERANER R Gross loans and advances for use
BB in Hong Kong 128,425,768 1,751,580 122,839,096 2,082,643
BHmE Trade finance 7,153,152 41,957 5,524,125 103,156
EBRBIMERMEF K Gross loans and advances for
R use outside Hong Kong 93,611,089 3,084,778 97,923,045 2,981,621
EFERRBRAE Gross loans and advances to customers 229,190,009 4,878,315 226,286,266 5,167,420

1o PERT (B BRAT
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20 BEFERRBRREMIRE () 20 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
(0 EFERRERNEHAENEAHEERX () Reconciliation of ECL allowances and gross carrying amount for
EFEWEHER loans and advances to customers and other accounts
2024
E1PEER E2REER EIRER s
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BETT B¥TR  BETR  B%TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEHEERXRERE ECL allowances
2024%F1H1H At 1 January 2024 324,697 644,482 1,037,231 2,006,410
B® Transfer:
—BEAFIEER — Transfer to Stage 1 6,046 (6,046) - -
— 8 AR - Transfer to Stage 2 (7,320) 7,320 - -
— B A IR — Transfer to Stage 3 (279) (571,971) 572,250 -
PEEREE EA 2 TBHIEE  Changes arising from transfer
BREFEEFTEFE  of stages (4,993) 182,296 960,530 1,137,833
R F e b Net charge/(reversal) for the year
EENEFF arising from net change in
#hn, (=) exposures 80,597 (31,640) (2,989) 45,968
[ By 2 RN AR 7Y Bk 5 Changes in risk parameters and model inputs 89,136 3,583 2,323,423 2,416,142
2 H B Amount written-offs - - (2,061,566) (2,061,566)
H b & E) Other movements 1 - 92,943 92,944
2024%12H31H At 31 December 2024 487,885 228,024 2,921,822 3,637,731
2024
E1PER SE2PEER SE3PEER e
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IRE#AE Gross carrying amount
20241811 At 1 January 2024 220,355,148 7,332,795 5,979,978 233,667,921
B/ Transfer:
—EAFIPEER ~ Transfer to Stage 1 782,691 (778,794) (3,897) -
—BAB2ER ~ Transfer to Stage 2 (2,971,083) 2,973,245 (2,162) -
— B AEIEER — Transfer to Stage 3 (372,753) (2,102,145) 2,474,898 -
[\ Bzl A ) AL Net change in exposures (1,065,507)  (163,060)  (465,332) (1,693,899)
1z tH B Amount written-offs - - (2,061,566) (2,061,566)
H fh Other movements - - 421,281 421,281
2024%12H31H At 31 December 2024 216,728,496 7,262,041 6,343,200 230,333,737

—EoER PN
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20 EFERREBRRHMIRE (2) 20 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)

(0 EFEXRBINEEHALEBNEHEERX (c) Reconciliation of ECL allowances and gross carrying amount for

EEWLER (&) loans and advances to customers and other accounts (continued)

T REZRRB(EBVBREEL)Eo5Mm Summary of financial assets to which subject to the impairment
FETEEREEBRANEREE requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied:

2024
E1RE FE2MER FEIRER Wz
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BETT RA¥TR  BETx  B¥TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

IREAE Gross carrying amount
BEPEREBXK Loans and advances to customers 205,107,355 7,244,227 4,878,352 217,229,934
E BRI (GEi) Other accounts (note i) 11,621,141 17,814 1,464,848 13,103,803
216,728,496 7,262,041 6,343,200 230,333,737
2023
FIRER FOMRER FIMRER HEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEHAZ B8 K 2 ECL allowances
2023F1 A1 H At 1 January 2023 702,523 423,007 746,212 1,871,742
=i Transfer:
—EAF IR — Transfer to Stage 1 58,244 (51,631) (6,613) -
— B AF R — Transfer to Stage 2 (72,492) 72,555 (63) -
— 8 A3 - Transfer to Stage 3 (45,195) (252,955) 298,150 -
PEEREE B E A 2 FBHAEE  Changes arising from transfer
BREFBENIEFE  of stages (51,397) 239,916 2,529,509 2,718,028
=)o g mbE - i Net (reversal)/charge for the year
EENEFF arising from net change in
(EI#), & exposures (90,179) 74,179 407,382 391,382
BB 2 HFEAEUEEE)  Changes in risk parameters and model inputs (176,807) 139,411 (37,396)
ZiH R Amount written-offs - - (2918737)  (2,918,737)
HEs) Other movements - - (18,609) (18,609)
202312 A31H At 31 December 2023 324,697 644,482 1,037,231 2,006,410

112 ER1T (BB BIRAF
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20 BEFERRBRKEMKRE (&)

() FFEXRBINEREAENEMEEERX

Notes to the Financial Statements

20

()

Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

Reconciliation of ECL allowances and gross carrying amount for

EEWLER (&) loans and advances to customers and other accounts (continued)
2023
FIRER FoMEER FEIMEER 4%
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETIT BETIT BETIT BT
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FREE Gross carrying amount
20231 A1 H At 1 January 2023 238,931,488 9,805,211 4,660,605 253,397,304
Y
@iz Transfer;
—BAE IR — Transfer to Stage 1 4,705,103  (4,697,960) (7,143) -
—EAFIMEER ~ Transfer to Stage 2 (6,900,014) 6,941,993 (41,979) -
— B AEIMEER — Transfer to Stage 3 (1521,943)  (3,787,570) 5,309,513 -
[E\ e ik O A 55 24 Net change in exposures (14,859,486) (928,879)  (1,334,568) (17,122,933)
1% SRR Amount written-offs - (2,918,737)  (2,918,737)
E b & E) Other movements - - 312,287 312,287
2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023 220,355,148 7,332,795 5,979,978 233,667,921
“E_MFER
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(c)

Notes to the Financial Statements

EEEREBARAKEMIRE (&) 20 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
EFERRBRNEHAENFAREERL () Reconciliation of ECL allowances and gross carrying amount for
EEWLER (&) loans and advances to customers and other accounts (continued)
T REZRRB(EBVBREEL)Eo5Mm Summary of financial assets to which subject to the impairment
FEHERHEEBRANEREE requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied:
2023
E1PEER FEIPEER E3PEER ek
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BT T T T T T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
RERE Gross carrying amount
BEPEREBMK Loans and advances to customers 208,350,761 7,332,795 5,167,420 220,850,976
E BRI (GEi) Other accounts (note i) 12,004,387 - 812,558 12,816,945
220,355,148 7,332,795 5,979,978 233,667,921
5T Note:

D) R2024F 128318 - F=EEMNEAMERE
MTERRE BB R R 11,143,043,0007T
(20234 : #%812,558,0007T) °

i) BREAENIBEHEERXERRER
FERFBFEMAEREMMIRCEBNTE
BEEN)FETETERIEEERRN
TREE - MEAMBARNRAZINE
FERRBHREEMEETOEMERES
ENR(EBMBREER) BIFRER
ERREOEMERE ©

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

i) For other accounts in stage 3, ECL allowances of HK$1,143,043,000 is
made at 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$812,558,000).

ii) The gross carrying amounts and related ECL allowances have included
the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers and
other financial assets which are subject to ECL measurements under
HKFRS 9. “Other accounts” as included with the “Loans and advances
to customers and other accounts” presented within the consolidated
statement of financial position have also included some assets which
are not subject to impairment requirements under HKFRS 9.
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(d)

(e)

EFERKRBRREMRE (F)

Notes to the Financial Statements

20 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

REEFERE B (d) Impaired loans and advances to customers
2024 2023
BETT BT IT
HKS$’'000 HKS'000
BEXEFERRBRERE Gross impaired loans and advances to customers 4,878,315 5,167,420
TEERE BB R — 3R Expected credit losses allowances — Stage 3 (1,778,743) (224,673)
3,099,572 4,942,747

HEERNBARBBERP Gross impaired loans and advances as a % of

ERRBFATEN T DX total loans and advances to customers 2.13% 2.28%

EEROBERFPREERLRBRNEE
AEEE3,110,251,0007T (20234 @ B
3,374,297,0007T) * AR RIEEIE - K17
REZREEEIFAYME  URTFHRASE
ERIRE o

MEHENEHBSRNERE
EFEFMBRBIEAEFRE - RIERE
HEHEREPHRENMEHEAARERE
FHOEEAR - ELARBEE0FHIA
FEVeE - WREEARREEKEEE
BE - -@MAMEREBANRENSIEREE
@M ERRENT

(e)

As at 31 December 2024, the secured gross impaired loans and
advances to customers amounts to HK$3,110,251,000 (2023:
HK$3,374,297,000) are backed by collateral, collateral mainly comprises
mortgages on residential or commercial properties and cash placed
with the Group.

Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Loans and advances to customers include net investment in motor
vehicles, and equipment leased to customers under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts which have the characteristics of finance
leases. These contracts usually run for an initial period of 20 years or
above, with an option of acquiring the leased asset at nominal value.
The total minimum lease payments receivable under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts and their present values at the year end
are as follows:

2024 2023
BREHRE =EHE
HRNEE BEHE AHRAIRE mEEE
Present value [RE bt Present value (BE ks
of the minimum  Total minimum  of the minimum Total minimum

lease payments

lease payments

lease payments

lease payments

BT BETT BB BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEAR Within 1 year 5,659 7,254 6,374 8,421
VELEESE After 1 year but within 5 years 25,286 29,945 25,552 32,152
SENE After 5 years 32,244 34,584 38,812 42,757
63,189 71,783 70,738 83,330
EHEEERER Expected credit losses allowances
L - Stage | (18) )
BERENHESRMN Net investment in finance leases and
FRE hire purchase contracts 63,171 70,736
—EMER
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21 B

TXH 2024512 A31 B REFHE
B BESBBEBREANENTIEWBAR
15 o BRIER B - TRIFESRMHERIY

Notes to the Financial Statements

21 Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the principal subsidiaries

at 31 December 2024 which materially affect the results, assets or

liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

R - otherwise stated.
ATEERE
SRMRL,/ ERTR R 47
REHE BRRK BAE
Place of Particulars of Proportion of
ARER incorporation/ EEERES TEEY issued  shares directly
Name of company operation Kind of legal entity Principal activities share capital  held by the Bank
ERARERLRR B BREERT ESSE BET
Carford International Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability Property holding HK$2 100%
Company
PERTER (FE) BRAF E BRAEERA Eiigh] AR
(T ERITER (RE)]) 1,000,000,0007T
CITIC Bank International (China) Mainland China Limited Liability Banking RMB1,000,000,000 100%
Limited ("CBI (China)") Company
PERBREERAR &R BREMERTF R 7 85,000,0007C
CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability Insurance broker HK$5,000,000 100%
Company
BAEAMBERAA Bk BRAEARA HERE 75 #200,000,0007C
HKCB Finance Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability Consumer financing HK$200,000,000 100%

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Company
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22 YEREE 22 Property and equipment
&R
BEERE
kEE
REYHE Hibhypz Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and #zE
properties premises equipment Total
BT BT T BET T BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R GE : Cost or valuation:
R2024%F1 B1H At 1 January 2024 401,335 616,996 1,137,439 2,155,770
#hn Additions - - 124,883 124,883
EER7ibaN | Reclassification 20,500 (20,500) - -
HeE Disposals - - (34,400) (34,400)
EXCAC-EP S 6 (Deficit)/surplus on revaluation (12,762) 73,838 - 61,076
BB RFTINE Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation - (56,522) - (56,522)
PE 5 3% Exchange adjustments - - (3,945) (3,945)
720245F12H831H At 31 December 2024 409,073 613,812 1,223,977 2,246,862
72023F1 A1 H At 1 January 2023 399,492 616,996 1,008,372 2,024,860
#n Additions - - 291,416 291,416
e Disposals - - (161,422) (161,422)
ELRTUE Surplus on revaluation 1,843 - - 1,843
P& 3 F Exchange adjustments - - (927) (927)
2023412 831H At 31 December 2023 401,335 616,996 1,137,439 2,155,770
ZIHE - Accumulated depreciation:
202451 A1 R At 1 January 2024 - 398,174 784,916 1,183,090
REZHE (H5E9) Charge for the year (note 9) - 14,929 124,877 139,806
HIHE L RETINE Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation - (56,522) - (56,522)
& it =] # Written back on disposals - - (34,030) (34,030)
Rk Exchange adjustments - - (3,492) (3,492)
72024%12H31H At 31 December 2024 - 356,581 872,271 1,228,852
R2023F1 A1H At 1 January 2023 - 382,707 823,753 1,206,460
REFZHE (H5E9) Charge for the year (note 9) - 15,467 116,388 131,855
£ 5 iy [ 8% Written back on disposals - - (154,629) (154,629)
P& b Exchange adjustments - - (596) (596)
72023128318 At 31 December 2023 - 398,174 784,916 1,183,090
BREFE Net book value:
7120245 12H31H At 31 December 2024 409,073 257,231 351,706 1,018,010
202312 831H At 31 December 2023 401,335 218,822 352,523 972,680
—E-FER
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(a) REWEAABEFE
(i) 2AREEER

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Property and equipment (continued)

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

EEF
Level 3
2024 2023
BET T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
REMEQAABEATEMH Recurring fair value measurement using
AEEE significant unobservable input
REYEE Investment properties
-&B ~ Held in Hong Kong 391,900 378,899
— BBEIM R - Held outside Hong Kong 17,173 22,436
409,073 401,335

HZE2024FM2023F 128318 £5F
VAR 28 2 I SRS KOS BIEE
3B ASKE L - AEEBREZNIW
HFHRERAAEBEEAFAERNE
Koo

R2024512 8318 2BB ISR
TEHASBENREMESHRS -
MEBBEREUALAHAMGEEAREER
HE(EAUBREEADF 13RI
AEBEAEIHAREBENTEE B
A B EGIEXAAE%12,762,000
T (20234 : EffHHas AHE%E1,843,000
To) WEFFAAREBHRE R

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into
or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

All investment properties of the Group were revalued and
assessed by the management of the Group at 31 December
2024 with reference to the property valuation report
conducted by an independent firm of surveyors. The basis of
the property valuation was market value, which is consistent
with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13, 'Fair Value
Measurement’. The revaluation deficit of HK$12,762,000 (2023:
a revaluation surplus of HK$1,843,000) was recognised by the
Group and has been charged to the income statement.
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REMEAAEBETE (B)

(ii)

(iii)

MRBEERFEIERN LI AEBEHK (ii)

EIBANAABESERBERFER

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Property and equipment (continued)

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the

fair value hierarchy

The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3

WEBIT : fair value measurements are as follows:

2024 2023
BET T T T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
"1 AR At 1 January 401,335 399,492
BHoBEEEMYERERE Reclassification from other premises 20,500 -
NABEEFHE Revaluation (12,762) 1,843
M12H31H At 31 December 409,073 401,335

FIBEMAAEBEIEER (iii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
HEEN FEATE R B EUE &2
Valuation technique Unobservable input Range
wEMZE M5 LLBE MEEEREE (T:E) ~15% to 15%

Investment properties

EEBXBENIMERVREDERN
RABERFKAMGLEEEE @ A
2ESNBEANENE TS REEE
RABEE  LLECTHMEEER - 1§
MABRANEEYXEENG(E I
& REURHENKREEERRS

FHROBETEL -

Market comparison approach

Premium (discount) on quality
of properties

The fair value of investment properties located in or outside
Hong Kong is determined by using the market comparison
approach by reference to the recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per-square-foot basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group's
properties compared to the recent sales. The carrying amount

of the investment properties would be changed according to

the price per-square-foot.

—EMEFER
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22 YIERRZRE(E)

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Property and equipment (continued)

(b) BEVMEREMYENREFESNTOT : (b) The analysis of net book value of investment properties and
other premises is as follows:
2024 2023
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HE Leasehold
B Held in Hong Kong
— RHEAEHE (BBS0OFREm) — Long-term leases (over 50 years unexpired) 232,200 235,500
—HRHEE (10FES0FREM) - Medium-term leases (10 to 50 years unexpired) 416,931 362,221
BB @ Held outside Hong Kong
— FEIEE (10FZ=50FKfEW) - Medium-term leases (10 to 50 years unexpired) 17,173 22,436
666,304 620,157

KEMEELENTH S W ABLE BB
9,008,0007T (20234 : ¥ 7,381,0007T) ©

AEBETEMYEERBAFERANFE
HEITEM - IRELYER UK EFIT
EAR  NEBER2024F 12831 BHEA
) S AR EDFEFE B8 #894,0007T (2023 4F -
59180007 ) °

() BEREELHEHHNMERRE ()
AEBERBLEHEN T AHLREYE -
EBEMENSONEER —R/2E3F - &
BADEREEZ A ZRERD - BN BERD
BRI

AEBR A ERNRE MY ENZE
HERBHARREERSARERNT -

The gross rental income arising from investment properties is
HK$9,008,000 (2023: HK$7,381,000).

Some of the other premises of the Group were revalued in previous
years and current year. The net book value of such other premises
of the Group at 31 December 2024 would have been HK$894,000
(2023: HKS$918,000) had they been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation.

Property and equipment leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with
an option to renew the leases after that date, at which time all terms
are renegotiated.

The Group's total future minimum lease receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases for investment and subletting
properties are as follows:

2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
16 7A Within 1 year 7,927 6,946
TFAEZESF After 1 year but within 5 years 11,391 1,633
SELLE Over 5 years 291 -
19,609 8,579

RIEIRTT (ERR) BRR AR

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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FHREEE 23 Right-of-use assets
HERHA
#HE®EF  Equipmentand W
Leased premises others Total

BT T BET T BET T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Cost:
2024F1 A1 H At 1 January 2024 1,280,889 1,926 1,282,815
&N Additions 84,781 1,947 86,728
AR ERR Reductions (17,894) (1,919) (19,813)
P Adjustments (13,116) - (13,116)
ME 5, B Exchange adjustments (6,701) 25 (6,676)
720245128318 At 31 December 2024 1,327,959 1,979 1,329,938
72023F 1 A1H At 1 January 2023 1,638,274 1,887 1,640,161
N Additions 375,952 - 375,952
RHR Reductions (733,399) - (733,399)
I Adjustments (613) - (613)
VE 5, e B Exchange adjustments 675 39 714
7220235128318 At 31 December 2023 1,280,889 1,926 1,282,815
ZIHE - Accumulated depreciation:
R2024F1 A18 At 1 January 2024 301,348 1,896 303,244
REZIE (MaEo) Charge for the year (note 9) 237,452 531 237,983
RER Reductions (18,210) (1,919) (20,129)
P Adjustments (8,168) - (8,168)
PE 5, 3 =K Exchange adjustments (3,614) (11) (3,625)
720245128318 At 31 December 2024 508,808 497 509,305
7202351 A1H At 1 January 2023 771,754 1,554 773,308
REEZHE (HFE9) Charge for the year (note 9) 262,021 305 262,326
AR Reductions (733,349) - (733,349)
b H B Exchange adjustments 922 37 959
HR2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023 301,348 1,896 303,244
BRESFE - Net book value:
7M2024%F12H831H At 31 December 2024 819,151 1,482 820,633
#2023F 12 A31H At 31 December 2023 979,541 30 979,571

Q04FHEMNBE AL BB AEBEE
235,636,0007T (20234 © /& #238,015,000

JT) °

The total cash outflow for leases in 2024 was HK$235,636,000 (2023:

HK$238,015,000).

—EomER
Annual Report 2024

121



122

M TSR M

24 EREE

Notes to the Financial Statements

24 Intangible assets

EL -G
Software
BET T
HK$'000
B Cost:
R2024%1 818 At 1 January 2024 1,844,922
2 Additions 330,889
HE Disposals (121)
PE 5 A Exchange adjustments (1,242)
A2024%F12H31H At 31 December 2024 2,174,448
R2023F1 818 At 1 January 2023 1,685,551
&N Additions 159,479
B Disposals (86)
P& 5 R Exchange adjustments (22)
72023128318 At 31 December 2023 1,844,922
ZotiEey - Accumulated amortisation:
R2024F1 818 At 1 January 2024 1,443,734
REFEH (MHFE9) Charge for the year (note 9) 194,117
HE Disposals (121)
ERRE Exchange adjustments (1,117)
A2024%F12H31H At 31 December 2024 1,636,613
R2023F1A1R8 At 1 January 2023 1,231,607
REFEH (MH5E9) Charge for the year (note 9) 212,262
HE Disposals (86)
Rk Exchange adjustments (49)
202312 831H At 31 December 2023 1,443,734
BRTESE Net book value:
72024%F12H831H At 31 December 2024 537,835
MR2023%F12A31H At 31 December 2023 401,188

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BEFEX 25 Deposits from customers
2024 2023
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
EHA R A RERPIFR Demand deposits and current deposits 36,488,546 34,130,873
REFR Savings deposits 63,197,894 51,086,060
TEHA - BHA X 58 BRI AN17 30 Time, call and notice deposits 271,627,144 255,513,766
371,313,584 340,730,699

UARBESABZNEREE

26 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2024 2023
BET T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEREFER Short positions of debt securities 99,849 8,583
BELHERERMEER 27 Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BRBHEFERIN By types of counterparty
R1T Banks 2,294,942 2,835,191
LAREBESABZNIREMEE Carrying amount at fair value through profit or loss 2,294,942 2,835,191
R1T Banks 7,652,423 15,537,207
FFIRIT S B Non-bank financial institutions - 763,540
DR AT ENREER Carrying amount at amortised cost 7,652,423 16,300,747
&5t Total amount 9,947,365 19,135,938
RIERWER 2 M By types of collateral
&% Bonds 9,947,365 19,135,938

FEHLRBRZY  (ERBHRmEENS
REEREIEFER © 720249 K 2023412
A318 @ AEBREHABERYEND&EE

MRHHEFORS °

collateral has been transferred to counterparties.

The Group did not derecognize financial assets used as collateral in
connection with financial assets sold under repurchase agreements.
As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, no legal title of the

—EMEFER
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28 CORITENE 28 Certificates of deposit issued
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
RN AT E At amortised cost 1,760,216 1,561,841
ERTEAZBENEBIND TR FRRIFE Certificates of deposit were issued by the Bank's overseas branches
1T and subsidiaries.
29 HEMBRRRARNAEBHR 29 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial
position
(a) HEMBEMRRRATHWABRHES ! (@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents:
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BEBENEH Hong Kong Profits Tax 258,002 159,115
ABEAINRIE Taxation outside Hong Kong 25,023 40,449
283,025 199,564
Hepo: Of which:
Al E IR Tax recoverable (290) (9,582)
AHFHIEEE Current tax liabilities 283,315 209,146
283,025 199,564

124] p{ER1T (BB BIRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(b) CEANEEDREEREE
ERGAVBRRNRERNELERE (B
&)/ BENEARAFERANEEINT -

Notes to the Financial Statements

29 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial
position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

DRAREESA
FEEKE LEVEES Efp2ERED
BBABNE BEER E SRREN
Depreciation Impairment EftRE EffEER
allowancesin  allowances for Revaluation Revaluation
excess of related loansand  adjustmentsfor adjustments for HEgx Heth o
depreciation advances properties Fvodl Tax losses Others Total
BT BRI BRI BRI BRI BT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERERA Deferred tax arising from:
#2041 A8 At 1 January 2024 99,556 (151,962) 878 (114,998) - (19,425) (185,951)
FalEEN Charged/(credited) to
s/ (=%) consolidated income
(W&E12) statement (note 12) 21,190 48,884 (477) - (940) (7,831) 60,826
EfEnE Charged to reserves - - - 123,744 - - 123,744
EEREMBEZ  Exchange and other adjustments (12) 1,794 - - - 373 2,155
120245128318 At 31 December 2024 120,734 (101,284) 401 8,746 (940) (26,883) 774
B03%E1R1R At 1 January 2023 88,971 (209,071) %1 (279,701) - (17,045) (415,885)
FelEEN Charged/(credited) to
s /() consolidated income
(FitzE12) statement (note 12) 10570 56,561 (82) - - (2266) 64,783
FrEmEE Charged to reserves - - - 164,703 - - 164,703
5 REMEE Exchange and other adjustments 15 548 ] - - (114) 448
B2023%12A318  At31 December 2023 99,556 (151962) 878 (114,993) - (19.425) (185,951)
—EMEFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

29 FREUBMRRRARWAESN (2) 29 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial
position (continued)
(b) ERAMELHEEEREE (F) (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)
2024 2023
BT T BEET T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEir & W ISR R IERR Net deferred tax assets recognised on the
FIELERIREE consolidated statement of financial position (874) (187,145)
TEfr G MBI R 1ER Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on the
FIRERIBAE consolidated statement of financial position 1,648 1,194
774 (185,951)
ERLEMEMEERELEFRSHaEd - &8 Among the deferred tax assets and liabilities, the whole amount is
AERBEBEFEARTZEARKESHFE - expected to be recovered or settled more than twelve months after
the year-end.
(0 XREINELEHRBEE (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
BLE2024F 202312 A3V BIEFER - During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the amount of
REBRRGAHEBRAERNELERIEER deferred tax assets recognised on tax losses are immaterial.
E o
RIEIRTT (ERR) BRR AR

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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30 HhAaE 30 Otherliabilities
2024 2023
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT N Eo b JE < BR 1A K 2 Accruals and other payables and provisions 12,777,167 14,066,351
BEERARER Deposit from an immediate holding company 1,392,969 1,335,623
14,170,136 15,401,974
2024128318 - LERREBEEHER As at 31 December 2024, included above is the expected credit losses
AEEREROBIBRERF2BEBBES allowances on loan commitments and guarantees for Stage 1 and
BREHEFT DR EB76,932,0007T &7 Stage 2 amounted to HK$76,932,000 and HK$16,825,000 respectively
#16,825,0007T (20234 : FI1FEEL : B (2023: Stage 1: HK$82,361,000 and Stage 2: HK$1,300,000).
82,361,0007C K F2BE ER ¢ /& #51,300,0007T) °
202412318 » IEBRK AT ENE As at 31 December 2024, the amount of interest payables from
BEBERMNMNESREAE2213,197,0007T financial liabilities at amortised costs were HK$2,213,197,000 (2023:
(20234 : #%2,698,076,0007T) ° HK$2,698,076,000).
BRELR 31 Loan capital
2024 2023
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BIEZE - BB, Subordinated notes, at amortised cost:
PR2029F B HRFE B & 54.625% + EIfE  US$500 million Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
500,000,000 JTHY & 18 =45 at 4.625%, due 2029* - 3,903,198
2033 F B HIF B X 56.00% * H{A US$500 million Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
500,000,000 3 JT H) 14 (& = 45 ** at 6.00%, due 2033** 3,859,664 3,902,978
3,859,664 7,806,176
* AITIRB A LR EAEIB AT 8| R 20194 * Under the Programme and supplemental offering circulars released in

DABHEMBmABESEE - R2019F2A
28 HE 1T fE500,000,000% 7T (HEB
3,925,600,0007T) KB ERIE - ZEERE
FE(BERBT )N _MEAEK - 1%
BEEEMNEAFREENR4625%  FFF
IKEZE2024F2 A28 B 1 - BEBAETTE
BOE  ZERMEMANERBREERSFH
ERREEFEB RN 2% FRREHNE
o mEBBRTERBHARIERAA]
b WHA2020F2 A28 HEIER - Kpd2024
FoR8AAEIBIRAIERD - LEHER
202442 A28 H R IRI TR FEIEM -

February 2019, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 28 February 2019
with a face value of US$500 million (equivalent to HK$3,925.6 million)
which is qualified as Basel lll-compliant Tier-2 capital. The notes carry
interest at a fixed rate of 4.625% per annum, payable semi-annually
until the first call date on 28 February 2024, and thereafter fixed at the
interest rate of the prevailing five-year US Treasury bonds yield plus
2.25% per annum if the notes are not redeemed on the call date. The
notes are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
mature on 28 February 2029 with an optional redemption date falling
on 28 February 2024. The notes were fully redeemed by the Bank on 28
February 2024.

—EMEFER
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31 BREXRE)

*%

AATIRAR LA £ AR AR AR ST 8 R 2023 F
2 ABEREAREEBE - R2023F12
A5 8347 M{A500,000,000% 7T (SEBE
3,913,900,0007T) B ERE - ZEBERE
FE(BEBBEIN_RERER - 18
EZENZAEFFEER6.00%  FFFIR
BE2028F 128581t - BEEEAGITE
BRI  RROZEHNEBRERERSFH
EBREEAFEES R 65%FRREHE
E o BLEBBRERERBMARSMBRAF
b 2033812 ASBEIE - Kpt2028
F12 5B AEIERAER -
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Loan capital (continued)

*%

Under the Programme and supplemental offering circulars released in
December 2023, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 5 December
2023 with a face value of US$500 million (equivalent to HK$3,913.9
million) which is qualified as Basel lll-compliant Tier-2 capital. The notes
carry interest at a fixed rate of 6.00% per annum, payable semi-annually
until the first call date on 5 December 2028, and thereafter fixed at the
interest rate of the prevailing five-year US Treasury bonds yield plus
1.65% per annum if the notes are not redeemed on the call date. The
notes are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
mature on 5 December 2033 with an optional redemption date falling
on 5 December 2028.

32 BXRKHEE 32 Capital and reserves
(@ B’ (@) Share capital
() ERTRAREER: (i)  Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
2024 2023
[N A
Share capital Share capital
&S ] BT T EREN gE! AT T
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000
P1ATE 128318 At] January/31 December 12,111,121,568 18,404,013 12,111,121,568 18,404,013
BIBBFBCRTUEDI) B354 + 17 In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies
) E AR AR o Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a
par value.

(i) FABTHRSG (i) Sharesissued during the year
HZE2024F12A31B1IEFE - A774 The Bank did not issue any shares during the year ended 31
BT (20235F © M) ° December 2024 (2023: Nil).

b) KE (b) Dividend

EARFAEABRERBREIROKE - 75
BRERAITORRAE LREH RN

’E

o T E BRI ERFHMLZAARITH

RIREE

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as

declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at

shareholders’ meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Bank's residual assets.



M TSR M

32 BAXRNKGGHE(E)

(c) f#&fE
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

HERBEN
B
EXFRERNEBREL - DHTADIK
TR -

—Ri#E
—REFEHERNREENEL &K
R W HAI IR TR

EXERERE
EXEZRFEREEEMARBRERIINE
BOMBHREAMEENELZE - I
REBEM 2 REM S SRR -

YIRE L
MEBHFEEEREMNE2)ENS
AAREERE - BN DIRTECR
A SRR BB (R RG] (F622
B)FoRER  ELHHETBRE
BIHEA

REEMHE
BREBLRBEERGEERRANIN
ARBEFAEMEZEKENS B
BNRFAREBEZS - WRIEM
A2V B B ST BUR BRI

EEBBLE

RIFFEAMARAIRE » A1TH
2EBANEFIRT - PERTER
(FE)  FERESFORRENF
HEE10%ERTRED IR T RBIRHEE
BBHATE  BEEZAERBKRLBERZX

TEPRAR 2 50% H) 7K o

Notes to the Financial Statements

32 Capital and reserves (continued)

()

Nature and purpose of components of reserves

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Capital reserve
The capital reserve was created upon acquisition and is not
available for distribution to shareholders.

General reserve
The general reserve was set up from the transfer of retained
earnings, and is available for distribution to shareholders.

Exchange differences reserve

The exchange differences reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statement of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2(q).

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 2(j) and is not
available for distribution to shareholders because it does not
constitute realised profits within the meaning of Part 6 of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Investment revaluation reserve
The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 2(c)(iv).

Statutory reserve

Under the relevant legislation of Mainland China, the Bank’s
wholly-owned PRC subsidiary, CBI (China) is required to transfer
10% of its profit after taxation to a non-distributable statutory
reserve until such reserve has reached 50% of its registered
share capital.

—EomER
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32 BAXRNKGGHE(E)

() fEEBEBMERBEN(E
(vii) SEE—MRi#E
REBEEE—REEBRERERITE
R(RE) RARITRFDITRIEE —
R - REPBEAMIBITEAR &
FRITBER (R FRILEE—R
i BRNEFENFEIE &
BRI —RERABREARERTE
OB ELARR - RIMEEESER
A EEAEE BNREREEN.5%
FTE o BERPIRITER - AN1TIRP
DITHRBRIETE —RFHEH - SBHRR
PIDITHRE & F - B BIEmN—
MEBLUBH A ERENELERR
% AHR IR RIS A E AT
et EHEIREEaNERAR
WA A% ° JEE —MEBEHEN RS
EERHER D o

(viii) FREBEF
RITEBAB(RITERD ) BHEAEE
EEMRE ATEERERETHE
BERDCHERBEEBLINK S X
AREENERLARNBEERRS
o LERNSERE  BENEHE
BEEEREBRFAANEE - R20244F
12A31H - RE&RAFBEFELE
AU BAIRE TATRENESEA
B #52,512,256,0007C (20234 : B
2,219,486,0007T) ° BRREE AT ATTR

(d) REEHNTDIRME

MR2024F12A831H  BEFHEB(R
AEAI) (B622F) Be MR TR
E AR FATHRENFEEAR
B 1024,291,539,0007T (20234 : B
22,400,674,0007C) ° BA_EA] 5 K 89 7
A8 24,291,539,0007T (20234 : B
22,400,674,00070 ) R EMT5E43(b) TR S
ARITHVR B4 R 1 26,817,443,0007T (2023
G BH04641,308,0007T) 2 EHERETE
EEREMREEBERIRIEEYENRERE
S R E A TEE B o AT DB
4B A B FEESE B 15 2,512,256,000 7T (2023
& B#02219486,0007T) * e BARNIKEL A
RITEBASER -

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

32 Capital and reserves (continued)

()

(d)

Nature and purpose of components of reserves (continued)

(vii) Regulatory general reserve
The regulatory general reserve comprises the regulatory
general reserves of CBI (China) and the Macau branch of the
Bank. Pursuant to the banking regulations of Mainland China,
CBI (China) is required to set up a regulatory general reserve
through a direct appropriation from the current year profit, as
determined based on the 1.5% of the total risk assets at the
end of the reporting period to cover its unidentified potential
loss exposures. Pursuant to the banking regulations of Macau,
Macau branch of the Bank is required to set up a regulatory
general reserve in case accounting provision calculated from
Macau Financial Reporting Standards is less than the regulatory
provision as determined based on 1% of total credit exposure
at the end of reporting period through a direct appropriation
from the retained earnings to cover its unidentified potential
loss exposures. The regulatory general reserve forms part of the
equity of the Group.

(viii) Retained profits

A regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes by earmarking amounts in respect of impairment
losses recognised which the Bank will or may incur on loans
and advances. Movements in the reserve are earmarked directly
through retained profits and in consultation with the HKMA. At
31 December 2024, HK$2,512,256,000 (2023: HK$2,219,486,000)
was included in the retained profits in this respect, which
is distributable to equity holders of the Bank subject to
consultation with the HKMA.

Distributability of reserve

At 31 December 2024, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Bank, as calculated under
the provision of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), was HK$24,291,539,000 (2023: HK$22,400,674,000).
The difference between the aggregate distributable reserves of
HK$24,291,539,000 (2023: HK$22,400,674,000) and the Bank's retained
profits of HK$26,817,443,000 (2023: HK$24,641,308,000) as reported
in note 43(b) mainly represents the inclusion of general reserves
and the exclusion of unrealised revaluation gains on investment
properties and the above regulatory reserve of the Bank. Included in
the Bank’s retained profits was an amount of HK$2,512,256,000 (2023:
HK$2,219,486,000), which was regulatory reserve and the distribution
is subject to consultation with the HKMA.
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33 HttR#EIR 33 Other equity instruments

2024 2023
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000

TAI{E.600,000,0003 JTH) 7k B 7Y Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
FRBREERFZF* securities with US$600 million* 4,647,489 4,647,489

TAI{B.600,000,0003 JT ) 7k BB 7Y Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
ERBREERFH securities with US$600 million** 4,687,907 4,687,907
9,335,396 9,335,396

BIE2021F6 B K7 A8 HHETEIFIE
AT - ANITR2021F7 298 B/FA
(EZEBBE=)317 7 E(E /600,000,000
EIURKERIFERIBRERIIN—RERE
% o WE{E M A$600,000,0005 7T (FEHE
#54,663,240,0007T) BEIN—REXFEHFNE
BEARZ AR A T L R EREE R
B 7202657 A29 B & @R F1EE B 250
DR E R AFFIE325% o EEEFRETT
{FREEIE - 9 IREEMNFF KB IZE RS
FHEEHEESBEMNFEFER253%F R
F—REHER] -

REIERRIEH - EIN—BREAETHEE
ABRERSIWEIERF DR (BXDIR) B
o BEABTANEADIKE  RRE
FEH1 A28 M7 A29RREFES —IR o &K
TRILABATRE - BERUE DR - 71
ALETREEREN—RER  BES
HeERMBALEEDRE - A1TARER
TEHYIE AT 7T 115 0 o BR BRE 2 FT a I R R M
HRERESEEN—RERNBZTFNAEE -
BIEEECEREE (BB HH) G0 (F
628 )R FARES - BIERITHSH
BER  ARERBERHZERUTERAES
VR B B R E AR EEEN—
MERFEFERE - BlE2024F 12831 84F
)7 IR 5B 25 519,500,000 7T (55
BEE#152,375,0007T) (2023512 A318 -
19,500,000% 7T * E{E/E8152,372,0007T) °

Under the Programme and the original and supplemental offering
circulars released in June and July 2021, the Bank issued the US$600
million Basel Ill compliant Undated Non-Cumulative Subordinated
Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities on 29 July 2021. The AT1 Capital
Securities with a face value and principal amount of US$600 million
(equivalent to HK$4,663.24 million) are perpetual and listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and bear a coupon of 3.25%
per annum distribution rate until the first call date on 29 July 2026.
The distribution rate will be reset every five years if the AT1 Capital
Securities are not called by the Bank to a fixed rate equivalent to the
then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus 2.53% per annum.

According to the terms and conditions, the AT1 Capital Securities
confer a right to the holders to receive non-cumulative distributions
on the principal amount from, and including, the issue date at the
applicable distribution rate, payable semi-annually in arrears on 29
January and 29 July in each year. The Bank may at its sole discretion,
elect to cancel the distribution payment. The Bank may also at its sole
discretion, elect to redeem the AT1 Capital Securities subject to prior
written consent of the HKMA. The outstanding amount of AT1 Capital
Securities can be written down by the Bank following the occurrence of
a non-viability event as defined and set out in the terms and conditions.
At the sole discretion of the relevant Hong Kong Resolution Authority
following a non-viability event, the outstanding amount of AT1 Capital
Securities can be adjusted upon the exercise of Hong Kong Resolution
Authority Power in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Institutions (Resolution) Ordinance (Cap. 628). A distribution payment
of US$19,500,000 (equivalent to HK$152,375,000) was paid during the
year ended 31 December 2024 (for the year ended 31 December 2023:
US$19,500,000, equivalent to HK$152,372,000).
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*%

Bi%20214F6 A &20235F4 A3 MRt 2
MR EITEE - AITR2023F4HA22
HERE(EERME=)BT T EER
600,000,000 JT Bk BB FY IE R FEIE B RESN
—MERES o HHEE KA E600,000,000
E7T (51EB%4,703,340,0007T ) BEIN—H
BERBHFNBEBBARHMBERAR LT
EEETHER - 72027F4 822 B EEE
AiTFE 21 B BA AT 89 5 IR B3 B F I 4.80% ©
HEBRETEBERE oK EERHF
FIE IR E s FHERBREER SR NF
FIR2104%FHF—INEFER] o

IRIR G G - BN —MERE TFE
ANRRSIWBZERET DR (BRDIR) 80k
o REARTANBEASIKE  ERE
FEW4A2BM0OA22BIREEE—R o
RITAIABITRE  EERIUED IR -
MAABITREBRIZEIIN —RER - B
HFRISERMELEZEAE - RTAIR
YRELTE B9 FE AT AT IR 1505 ) 3R I e P &R 3K
RIGHEREREEEIIN-—RERBFTLENE
B o RIBE (S REE GEBHH)) E61)
(%628 ) R FEMIES - EIEAT1TH
EMELER  BEEEWREIERIITEE
BEEBEREERSE RERATHARKERE
IN—REREHMBEE - HE2024F 12 A31
HF A/ RN KB 528,800,000 7T
(S{E#1224,583,0007T) (2023412 A 31
H : 28,800,0003 7T ( FEHEHE 225,719,000
JL) ©

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

33 Other equity instruments (continued)

*%

Under the Programme and the original and supplemental offering
circulars released in June 2021 and April 2022, the Bank issued
the US$600 million Basel Il compliant Undated Non-Cumulative
Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities on 22 April 2022. The
AT1 Capital Securities with a face value and principal amount of US$600
million (equivalent to HK$4,703.34 million) are perpetual and listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and bear a coupon of 4.80%
per annum distribution rate until the first call date on 22 April 2027.
The distribution rate will be reset every five years if the AT1 Capital
Securities are not called by the Bank to a fixed rate equivalent to the
then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus 2.104% per annum.

According to the terms and conditions, the AT1 Capital Securities
confer a right to the holders to receive non-cumulative distributions
on the principal amount from, and including, the issue date at the
applicable distribution rate, payable semi-annually in arrears on 22
April and 22 October in each year. The Bank may at its sole discretion,
elect to cancel the distribution payment. The Bank may also at its sole
discretion, elect to redeem the AT1 Capital Securities subject to prior
written consent of the HKMA. The outstanding amount of AT1 Capital
Securities can be written down by the Bank following the occurrence of
a non-viability event as defined and set out in the terms and conditions.
At the sole discretion of the relevant Hong Kong Resolution Authority
following a non-viability event, the outstanding amount of AT1 Capital
Securities can be adjusted upon the exercise of Hong Kong Resolution
Authority Power in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Institutions (Resolution) Ordinance (Cap. 628). A distribution payment
of US$28,800,000 (equivalent to HK$224,583,000) was paid during the
year ended 31 December 2024 (for the year ended 31 December 2023:
US$28,800,000, equivalent to HK$225,719,000).
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34

(a)

mEBRERERMT 34 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement
REBANELCEER RSN FENER (a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from

operating activities

2024 2023
BETRT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REER Operating activities
PR A Profit before taxation 3,232,163 2,989,309
FREBERHE : Adjustments for non-cash items:
SRTABEPEEEL Expected credit losses charged on financial instruments 3,266,635 2,854,333
HEtEERMERL Impairment losses on other assets 17,500 -
HEUNRABEFAEMZEKE Net gain on disposal of financial investments at fair value
B2 IR E R through other comprehensive income (159,680) (73,638)
HEMERZEREVEES Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property and equipment and
(W) BE intangible assets (7,542) 6,735
REMEEGHBRX /(M) Revaluation loss/(gain) on investment properties 12,762 (1,843)
@l EANAREET ABER Net gain on financial instruments mandatorily classified
SRTEFhE at fair value through profit or loss (107,891) (4,076)
TEIE S Amortisation of deferred expenses 380,230 317,631
EREEHH Amortisation of intangible assets 194,117 212,262
MERBENE Depreciation on property and equipment 139,806 131,855
GRREERE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 237,983 262,326
BaEFRBWMA Dividend income from equity securities (2,804) (2,934)
EBERF S H Interest expense on loan capital 257,715 217,462
BN =% Foreign exchange differences 625,000 387,816
EEESEBANTE RN Operating profit before changes in working capital 8,085,994 7,297,238
TEEETF (LM, WD Net (increase)/decrease in operating assets
JREI A H A3 E A ERITI TR Placements with and advances to banks with original
e maturity beyond 3 months 5,593,597 (12,430,847)
BARESREE Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,536,337 (4,947,164)
REBEBAIEANEES Treasury bills with original maturity beyond 3 months 8,183,520 (22,064,124)
REHREAIEANFETRE Certificates of deposit held with original maturity beyond
3 months (6,335,372) (1,280,024)
WAREEFABENEREE Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss 464,192 (372,224)
WAREBEFARMEZARENEA  Financial investments at fair value through other
KE comprehensive income (19,554,319) (5,515,204)
fTHEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 49,084 4,513,405
EPFERNB RN EMIRE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts (5,209,959) 13,667,715
(15,272,920) (28,428,467)

—EomER 133
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Notes to the Financial Statements

34 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(a) RERIEKLEEBCHEESRFENYE (@) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from
(&) operating activities (continued)
2024 2023
BETRT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000
REBEFEM/ (D) Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
RITREMEREENTARES Deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions 610,154 2,291,819
LY SHEE Deposits from customers 30,582,885 242,820
NAREBETAEBZNESREE Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 91,266 (240,418)
EHEESREER Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (9,188,573) 15,817,644
TEemIA Derivative financial instruments (1,014,484) (3,947,631)
BEITENE Certificates of deposit issued 202,382 405,995
HiBE Other liabilities (1,165,892) 1,360,147
20,117,738 15,930,376
RE/(AR) EEEENRSFBE  Cash flow generated from/(used in) operating activities 12,930,812 (5,200,853)
BAFEH Income tax paid
ERERFGER Hong Kong profits tax paid (281,357) (206,710)
BREBAINGIE Taxation outside Hong Kong paid (49,001) (158,223)
RE /(AR BELKNBREFTEE  Net cash flow generated from/(used in) operating activities 12,600,454 (5,565,786)
REEBREENREREE Cash flows from operating activities included:
BUH S Interest received 20,475,943 19,435,318
BERFE Interest paid (13,335,100) (12,062,057)
(b) RERRESEEHEBNEFIN (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
2024 2023
BETR BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ReRERITRPRBITNES Cash and balances with banks and central banks 9,942,021 16,193,816
ERTHTFRRBR Placements with and advances to banks with original
(RA3EANEE) maturity within 3 months 48,409,517 27,652,285
BlES R FENFERE Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held with original
(RA3EAMNEE) maturity within 3 months:
—AAREBEFAEMZERE - at fair value through other comprehensive income 8,524,546 16,481,287
— DABE BRI R - at amortised cost 90,182 -
66,966,266 60,327,388

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(c)

35

RERERBERMEE ()

Notes to the Financial Statements

34 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

RMEXKRELENEEE L (c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
2024 2023
BT BT
(i) EHER (i) Loan capital HK$'000 HK$'000
M1A1H At 1 January 7,806,176 3,890,992
RARFE AT (Redemption)/issuance during the year (3,912,179) 3,894,403
HEH R Foreign exchange differences 533 1,299
HA3EIR S FHEE Other non-cash adjustments (34,886) 19,482
M12A31H At 31 December 3,859,644 7,806,176
2024 2023
BET T BT T
(i) HESE (ii) Lease liabilities HK$'000 HK$'000
MB1A1H At 1 January 1,075,740 907,139
YREEAE Payment of lease liabilities (235,636) (238,000)
FRENRE - Other non-cash items:
— ¥Tig ~ Additions 86,728 375,952
— HE - Adjustments (4,947) (613)
— H b - Other changes 34,285 31,262
M12A31H At 31 December 956,170 1,075,740
EERKGE 35 Staff retirement scheme
AEBERE—BATHRAERFE ([Z% The Group has a defined contribution provident fund scheme

RINFTED) ¢ Bt - NEBEAFLAENE
BEAHT10%HIHR - ZRKETE 2 —1E
BB HRTE  MERERLANEENM
BE2REE - BEBAELEAER - 1R
EEEESEHHIFRER - ARENEH
1 B P ) SR BB D IR B O SRR -
MHE KB RHRBEA—EBLNENES -
VR RRZRINET I B R HIE

Br TR RIRGETEISN - A BB 2000512 A1
i - th2E-IBRRREETE - /RRE
KRR IR AT 812 - AREERIE
sRAE & AT &R F R R FI 5l HUtEF o

(“the Retirement Scheme”) under which it contributes 10% of the
employees’ basic salaries. The Retirement Scheme is a Mandatory
Provident Fund ("MPF") exempted scheme and covers all permanent
full-time employees of the Group. No employee contributions are
required. Contributions forfeited by leavers prior to vesting fully may
not be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution,
but are transferred to a separate welfare fund which shall be applied
for the welfare of the Retirement Scheme'’s members.

In addition to the Retirement Scheme, the Group has also participated
in an approved MPF scheme effective from 1 December 2000 to
provide a choice of schemes to both existing and new employees.
Mandatory benefits are provided under the MPF Scheme.

—EomER
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35 EEENREE(Z) 35 Staff retirement scheme (continued)
HE2024F12A31HIEFER - AEBER During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group contributed
B LT BIVE D B A R 85 167,095,000 7T approximately HK$167,095,000 (2023: HK$160,619,000) (note 9) to
(2023 : #%160,619,0007T) (FIzE9) ° these schemes.

36 FEEFNEE 36 Assets pledged as security

2024 2023
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
AR BESAEME2EWESHR  Financial investments at fair value through other
TRREEME comprehensive income pledged as:
— R (MEE) — Statutory deposits (note) 240,574 249,830
— BEEHRARNLEER - Collateral under sale and repurchase transactions 7,856,909 16,598,930
8,097,483 16,848,760
NABEAEBZHEEIRE  Financial investments at fair value through profit
Eﬁﬁ”\] : or loss pledged as:
-~ BEERARLEER S ~ Collateral under sale and repurchase transactions 1,414,786 1,249,713
HE REER S E R Other assets pledged as collateral under sale and
HmEE repurchase transaction 926,132 1,555,530
10,438,401 19,654,003
BfsE - Note:
AERBMEEREARTREIIND TR T EH The assets were pledged by the overseas branches of the Bank to the Office of
EREIRENAETR © the Comptroller of the Currency in the United States.

37 EXRBBAIRS

PR Rk A AR D BN R 5 M AE#R
Oh  REBETTATERNBHITRS

(@) EBEEEQARNRS
REERN  AEEEE BB RITERBEF
BB ET T ZERS - KPR eiEE
8 BEXRERRIZEFER ’)&ﬁﬁlf%’(
ERBITRHMINER 5 - BLZXFHHEK
EEREREETR ZRFHRAMISHN =X
ME - WHREHAREEEMRZ ST REF
WIEFIER - EFERR - SLERXHEIRIE
EEEGRETT -

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

37

(a)

Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

Transactions with group companies

During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions with
related parties in the normal course of its banking business; including,
inter alia, lending, acceptance and placement of interbank deposits,
participation in loan syndicates, correspondent banking transactions
and foreign exchange transactions. The transactions were priced
based on relevant market rates at the time of each transaction, and
were under the same terms as those available to other counterparties
and customers of the Group. In the opinion of the Directors, these
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ERBEHARS (& 37 Material related party transactions (continued)
HEBARNRKS (&) (a) Transactions with group companies (continued)
REFEA - BB AR ZNEELNEE B The amount of related party transactions during the year and
ERIAT - outstanding balances at the end of the year are set out below:
RERR BENARAELT BEAR
hEEREAE (Re&E() (R&E i)
Ultimate holding and ERZREAT FEE Associates & Joint Venture  Related companies
intermediate parents Immediate parent Fellow subsidiaries (note (i)) (note (ii))
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
EBTn  BNTT  BETn  EBTn A%t AMTn BMfn  B%Tn EBTan BETx
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
GO Interest income 39113 24531 - - 33886 40377 68638 179081 - -
RS Interest expense (27369) (14657 (56647) (68384  (M17,061)  (131828)  (52555)  (883%4) (29) §]
FEERPBERA Fee and commission income 43,436 891 - - 2547 2865 1,800 301 - -
2l (BX) Net trading income/(loss B509 14375 - 2983 (1643) 57485 378 (4004 1470 -
mEWA Other operating income - - 5,000 5,700 - - - - - -
mE Other operating expenses (5,294) (719 (5000 (57000 (63197) (57509 (4,040) (4,149) - -
BE Assets
DRREESALMRE  Financial investents at fair value
Yamemins through other comprehensive
income 359,009 146,318 - - 648,805 645,290 - 43354 - -
YN (RPN =t Financial investments at far value
HERRE through profit or loss - - - - - - 66,745 - - -
BARESRAE Financial assets held under resale
agreements - - - - 506,089 - - - - -
ITESRIA Derivative financial instruments 251,314 159935 - - 51,254 3720 - - - -
HERER Other receivables 28,274 017 - 1655 421 37651 3,981 3474 - -
&R Liabilities
ITESRIA Derivative financial instruments 76,923 151,751 - - 2,829 14093 - - - -
EREREE Other payables 106,808 8874 7,264 9927 59,724 93558 10997 30,67 - -
HERR Lease liabiliies - - - - 1313 1320 1,568 5068 - -
gD Lending activities
R2A31H At 31 December 447,786 3513333 - - 8462289 6198009 122389 2816271 - -
TEETHEE Average for the year 1409479 1742979 - - 6084190 6712446 2485144 2333094 - -
BRER: Acceptance of deposits
R12A31H At 31 December 1,740,736 17120939 1,364,023 1315364 7,858,196 8221171 1,262,137 2778825 4,652 1227
TEETHEE Average for the year 2571727 86171 903970 2434619 6,631,939 3936225 2,284,666 4608715 1,785 14759
BERRRIMER Off-statement of financial
position items
BAEZ ERREEE  Acceptances, quarantees
and letters of credit
-EREHEE - contract amounts payable - - - - 834,000 3000 - - - -
Hftdg Other commitments - - - - 4236250 608410 450251 45093 - -
fiEeBIR Derivative financial instruments
- %558 - notional amounts 27,573,798 17913297 - - 10,053,507 3920600 - - - -
“TMER

Annual Report 2024

137



M TSR M

Notes to the Financial Statements

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

37 EXBHMARS (& 37 Material related party transactions (continued)
(@ HEEARNRS (&) (a) Transactions with group companies (continued)

PisE - Note:

() AEBRNBEATIREEATIRIEBNE () Associates & joint venture of the Group include the associates and joint
BIERARIMNEEERTARIMNEEAR venture of the ultimate controlling party and immediate parent.
RAAAA -

(i) FEABAREREFEERSAFNARE (i)  Related companies refers to companies which are common
REBNHHERRE - ARPEZEREA shareholders with significant influence over the Group, and subsidiaries
BAEBEAFENNRENTATE - of shareholders with significant influence over the intermediate parent.

(b) HEEXrEEBAEBNRS (b) Transactions with key management personnel
AEETEEBAENSBERENTEI0RT The aggregate amount of remuneration of key management
BEENTARITESHNIE @ B0 - personnel of the Group, including the amount paid to the Bank's

Directors as disclosed in note 10, are as follows:
2024 2023
BT BB T
HKS$'000 HK$'000
EHESRET Short-term employee benefits 41,239 81,274
BEEg 18 12 A Post-employment benefits 3,450 3,592
44,689 84,866

e BmER st ATBIA] (FizE9) ° Total remuneration is included in ‘staff costs’ (note 9).

FEARITEERM A E E M &AW DR The final remunerations of members of the senior management who

B - received remuneration from the Bank are still pending approval.

REFLA - RTRARITRE R EIZER A A During the year, the Bank provided credit facilities to key management

FE2EIE A B M 83T 3R K B P95 il =k personnel of the Bank and its holding companies and their close

RMEAFEN AR RBEEERE - 58 family members, as well as to companies controlled or significantly

AR A BEBBEZRREME - WESHE influenced by them. The credit facilities were provided in the ordinary

LAk (EA) BEMEB#EITA LR course of business and on substantially the same terms as for

R G ERRBUER] ° comparable transactions with persons of a similar standing, or where

applicable, with other employees.
2024 2023
BT BB T
HKS$’'000 HKS'000

M1ATA At 1 January 14,288 14,208

R12AH31H At 31 December 15,290 14,288

FAGKSEERERS Maximum amount during the year 15,544 14,561

RERIT (B BRAE
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EXEABAERS (&)

HIEEBEABNRS (&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37

(b)

()

Material related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with key management personnel (continued)

No impairment losses were recorded against outstanding balances
with key management personnel during the year, and no individually
assessed impairment allowance was made on balances with key
management personnel and their immediate relatives at the year end.

Loans to directors

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to Section 17 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
2023 are shown as below.

2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
P12 A3 BARTTIREMBEENREXNEEE  Aggregate amount of relevant loans made
by the Bank at 31 December
— BRE R RE — Loans and advances 3,115 10,054
— AHEERE — Committed facility 13,865 13,205
KEFRNRITIRENEBEERZ A XEEE Maximum aggregate amount of relevant loans
made by the Bank during the year
— BERERRER — Loans and advances 10,770 10,824

MR2024F 202312 8310 - KREBKRE
BEBTHRABETUREERE -

[ B E

AEEEREFERARENZRETYE
BAEESRINER - AkBErRREE
HEREEERENEIERE - HBMANT
SEMEREIRERMES  BE# &
b~ BB - E MR -

AEERBIFEETEAIHEEERTS
R - M EBRERRBIRA [ E AR
AL REEBERIE T HER - BFMREMN
BRIAE N EE B E B RER DT~ 2 HIA
EDRIELEE R o NS BT EIRTT H E b B 1R
ESRAMERR NG - ARRA™ S - EmEHAM
B &ERREERRESF - AEBNAEET
INE T HBEITE T - ARERE ST AR

RMEEE EK -

38

There were no material impairment allowances made against these
loans at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Risk management

The Group manages its risks under the oversight of the Board of
Directors and its delegated committees. The Risk Management Group
("/RMG") has been entrusted with the ongoing responsibilities of
driving and implementing the Group's risk management framework
and governance encompassing the identification, quantification,
monitoring, reporting, and mitigation of the risks to which the Group
is exposed.

The Group adopts the Standardised Approach for credit and market
risk measurement, and the Basic Indicator Approach for operational
risk measurement. The Group has established policies, procedures
and processes to identify and set appropriate risk limits, as well as
to analyse, control and monitor these risks. The Group continually
strives to enhance its risk management framework and infrastructure
in keeping with the market, product offerings and international best
practices. The Group's internal auditor performs regular independent
audits to ensure due compliance with internal policies and regulatory
requirements.

—EomER
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(a)

EEE (F)

AEBEENRBRIEGTATEE
FERRERE

EERBRREEPHXHHEF TEEITHAH
BEEMBERMBRRNER - FERRTE
KEEREBR  BFES  BES X5
TEERMEEABERINEY - MERARE
RER - REBBEY —RIIEE - BERR
RFARE - BERMREEEXEBNRR -
AEEGRERMAEBRBEEIIER - A
BREAESEEHENTIHRIT MEREN D
EUEARRREEEXRHERETHARE
o

ATENR 0o B b E A AL b I FE S B MBI A
EEER  AEBRBERE -EHRIWEE
TEZARKREREERNIZHRIEE WIEsEE
B o PR2024F - AEBES| ZEREER
EEMIEE REE  ETERE(ERERRZ
SYRBNEEWEN - UEHRE R
EEREMNASERENESTER - RRFMA
BERZABREROE S - FRIRERAA
SEMNRBEEESE  WRGEHBZEMA]
BHERITENRR L

%Eﬂﬁ%ﬁ&wﬁi¢ﬂﬁginaﬁT
0y EEB I[t ThEEFEREER
%EAﬁKEIWH
fﬁﬁﬁfkkm HESR - HEE S EHIK
IR ERRERRE - I /@ ke B IR AR A A A
WATHEHEAORE B S B B AN SRS M E L
HEERRE -

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH
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(a)

Risk management (continued)
The Group manages the following main types of risk:

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to the failure of a customer
or counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations. Credit exposure
principally arises in loans and advances, debt securities, treasury bills
and trading derivatives, as well as in the credit risk from financial
arrangements in off-balance sheet financial positions such as loan
commitments and guarantees. The Group has developed standards,
policies and procedures to measure, monitor and mitigate the risk
of its lending business activities. The policies and procedures are
reviewed as required, to respond quickly to the changing market
environment and to better reflect the risk factors for the Group's credit
considerations.

Throughout the year of 2024, the Group continues to enhance its risk
management framework and internal control practices by solidifying
its three lines of defense, promoting risk culture and reviewing its
risk appetite and policies to ensure its compliance with regulatory
requirements. Various risk management enhancement projects
and initiatives including the implementation of Basel Ill Reform
Package are underway to keep pace with the evolving regulatory
landscape and increasingly stringent regulatory requirements.
Furthermore, the Group has been actively fortifying the resilience
against climate-related risks, promoting the risk culture of green
and sustainable banking, and embedding climate risk into the risk
management framework.

Credit risk is controlled and managed by the Risk Management Group
("RMG") under the oversight of the Credit Committee, and is reported
to the Credit & Risk Management Committee ("CRMC") at the board
level on a quarterly basis. These committees provide appropriate
oversight of the Group's risk management practices by defining the
Group's policies and risk appetite, and providing the RMG with the
means to implement measures to mitigate credit risk arising from the
Group's adopted strategy.
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38

(a)

Risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

Credit risk embedded in products is identified and measured
in product programmes and on-going review and assessment
process. Credit risk pertaining to individual customers is identified
and measured by credit officers utilising internal risk rating models.
Credit applications are approved by credit officers under delegated
authorities or by the Credit Committee.

The Group mitigates credit risk by taking collateral and entering into
offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers and counterparties,
as the case may be, should such clauses and agreements be legally
established and enforceable.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is material in relation to the Group's
total exposures. The Group's portfolio of financial instruments is
diversified among industry and product sectors.

Credit risk for treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the
Group manages its corporate risk. Risk grading is applied to the debt
issuers and the counterparties, with individual credit limits set.

Credit and counterparty risks related to countries and financial
institutions are assessed and monitored regularly according to the
Group's Country Risks and Financial Institution Risks policies. The
policies are implemented together to effectively assess and control
credit limits and tenors made available to the respective financial
institutions under an umbrella country risk limit for each country.

The Group applies the same credit policy in respect of contingent
liabilities as in respect of financial instruments recorded on the
statement of financial position, based on loan approval procedures,
use of limits to reduce risk and monitoring. Credit risk is also mitigated
by obtaining collateral in the form of pledged assets and guarantees
from borrowers and third parties.

—EMEFER
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38 RREE (&) 38 Risk management (continued)
(@) EEERRERE(Z) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
() EEEZX (i)  Credit quality

AEEDRKA-—EHEIINEMEETR The Group has adopted a granular 24-grade internal risk rating
g E Z R R 24 4 N EB R B 5T 4% system (Grades GO1-G21 for performing financial assets and
ARG (EHRGOIEGQI R AEESRE Grades G22-G24 for non-performing financial assets) that maps
EGREGURRIREMEE) ° to external credit rating agencies’ rating scales. The integration
ERGEAEEEREBHES LR of this framework into the Group's reporting structure has
REERRREE AL - MR enabled more granular credit risk reporting, thus enhancing the
KITHAZEREKFE - @ABTHRTE internal management. The risk rating are assigned according to
HRBIRAEFPITE (REX - EH differing customer segments (manufacturing, trading, property
X MEBR/RES)ESE B development/investment, etc.) which enables the ranking of
RAEEEARBUREPHNEERET the credit quality of each customer and the governing of the
B WRERTHERNEPHZ S Y credit exposure for individual customers or counterparties.

FHEE®O

BUREFPHRERFARS S ETEBR Customers' risk ratings are reviewed regularly and amendments,

A WiRF ZERFEN - LEERK where necessary, are implemented promptly, particularly

HHmBEAT  AEENELZES in times of fluctuating market conditions. The Group also

BETHERRENES (AIERTR maintains a committee to regularly oversee weaker credits

BGIOEGR) NBEAAREEEHRAE (which have lower risk ratings of G19-G21) to preserve the

BMEER - TRITAEENFTHRE Group’s quality portfolio. The table below outlines the Group's

AL FER NS BB AT AR - rating scale benchmarked against external credit agencies:

BEECAIFE
Reference ECAI Rating

EEARE B BELH EEER  TAHE

Obligor Grade Moody's S&P Fitch Rating Description

GO Aaa AAA AAA ERRRALFEERRNBUNEE S  AETEEREEM
WEBKBXBROEAIBOBRT  AZNERRRKTLA
&I o

Obligations are judged to have the highest intrinsic, or standalone,
financial strength, and thus subject to the lowest level of credit risk
absent any possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or

govemment,
G02 - G4 Aal/Aa2/Pa3 AA+/ AA/AA- AL/ ANAA-  EEBRERGEERSMBLMKEE S - BMET LR 5 T

BRASBARARAIXHFNERT  AXNERERERE -
Obligations are judged to have high intrinsic, or standalone, financial
strength, and thus subject to very low credit risk absent any possibility

of extraordinary support from an affiliate or government.

142] pER1T (B BIRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(@) FERRERE(E)
iy FEERE)

BB AR
Obligor Grade

Notes to the Financial Statements

38

(a)

BEECAITR
Reference ECAI Rating

Risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

(i)  Credit quality (continued)

B BRER
Moody's S&P

HERR
Fitch

BEE
Rating Description

G05 - GO7

AT/A2/A3 A+/ A/A-

A+ MA-

EBERRAFEETRZRFNBUNKE S BEAER
EAHERAZBFN SR HFNERT - IARNERERR
ERE -

Obligations are judged to have upper-medium-grade intrinsic, or
standalone, financial strength, and thus subject to low credit risk
absent any possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or
government.

G08 -G10

Baal/Baa2/Baa3 BBB+,”BBB/BBB-

BBB+,”BBB/BBEB-

EBERRAAFEERERBUMNGKE N DR EE XL
BREHEEERE - MRE EAHEEE BT RS R X 01
RTHERRNERRRREE o

Obligations are judged to have medium-grade intrinsic, or standalone,
financial strength, and thus subject to moderate credit risk and, as such,
may possess certain speculative credit elements absent any possibility

of extraordinary support from an affiliate or government.

Bal/Ba2/Ba3 BB+,/BB/BB-

BB+,/BB/BB-

BEBERARASGEAEREMIBUNRBE S - BIEARIRAE
i BRBIBARERIBNERT  BEAERANER
Rk

Obligations are judged to have speculative intrinsic, or standalone,
financial strength, and are subject to substantial credit risk absent any

possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or government.

G14-Gl6

B1/B2/B3 B+,/B/B-

B+,/B/B-

EBERRARFEEREEIBUNABE S - BAREREE
i BB RES I BONERT - eAXSERER -
Obligations are judged to have speculative intrinsic, or standalone,
financial strength, and are subject to high credit risk absent any
possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or government.

G17-G18

Caal/Caa2 ccc+/ccc

ccc+/ccc

BEBRRARASBEEREERBUNMBE S - BErRERE
WBARSBANEFFIFOERT A ERRNER
Rk -

Obligations are judged to have speculative intrinsic, or standalone,
financial strength, and are subject to very high credit risk absent any

possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or government.

—EomER
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38 RREE (&) 38 Risk management (continued)
(@) EEERRERE(Z) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) FEE=(£E) (i)  Credit quality (continued)

BEECAITR
Reference ECAI Rating

BB ARG B BRER HEER RE G

Obligor Grade Moody's S&P Fitch Rating Description

G19 Caa3 CC- CCC- EBRRRRAFEERENREN  TARTEENIEAE

FEEI 4 BNE—EMALHASRKMAR -

Special Mention Obligations are judged to have highly speculative intrinsic, and are
likely in, or near, default, with some prospect of recovery of principal
and interest.

G20 Ca cC C BEBRERARFEEREREY  TARTEENENKETE

FRET EENEMREE - BINE—ENERS A SERNATR -

Special Mention Obligations are judged to have highly speculative intrinsic, and are
likely in, or very near, default, with some prospect of recovery of
principal and interest.

G21 C C C ERFRARE - BEERED  QUAEHF SRR REMER) -

BEBT Obligations are the lowest rated and are typically in default, with little

Special Mention prospect for recovery of principal or interest.

G2 D D D KR - REEEZENERE -

KR Substandard. In accordance with the Asset Quality Classification Policy.

Substandard

623 D D D R RESEZENEYR -

PN Doubtful. In‘accordance with the Asset Quality Classification Policy.

Doubtful

G24 D D D BX - REAEZENRHK -

Bx Loss. In accordance with the Asset Quality Classification Policy.

Loss

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



M TSR M

38 ERERE (&)

(a)

FERBERE (&)

(ii)

FERER LR
REEAEZNEERR LR - K&t
RERMFBAENERRAEMBERRE
Tt REAVMBHRARRTEESHE
ERMBREAREEGROER S
# o EERR ERBANT

Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)
(ii) Exposure of credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period, without considering any collateral held or
other credit enhancements, is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment allowances. A
summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:

2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
e RARITRPRIBITHETF Cash and balances with banks and central
banks 10,289,619 16,665,546
FERITHF R RE Placements with and advances to banks 70,361,763 55,052,186
BARESHEE Financial assets held under resale agreements 6,157,367 7,693,704
PTHESRIA Derivative financial instruments 19,365,077 19,414,161
TRUEE Financial investments
—AREERABR — at fair value through profit or loss 2,040,808 2,449,217
— ARABEF AEMEEE - at fair value through other comprehensive
income 139,190,860 128,716,927
— DA RRRC ARG 2 - at amortised cost 90,179 -
EFPERRBFRRHAMIRIE Loans and advances to customers and other
accounts 238,656,081 237,096,801
FREREEEFESENE AR Financial guarantees and credit-related
contingent liabilities 11,759,197 11,755,674
BEFREREMEEE BB RE Loan commitments and other credit-related
commitments 149,417,201 134,520,295
647,328,152 613,364,511

BREEEELEBROMHNEREEN
HE—T D2 IR HREK M 5E38(a)

(vii) ©

Further detailed analyses of financial assets by credit quality
and stage distribution are provided in the note 38(a)(vii) of the
consolidated financial statements.
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(@ FERBREE (&)

(il FEFHRLEHEDR
REBEAMK S G NEEFELS
Bk o RIVEAELY - FEEEM
REFTRTHROR G L ERAB
REBFIEF AL FEELELE - K
TENER  MEREMRIZHKRT
KRG ERBREEE  k—KTg
EMBRARNEEMBERIE - K
SERREERATEMBHREEA
B FREAEEERASENIT S
MAREERE  APEERIEARE
EERRCMEENSRIBENIES

Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(iii)

Master netting arrangement

The Group enters into enforceable master netting arrangements
with counterparties. If an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty are terminated and all
amounts outstanding are settled on a net basis. Except for
the event of default, all outstanding transactions with the
counterparty are settled on a gross basis and generally do not
result in offsetting the assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position. The Group discloses information for financial
statement users to evaluate the effect or potential effect of
netting arrangements, including the rights of set-off associated
with the Group’s recognised financial assets and recognised

TR © financial liabilities, on the Group's financial position.
2024
ERAHTH L
anxy EEAMBRREARELEN
Ehf RREE
SRTABE Related amounts that are not
Derivative financial offset in the consolidated
instruments statement of financial position
presented in the ¥5
consolidated SRMIA BeER
statement of Financial Cash collateral FH
financial position  instruments received  Netamount
BETT BETT BETT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
—$TESBTA (H:190) - Derivative financial instruments (note 19(b)) 19,365,077 (7,410,924)  (2,212,608) 9,741,545
SREE Financial liabilities
— TSR A (FE90) - Derivative financial instruments (note 19(b)) 18,393,793 (7,410,924) - 10,982,869

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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38 ERERE (&) 38
(a) EEEREREE(£) (a)

(i) FEFHEEHEWS (E)

Risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)
(iii) Master netting arrangement (continued)

2023
epagy ERANBRARATEEHN
SoE AR
BB hT Related amounts that are not
SBTARE offset in the consolidated
Derivative financial _ Satement of financial position
instruments A
presented in the BeER
consolidated SRTA Cash
statement of Financial collateral 8
financial position instruments received Net amount
BETT BETT BT BETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
SREE Financial assets
—fTESBTA (H:190) - Derivative financial instruments (note 19(b)) 19,414,161 (7,235818) (1,602,063) 10,576,280
tEaE Financial liabilities
—$TESBTA ([3190) ~ Derivative financial instruments (note 19(b)) 19408277 (7.35818) - 12,172,459

(iv) BREERR - ERRREMBERRE
t
ARE BB N RBERIAT R TR
EERR - —&RME  AEEAEM
i & B B E RIRTH AR AR & 215 B R
AMEE - REBESEEIRTIRERS
EEBRHIKFE o

AEBEBEERRBRMEH ) ER
mIBERFRE  HEMR RNEB
BEEAANRZ S EmaBE - &
WERREE  BRERER LHHE
BES - E—EBERT » AEEKR
FEPHMANEBFNEEERE
oLl it > 3=z RInE A N (2R O i
HER -

(iv)

Mitigation of credit risk - Collateral and other credit
enhancements

The Group is dedicated to mitigating credit risk, and this takes
many forms. In general, risk to the Group's ultimate credit
exposure is mitigated by recognised collateral and credit risk
enhancement. The Group continuously seeks to enhance its
level of credit risk mitigation.

The principal collateral received to secure loans and advances
includes mortgages, cash collateral, equities listed on a main
index/recognised exchanges, accounts receivable assignments,
standby letters of credit and listed debt securities acceptable
to the Group. In some cases, depending on the customer’s
position and the types of credit products, some loans may be
granted and backed by corporate or personal guarantees only.

—EomER
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(a)

FERBERE (&)

(iv)

mREERR - EFmREMERAR
(&)

AEEA -ERFENERNFZEE
ARER R R ERRANAREE
REMBESH - ZEESBEARST
YEEEHRE - AEBYUBERBILE
75 R #) (W15 K SR B 75 ) 1B E Hitm e
UiEREMBETaEBHERR
BEEMREREEERRETNE
2 AEERRAFEEATP &R
5 F BIE TR EE N R AN T A IF B AT K
SR Am -

REER2023FE N20245F 12 A31HE
EIR R EERB D (O EIER R
SAYER) T

Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(a)
(iv)

Credit risk management (continued)

Mitigation of credit risk - Collateral and other credit
enhancements (continued)

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral or credit risk enhancements accompanied by the
determination of valuation parameters. Such parameters are
expected to be conservative and reviewed regularly. Security
structures and covenants (financial and non-financial) are
subject to regular review to ensure they comply with the
stipulated conditions. The collateral is important to mitigate
credit risk, but it is the Group's policy to assess the repayment
ability of individual customers or counterparties rather than just
solely relying on securities.

The Group's collateralised credit risk at 31 December 2024 and
2023, excluding impaired exposure, is broken down as follows:

2024 2023
BT T T T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
ERRBFBERSEEEASR Lower of gross loans and advances and fair
BEZERRKEMERAREAN value of collateral and other credit
NAEBEME ZBEER enhancements held against financial
assets that are:
— R BB EISRE — neither past due nor impaired 98,287,001 94,149,605
— @R B R E — past due but not impaired 2,980,405 8,264,051
101,267,406 102,413,656
RERIT (B BRAE

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



M TSR M

38 ERERE (&)

(a)

FERBERE (&)

(v)

(vi)

BEXACEERARERE
EHAA TR
RNEBERA LR AAE E E ] E R
AEABEREAEENESP AR
Mo AREBFLEBERAEEER
ZREFPERAENRRITE AR
FERMAOREECKARMBER « &
KERITHERERR - AEBETH
HEITRBREBEAANG - EREAEMEHEZE
giE  THEFENEERRRE
BLZEGRA -

RREFE

7R 65 B 3R E 351 [ gk PR R 2R 22 i) A B2
EHENRZRZEF  BX - -17% &
= 79 [ B A 2 AN B R AR A O L B
g N RRBBEEET -

IIF

E-ARZUTRRIERBE - &
BRTEREZZE MR 2EE
RERAES A RENEERARAES
BEER  FEELEERBRETH
AR - ARENESH T AESDHE
NRIRME - TTRMEMRBER] -

BHEERAME

FIB D B RIR BRI AR IA R BB
AR ENER TAS/RE
E R AR EER AR EFK
ERMGRRTFEEEIAENESR
Ko FRHEERREFNETRER
ERENBERL D EE— RIIR5E4
R -BHEEREEBNBESMN B
BRF AR 0T B FEORI R SRS B R ) & 32 TR
Al o MATHEEE R M E AR FEH
b R E SRR ERERN —(E
BERE-
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38 Risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Portfolio management and risk concentration

Portfolio management

As part of the Group’s portfolio management practices, a
Risk-based Pricing Model has been adopted with the aim of
improving the overall return for the Group, after taking into
account the risks of the customers and facilities, and thus the
capital required to support the loan exposure and other costs.
Stress tests on the Group's credit risk are conducted regularly.
The result is approved by the relevant committees and is
endorsed by the Board through the CRMC.

Risk concentration

The Group sets various risk limits to control and monitor its
exposure to individual counterparties, countries, industries,
intragroup exposures and loan portfolios to avoid excessive risk
concentration.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors affect groups of linked
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is material in
relation to the Group's total exposures. The Group's portfolio of
financial instrument is diversified along industry and product
sectors.

Expected credit losses measurement

ECL allowances are recognised on all financial assets that
are debt instruments classified either as amortised or fair
value through other comprehensive income and for loan
commitments and financial guarantees that are not measured at
fair value through profit and loss. The ECL allowances represent
an unbiased scenario that is determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information about past events, current
conditions and future economic conditions. Forward-looking
information is explicitly incorporated into the estimation of
ECL allowances and expert judgement on economic forecasts
becomes one of the important factors to the ECL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
Measurement of ECL

ECL allowances are measured at amounts equal to either:
(i) 12-month ECL; or (ii) lifetime ECL for those financial
instruments which have experienced a significant increase
in credit risk (‘'SICR’) since initial recognition. The calculation
of ECL allowances is based on the expected value of
probability-weighted scenarios with a combination of upside,
base and downside scenario(s) to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at the effective interest rate. A cash
shortfall is the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The calculation of ECL allowances for Stage 3 is based
on probability-weighted recovery amount from an impaired
financial asset and is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes and time value of money.

The key inputs in the measurement of ECL allowances for Stage
1 and Stage 2 are as follows:

The probability of default ("PD") is an estimate of the
likelihood of default over a given time horizon;

- The loss given default ("LGD") is an estimate of the loss
arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time;
and

- The exposure at default ("EAD") is an estimate of the
exposure at a future default date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
Stage transfer

Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets
which have not triggered a SICR since initial recognition.
Their credit risk continuously monitored by the Group and in
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instruments as at the reporting date, with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of its initial

recognition.

Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets
which have triggered a SICR since initial recognition. The
Group recognises lifetime ECL for Stage 2 financial assets. In
subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial
assets improves such that there is no longer a SICR since initial
recognition, then the Group reverts to recognising 12 months
of ECL as the financial assets have transferred back Stage 1.

Stage 3 financial assets are those that the Group has classified
as credit-impaired. The Group recognises lifetime ECL for all
Stage 3 financial assets. The Group classifies financial assets as
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have occurred after its initial recognition. Evidence
of impairment includes indications that the borrower is
experiencing significant financial difficulties, or a default or
delinquency has occurred.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets that
are credit-impaired on initial recognition, their ECL allowances
are always measured on a lifetime basis. The amount recognized
as ECL allowance for these assets is the change in lifetime ECL
since initial recognition of the assets.

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a
12-month PD for financial assets for which credit risk has not
significantly increased, the Group measures ECL considering the
risk of default over the remaining life of the financial instrument,
even if, for risk management purposes, the Group has the right
to consider a longer period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

An assessment of whether the financial instruments have
experienced SICR since initial recognition is performed at each
reporting period by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.
The assessment is rule-based, unbiased and forward-looking,
and considers all reasonable and supportable information,
including information about past events, current conditions and
future economic conditions.

The financial instruments will be considered to have significant
increase in credit risk when:

(@)  The contractual payments of the instruments are with
more than 30 days past due; or

(b)  The credit rating of the financial instrument has gone
down by 5 notches since initial recognition (not
applicable to retail lending portfolio); or

(c)  The financial instruments have been classified as special
mention.

Management overlay and judgements

The Group will consider the need to implement and apply
management overlay over the ECL modelled outcome to cater
for model constraints, data limitation and exceptional events.
The management overlay methodologies involve management
judgement and the amounts are subjected to regular robust
review and governance processes to assess the adequacy and
relevancy of such overlay. As at 31 December 2024, the Group
implemented the management overlay in view of deterioration
of credit environment and the assessment on the potential
credit quality movement of individual accounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both
incorporate forward-looking information. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified the key economic
variables impacting credit risk and expected credit losses for
financial assets.

These economic variables and their associated impact on
the PD, EAD and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert
judgement has also been applied in this process. Forecasts of
these economic variables (the 'base economic scenario’) are
provided by the Group's economists and include consideration
of a variety of actual and forecast information from internal
and external sources. The Group formulates a “base case” view
of the future direction of relevant economic variables as well
as a representative range of other possible forecast scenarios
including 1 upside and 3 downside forecast scenarios.

In particular, the base scenario represents the most likely
scenario of continuing the current economic situation; carrying
a weight of 55% (2023: 50%); the upside scenario, namely
benign, represents likelihood of improvements to the current
economic situation; carrying a weight of 10% (2023: 5%); and
the downside scenarios, namely, mild, medium and severe
represents the likelihood of economic downturn of different
severities, carrying a weight of 10%, 15% and 10% (2023:
15%, 20% and 10%) respectively. The economic forecasts are
reviewed regularly to reflect the latest economic conditions. The
ECL recognised in the financial statements reflect the probability
weighted outcomes of a range of possible scenarios above and
management continuously assess the appropriateness of the
provision made against the borrowers concerned taking these
information into consideration. If any adjustment in provision is
deemed necessary, management overlay(s) would be applied
to ensure conservativeness.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(continued)

The Base scenario

The Group's Base Scenario is characterized by moderate
global economic growth over the reference forecast period of
2025-2029. In 2024, the trajectories of major economies notably
diverged. The U.S. economy continued to expand. Meanwhile,
some of the European countries were under considerable
pressure, partly due to political turmoil and geopolitical
conflict. Developing countries were relatively stable in terms of
economic growth. In 2025, the development of U.S. tariff policy
will foreshadow uncertainty in international trade and financial
market. During the forecast period, rate-cutting by majority of
economies will create a loosening monetary environment and
help support global economic growth.

In 2024, Mainland China met the economic growth target of
around 5%. Growth is expected to moderate in the subsequent
years in the forecast period. Exports became the main driver
of economic momentum while the growth of total retail sales
of consumer goods was slowing. After the introduction of a
series of forceful stimulus for the real estate sector, housing
market sentiment started to show positive signs of recovery,
with transaction volume improving in some cities. Overall,
considering the stable CPI, monetary policy is expected to
remain loose, with room for RRR and interest rate cuts to
support the property market and economic growth. Although
geopolitical dynamics and tariff policy will create uncertainties,
Mainland China's competitiveness in international trade
continues to strengthen with its comprehensive and resilient
supply chains. Meanwhile, consumer confidence is expected to
stabilize with easing policy and support measures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(continued)

The Base scenario (continued)

In 2024, Hong Kong's economy recorded 2.5% growth in GDP.
Growth is expected to gradually converge to its long-run
potential rate in the years during the reference period. The
rebound in exports was the key driver of economic growth,
with unemployment rates remaining low reflecting a solid
labor market. However, the change in consumption patterns
of visitors and local residents, coupled with a strong HK dollar,
continued to limit the recovery of retail sales and private
consumption. In 2025, interest rates of both US dollar and Hong
Kong dollar remain at relatively restrictive levels as U.S. treasury
yields had moved in the opposite direction of federal fund rates,
even though the Fed's rate cuts should boost financial markets
and support asset prices in theory. Economic activities, quality
of bank assets and the housing market have yet to fully benefit
from U.S. rate cuts. Private consumption is expected to return to
growth, supported by the robust labor market and improving
household income. However, growth of exports may slow,
impacted by tariff uncertainties and unfavorable base effects.
Prices of private residential properties have begun to stabilize,
but the recovery will be rather moderate due to still elevated
interest rates.
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38 Risk management (continued)

(a)
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Credit risk management (continued)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(continued)

The Base scenario (continued)

2025 FFE A Forecast for 2025
BB HEIA
Hong Kong Mainland China
gE BE/
Ll it
BE® BE®
Mild/ Mild/
B H%E  Medium/ B H%E  Medium/
2025 F20295FFH Average 2025 - 2029 Benign Base Severelotel Benign Base Severelnotel
NAEEBELRE %) GDP growth rate (%) 2.9 2.7 0.7
BRE (%) Inflation (%) 2.3 2.2 0.6
REE%) Unemployment (%) 2.80 2.88 3.66 5.08 5.09 5.30
FEMEERIER Residential Property price
index 331 327 284
EYHA{EE %) Value of exports of goods (%) 5.1 4.7 0.5
2024 F 7R Forecast for 2024
B B A
Hong Kong Mainland China
gx/ gx/
i it
B E (D B E
Mild/ Mild/
8g1f HE  Medium/ B1f HE Medium/
2024 F 22028 F ¥ 15 Average 2024 - 2028 Benign Base  Severe(oel Benign Base  Severetoel
NAEEBEL R E%) GDP growth rate (%) 25 24 15
BIRE (%) Inflation (%) 24 23 13
REE R (%) Unemployment (%) 277 284 357 5071 503 523
FEMEEBRIER Residential Property price
index 356 352 312
EYHOEE®) Value of exports of goods (%) 55 48 -1.0
T REZEBSMMETHE- Note: Represent the weighted average of the three scenarios.

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(continued)

The Benign Scenario

The Benign Scenario is a slight deviation from the Base
Scenario in the positive direction, with the global economy
expanding at a slightly faster-than-expected pace and other key
economic indicators displaying slightly better-than-expected
improvements.

The Mild Scenario

The Mild Scenario is a slight deviation from the Base Scenario
in the negative direction, with the global economy expanding
at a slightly slower-than-expected pace and other key
economic indicators displaying slightly worse-than-expected
improvements.

The Medium Scenario

The Medium Scenario is in between the Base Scenario and the
Severe Scenario, with the global GDP growth rate and other key
economic indicators standing at the medium points between
those of the two scenarios.

The Severe Scenario

Under the Severe scenario, the global economy suffers a
considerable slowdown and is teetering on the blink of
recession with surging unemployment rate. Major developed
economies enter a deep recession, and GDP growth for
Mainland China and Hong Kong declines considerably.
Meanwhile, properties and financial markets experience a
significant selloff with intensifying geopolitical conflicts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)
Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(continued)

Sensitivity analysis of expected credit loss calculation

As the probability assigned to each scenario and the
correspondence economic factor forecast is subject to
uncertainties, the Group has conducted sensitivity analysis
for the impacts of an expected credit loss if the probability is
slightly different from the expectation:

(i)  Comparing the difference of expected credit loss under
the Base Scenario against the probability weighted
outcomes of 5 scenarios at the year ended of 2024, the
expected credit loss under the base scenario would
be approximately 7% (HK$184 million) lower than the
weighted outcomes of the 5 economic scenarios currently
reported in the consolidated financial statements.

(i) Byassuming 10% scenario weight shift from Base scenario
to upside or to the most severe downside scenario at the
year end of 2024, there would be a decrease in credit loss
by approximately HK$32 million or an increase in credit
loss by approximately HK$103 million, respectively.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial asset as in default when
contractual repayment of principal or payment of interest is
past due more than 90 days or fulfill certain assessment criteria
as defined in the Asset Quality Classification Policy.

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Group
considers various indicators comprising: (i) qualitative — such
as in breach of financial covenant(s), deceased, insolvent or in
long-term forbearance; (i) quantitative — such as overdue status
and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer
to the Group. These criteria have been applied to all financial
assets held by the Group and are consistent with the definition
of default used for internal credit risk management purposes.
The default definition has been applied consistently to model
the PD, EAD and LGD throughout the Group's expected loss
calculations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Expected credit losses measurement (continued)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (continued)

A financial asset is no longer considered in default when all past
due amounts, including interest, have been recovered, and it is
determined that the principal and interest are fully collectible
in accordance with the original or revised contractual terms of
the financial assets with all criteria for the impaired classification
having been remedied.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset in whole or in part, when it
has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset
in its entirety or a portion thereof. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include:

(i) ceasing enforcement activity;

(i) where the Group's recovery method is enforcing collateral
and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering in full; and

(i)  debtors in state of insolvency.

During the year, the Group has written off certain financial
assets that have no reasonable expectation of full recovery. The
Group will continue to objectively and timely assess the ECL
allowances according to HKFRS 9 to ensure its sufficiency.

Credit quality of financial assets

The Group manages and monitors its risks, and has an Asset
Quality Classification Policy and Impairment Assessment Policy in
place to govern this aspect. The Group has a professional team
dedicated to handling recovery of non-performing loans, which
includes loan restructuring, taking legal action, repossession
and disposal of collateral, etc.

Distribution of financial instruments to which the impairment
requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied, by credit quality and stage
distribution.

—EMEFER
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38 ERERE (&)

(@) FERRERE(E)

(i) TREENFEER (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(vii) Credit quality of financial assets (continued)

2024
Gross carrying/notional amount Bk EEEE
fE RE HERR EHE an ECL  Netcarrying
Strong  Satisfactory ~ Higherrisk Creditimpaired Total  allowances amount
BETT L LS BBT T BET T BET BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR RHRAEINER Balances with banks and central banks
RN (Higkw) at amortised cost (Note i)
E1ER - Stage 1 10,289,640 - - - 10,289,640 (1) 10289619
ERAHNETRBH Placements with and advances to banks
RN (Higkw) at amortised cost (Note i)
- E1[E& - Stage | 69,624,198 750,000 - - 70,374,198 (12,435) 70,361,763
ENRESRAE Financial assets held under resale
Ema A (i) agreements at amortised cost (Note v)
-21k8 -Stage 1 3,174,582 - - - 317458 - 317458
RFEA RS RAMER Loans and advances to customers and other
RSN accounts at amortised cost 150,206,694 65196592 8,497,251 6343200 230333737 (3637731) 226,696,006
- E1[E& - Stage | 150,296,205 62,529,307 3,902,984 - || 216,728,496 (487,885) || 216,240,611
- EIBR -Stage 2 489 2,667,285 4,594,267 - 7,262,041 (28024) | 7034017
- E3[5 - Stage 3 - - - 6,343,200 6,343,200 (2,921,822) 3,421,378
SRAERERAL Financial investments at amortised cost
(Fisiv) (Note v)
-21kR -Stage 1 90,182 - - - 90,182 3) 90,179
EFAENERERRY Loan commitments and financial
(Hi3i) quarantee contracts (Note 15379242 145,072,587 233,486 - 160,685,315 (93,757) 160,591,558
- E1[E& - Stage | 15,379,242 | | 145,072,587 - - | 160,451,829 (76,932) || 160,374,897
e -Stage - - 233,486 - 233,486 (16,825) 216,661
- E3A - Stage 3 - - - - - - -
&g Total 248,854,538 211,019,179 8,730,737 6,343,200 474,947,654 (3,743,947) 471,203,707
DARBEFALH2EREN  Financial investments at far value through
SRRE-BHEH (M) other comprehensive income - Debt
securities (Note i) 138,969,660 157,937 - 63,263 139,190,860 (37,853)
- £1BR - Stage | 138,969,660 157,937 - - || 139127597 (27,778)
- £I%R - Stage?2 - - - - - -
- 53BR -Stage 3 - - - 10,084 10,084 (10,075)
-BEARRENEETR -p0C
BE - - - 53,179 53,179 -
an Total 138,969,660 157,937 - 63,263 139,190,860 (37,853)
RISERTT (EIRR) BRRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED




M TSR M

Notes to the Financial Statements

38 RREE (&) 38 Risk management (continued)

(@) FERRERE(E) (@)
i) EMEENEFEEE (&)

Credit risk management (continued)
(vii) Credit quality of financial assets (continued)

2023
4
ﬁi@/%iféﬁ BHLE
Gross carrying/notional amount e EESE
FE nE gRER ERE EE L Netcarying
Strong Satisfactory Higherrisk  Credit impaired Total allowances amount
BETT BETL BETL BETT BETTL BRI BRI
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AR RHRAEINER Balances with banks and central banks
RN (Higkw) at amortised cost (Note i)
- S1ka Stage 16,665,567 - - S 165567 Q) 16665546
ERONERRER Placements with and advances to banks
RSN (Higkw) at amortised cost (Note i)
- E1[E& - Stage | 54987367 80412 - - 55,067,779 (15593) 55,052,186
ENBELREE Financial assets held under resale
AR (i) agreements at amortised cost (Note v)
-Z1KE -Stage 1 4592502 - - - 4592502 - 4592502
RFEF RS REAMER Loans and advances to customers and other
TR accounts at amortised cost 150035707 67047440 1060479 5979978 233667921 (2006410) 231661311
- E1[E& - Stage | 149,680,020 66,097,128 4578000 - 220,355,148 (324,697 220030451
- E)EE - Stage 2 355,687 950,312 6,026,79 - 7332795 (644482) 6,088,313
- B3R5 -Stage 3 - - - 5979978 5979978 (1,037.31) 4942747
BIRENSBERAD Loan commitments and financial
i) quarantee contracts (Note i) 10,134,106 135,564,427 48538 - 145,747,071 (83661) 145663410
- E1[E& - Stage | 10,134,106 135,504,427 - - 145,698,533 (82361) 145,616,172
- EBR -Stage - - 48538 - 48538 (1300 47238
- E3E - Stage 3 - - - - - - -
ax Total 236,415,249 202,692,279 10,653,334 5979978 455,740,840 (2,105,685) 453,635,155
DARBEFALH2EREN  Financial investments at far value through
SBIRE - BHES () other comprehensive income
- Debt securities (Note i) 128,492,945 163514 815 59,653 128,716,927 (179,502)
L -Stage 1 128492945 163514 - - || 128656459 (14856)
-5Ik8 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
- B3R - Stage 3 - - 815 1331 25146 (164,646)
-BEALRENEETR -p00
BE - - - 3530 3530 -
an Total 128,492,945 163514 815 59,653 128,716,927 (179,502)
—E-mER
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(@) FERRERE(E)
(i) TREENFEER (&)

(ifi)

FERNHERAONEESBRN
R (BB AR B
ERENFBRHERERALD - Bk
BA_E 3R BB LA T B R 40(a)
BFRR -

URREEFARMEE KRN ES
BHARABEIITR - LWAAEER
AR M2 S EREFEE
BRKREERFEET R -

EREENH

AREBERBIAT WA FF AR AR E
ETREENEELEE -

Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(vii) Credit quality of financial assets (continued)

Note:

0]

(iif)

The notional amount of commitments and financial guarantee
contracts refer to those commitments and financial guarantees
which subject to impairment requirements under HKFRS 9.
Therefore, figures disclosed in the above do not agree with
the figures disclosed in note 40(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Debt securities measured at FVOC! are held at fair value. The
expected credit losses allowances in respect of debt securities
measured at FVOCI are held within reserves.

Classification of credit quality

The Group adopts the following internal risk ratings to determine
the credit quality for financial assets.

W EB T AR
FEEEENH Credit quality description Internal ratings
BE Strong G01-G12
mE Satisfactory G13-G16
B RR Higher risk G17-G21
ERE Credit impaired G22-G24

TE2024 22023 F - R B E 2B N
FE3MEERAMD o

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(iv)

There are no exposures in stage 2 & stage 3 for the year ended
2024 and 2023.
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(a)

FERBERE (&)
(vii) ERREFETHRENEEEER

EERBEBBEHFNEETRE - W
HIRRBEEZEETABETH
o ZEETBRITIRBEREER
BB AEEHNRE - MZFHITL
RBEERTEEITHA  BEBERAF
& ZERERAFAGEREERR
FHOEHL2E - W TNEA - BIRA
RETP - TREVNNCEHERABEBHES

Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(viii) Credit quality of debt securities measured at FVPL and

FVOCl

For the application of credit rating to debt securities, primarily

the issue specific rating would be taken as reference for credit

risk rating assignment. Where this is not available, the issuer

rating would be adopted. When the issuer rating is not available,

the rating of the guarantor of that debt securities (if applicable)

would be adopted, otherwise it would be treated as unrated.

The following table presents an analysis of the credit quality

of investments in debt securities at the end of the reporting

WIRE 2 EEEENHT ° period.
2024

N REEFA DB AR A

RAREETA HEttzmKE TENSRERE

BRNSRRE HemBRE -BEES

- E%ES - ERRS Debt securities
Debt securities Debt securities measured at okl
measured at FVPL  measured at FVOCI amortised cost Total
BT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Aaa Aaa - 4,833,913 - 4,833,913
Aa3E Aal Aa3 to Aal 106,649 71,612,044 90,179 71,808,872
A3EA] A3 to Al 149,359 56,932,114 - 57,081,473
EAA3 Lower than A3 395,989 3,261,587 - 3,657,576
651,997 136,639,658 90,179 137,381,834
RiTAR Unrated 44,789 2,551,202 - 2,595,991
B Total 696,786 139,190,860 90,179 139,977,825
—ENFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 RREE (&) 38 Risk management (continued)
(@) EEERRERE(Z) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
(viii) BEXEHFSRMBRENCEEE (&) (viii) Credit quality of debt securities measured at FVPL and
FVOCI (continued)
2023
ADREEFA BB A
AR BBERA HthzEkE  HENSRRE
BRNERRE MERIRE - ERES
- ERES - EBES Debt securities
Debt securities Debt securities measured at k)
measured at FVPL ~ measured at FVOCI amortised cost Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Aaa Aaa - 9,403,768 - 9,403,768
Aa3 & Aal Aa3 to Aal 83,320 79,059,092 - 79,142,412
A3EA A3to Al 736,664 36,519,591 - 37,256,255
RRA3 Lower than A3 189,169 3,361,938 - 3,551,107
1,009,153 128,344,389 - 129,353,542
KA Unrated 51,132 372,538 - 423670
] Total 1,060,285 128,716,927 - 129,777,212
(b) TiZEERE (b)  Market risk management
M5 AR = IE R A BT B F0K ’?.Tﬂﬁ’ﬂﬁ Market risk is the risk of loss caused by an adverse change in valuation
BEZHFTEKMIBRRR - REBROKEIR associated with holding either long or short market positions. The risk
BREEFIE - HNE - IRHE - T*Efl]?ﬁ Mm% arises as a result of market making, underwriting, principal position
NMEMBITAETAENER - 88 BERA taking and asset/liability management in interest rate, foreign
MEE,/ AEEEMNEE - A£EXERE exchange, equity, credit and commodity markets and their associated
BERSGMESEBEREMSRARBA - derivative instruments. The Group manages its market risk exposures
ROGFBERTRETFHES - BINEHR mainly through its trading and treasury business. The trading business
BEEe  MEBEBHMITEE,/ BEETE is to facilitate customer activities, but as a result, takes on principal
Hﬁ%@% CEERESERRER - WEESRBIE positions. The treasury business performs asset/liability management
A& (AARnEBEFAEMEEYKES function including liquidity risk management, with securities positions
Tfﬂ‘%wﬁ) EITRBTEEREEMNZRENE intended for liquidity management and investment purposes under
Y o non-trading portfolio (debt securities measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income).
RIEIRTT (ERR) BRR AR

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

The objective of market risk management is to consistently measure
and monitor market risk on a timely and unbiased basis in order to
better manage the portfolios and, by doing so, optimise financial
performance. The business is responsible for managing market risks
to meet corporate performance objectives within the market risk limit
parameters. The Risk Management Group (“RMG") is responsible to
independently monitor and report all market risks.

Market risk framework

The Board of the Group allocates capital or risk appetite through
the limit process. The Board delegates Credit & Risk Management
Committee ("CRMC") to establish limits for the different businesses.
CRMC further delegates market risk limit establishment to the Market
Risk Committee (“MRC") and then to RMG. RMG is responsible for
designing and drafting the market risk limits and framework and
reviewing and updating the limits on a regular basis. The market risk
limits and framework are to be approved by MRC and endorsed by
CRMC. In addition, the Board also establishes a set of risk indicators
under the risk appetite statement ("‘RAS") in measuring different types
of risks including market risk.

RMG is an independent function reporting to the Chief Risk Officer
("CRO"). RMG uses both quantitative and qualitative measures in
analysing market risk. The analysis includes, but not limited to,
Value-at-Risk (“VaR"), stress testing, risk sensitivities, market events,
product liquidity and volatility, underlying quality, hedging strategy,
performance including profit and loss, accuracy of valuations and
capital impact from market fluctuations. The results are regularly
reported to senior management, MRC and CRMC.

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model
Value-at-risk ("VaR")

VaR is a technique in estimating the potential losses that could
occur on market risk-taking positions due to market rates and prices
movement under normal market conditions over a specified time
horizon. The model is designed to capture different types of risk
including interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit spread risk,
equity risk, commodity risk and volatility risk.

—EMEFER
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38 RREE (&) 38 Risk management (continued)
(b) WHEERERE(Z) (b) Market risk management (continued)
I'h %ﬂﬁ*ﬁiﬂﬁfi/{ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ (%) Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)
18 (48) Value-at-risk ("VaR’) (continued)
K'Elﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ']ﬂ REEE R IRIRE L ER The VaR model used by the Group is based on the historical
VA o BT VA R BIBRER SR N 158 B b simulation technique. The technique predicts the value at risk by
ERHEEBREMNE  IMNE  BRE  EENE simulating or constructing position returns over time arise from the
oo T 3% 89 ) S RN (B A% 1 /7R 52 24 b 2R 8081 B B historical changes in rates and prices in the interest rate, foreign
=10 exchange, equity, credit and commodity markets.
HRERERNF  AEBEEASOMER For the calculation of VaR, the Group uses the most recent two years
[EE e I AIER f‘i#{ﬂ*ﬁ AR IR EEE o of historical market rates, prices and volatilities.
- ¥HRHBEFE - BREZENRFEH - For the trading positions, the VaR is calculated for one-day
Ket® o holding period.
202452 EHIEAREBY -XZAREARAKRE 2023 HIERREY - X AREARAKRE
Trend in Market Risk - Trading Portfolio VaR for the year ended 31 December 2024 Trend in Market Risk - Trading Portfolio VaR for the year ended 31 December 2023
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% 20 AAVJVA A E 20 |Mr"\| 1
0 MAM/V\M/\«M/\ M/\M WV\L mW \NW I MU o,
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A4 Month A3 Month
- HUAABEFAEMZEKGZNS - For the FVOCI debt securities and related positions, VaR is
BIRE - R ELA2S0 KRB H HIRET calculated for 250-day holding period.
é_ o
20245 2 FHIBARBY | 2023FIBEMIES
DARBEFARLM2ERENEBIREN250KXABE AR AMER AR 2E RSN S RIRR 250 X BRE
Trend in Market Risk - FVOCI Debt Securities Portfolio Trend in Market Risk - FVOCI Debt Securities Portfolio
250 Days VaR for the year ended 31 Dec 2024 250 Days VaR for the year ended 31 Dec 2023
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)

Value-at-risk ("VaR") (continued)

- The Group back-tests the accuracy of its VaR model by
comparing the actual and hypothetical daily profit and loss,
adjusted for items including fees and commissions, against
the corresponding VaR figures. For the period from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2024, there was no exception in the
back-testing results (for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023, there was no exception), which corresponds
to the green zone specified by the HKMA and the international
Basel principles.

20245 A BERENER KRGS RIB X
The Group’s actual profit and loss backtesting model in 2024
70
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The Group’s actual profit and loss backtesting model in 2023
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(b) THERBREE (&)

TIERRERNFEZNSE (&)
g 1E (&
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)

Value-at-risk ("VaR") (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the average daily
mark-to-market revenue from the Group's trading portfolio was a
gain of HK$839,000 (31 December 2023: a gain of HK$1,170,000).
The standard deviation of the daily revenue was HK$3,104,000
(31 December 2023: HK$4,587,000). The graphs below show the
histograms of the Group’s daily mark-to-market revenue for the years

ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, respectively.

EHE2024F 12831 AL FERMEFERAZE RS HE

HE2023F12A3 AL FERTEAEKAZERDHE

Revenue (HK$ millions)

of daily mark-ts ket revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024 Hi of daily k-t ket revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023
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38 ERERE (&) 38 Risk management (continued)
(b) WHEERERE(EZ) (b) Market risk management (continued)
TIERRERN G EZNSE (&) Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)
EBRE (& Value-at-risk (“VaR") (continued)
TRETTRZBFEMELARABERA The tables below decompose VaR by risk factors for the trading
Hih 2 ERAN SR EE GRS @R positions and the debt securities measured at FVOCI related positions.
BZEBESTEHT
RaBEE 1 RERE
1-day VaR for the trading positions
2024 2023
Wt #t
Approximate Approximate
& B ¥ #HE12A31A &= & T #HENANA
Maximum ~ Minimum Mean At 31 December Maximum Minimum Mean At 31 December
BETn BBt EBTx BT EBTT  BETr BETR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
MR Foreign exchange risk 16,030 2,635 6,082 3,969 26,116 1,949 7,144 3,265
MEER R Interest rate risk and
FENZRR credit spread risk 22,468 4,957 11,460 5,838 18988 2593 8993 6,090
EleELE Total VaR 25,801 7,118 13,762 7,799 32433 3,656 12,705 7027
DAAEBEGALMZERENSRREEEISEBRNER - 250XARE
250-day VaR for the debt securities measured at FVOCI and related positions
2024 2023
Wt #t
Approximate Approximate
& B ¥  HE12A318 && &I& T HENANB
Maximum Minimum Mean At 31 December Maximum Minimum Mean  At31 December
BETT BT BETx BETT BT E¥Tr  BETR BETL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FIEER Interest rate risk 3,785,311 2,026,472 2,919,368 3,780,341 2,711,948 1,379,795 2,104,127 2,119,267
EEFZRR Credit spread risk 3,059,553 1,613,874 2,517,113 3023315 1,788,230 763685 1417807 1623628
BORERESES Total VaR 3,275,784 1,654,331 2,393,449 3,257,462 2,041,088 1,230,093 1,692,179 1,773,222

—E[UER 169
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38 RREE (&) 38 Risk management (continued)
(b) ﬁl’*ﬂi‘ﬂl‘ﬁ"”‘fi (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
TR Stress testing
7] AN ERERAYRAREER N Stress testing is implemented as a compliment of the VaR model in
7 BMERNREEREAIRERENSH - order to capture remote, but plausible events. The Group uses both
AEERKENRBRENE L FERETTS sensitivity-based and historical-based scenarios for market risk stress
R EEAIE - AFRERTREREERE - testing. The results are reported to senior management, MRC and
misREBZEENEEREREEZESE CRMC."
I FE R o
SNE R B Currency risk
REEIMNERMRIRE AEE KB TTM The Group's foreign exchange risk stems from taking foreign
MBARNEERS  INEBHFERERE exchange positions from commercial dealings, investments in foreign
ERINEEER - NEBMINEES ERREE currency securities, and operations of the Group and its overseas
HEAKEMSEREZESRE - A J//{EJ_\_ branches and subsidiaries. The Group's foreign exchange positions are
SN [ B ) B 1R B HE B B & M A B B8 45 subject to exposure limits approved by the MRC. Methods adopted
SHEUARBRENFRER GER E’:‘M\E,ﬁﬁ to measure foreign currency risk exposure against corresponding
BE) o BIE2024F12A31BIEFE - AEH limits include individual currency positions, overall foreign exchange
WINEEBERNTHERBRREEBE positions and sensitivities such as Greeks (for foreign exchange
278,0007T (20234 : & K& #&760,0007T) & options). For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's average
HIZAERR 2= A #510,813,0007T (20234 : 7 daily trading profit and loss from foreign exchange positions was
#£15,661,0007T) © a loss of HK$278,000 (2023: a gain of HK$760,000) with a standard
deviation of HK$10,813,000 (2023: HK$15,661,000).
REZERRERINERBRIT - Significant foreign currency exposures at the end of the reporting
period were as follows:
2024 2023
AE®  Hfgw g £ ARE  EfpEX b
BSRERTR Equivalent in HK$'000 RMB Others Total UsD RMB Others Tota
RERE Spot assets 170889603 44942428 34224418 250056449 163866606 3BG67648 32370316 234904570
HEaE Spot liahilities (158,744,716)  (34,614,920)  (14,823,524)  (208,183,160)  (183,282,438) (35,419,889) (14247147)  (232,949474)
EHEA Forward purchases 566,094,879 361,108,987 45,061,281 972,265,147 597,655,659 362,751,221 68659310 1,029,066,190
EHEY Forward sales (572979872)  (369,138473)  (65365,374) (1,007483,719) (568170894  (369306138)  (38628791)  (1026,105823)
PEpEE Net options position (2629235 (154667) 1077900  (3,097502) (7155375 4067009 2056612 (1031754
k/(B) &858 Net long/(short) position 2,630,659 751,855 174,701 3,557,215 2913558 759,851 210300 3,883,709
ZEEEE Net structural position 636,053 145,526 781,579 - 659,869 48497 708366
HERFRERBEERMZENENFER The net option position is calculated using the Model User Approach,
EEEE - which has been approved by the HKMA.
RIEIRTT (ERR) BRR AR

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange exposures

(i) At 31 December 2024, if the HKD had weakened by 10%
against other currencies (other than the USD) with all other
variables held constant, the Group's profit after tax for the year
would have been higher by HK$77,367,000 (2023: higher by
HK$81,008,000), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains
on the translation of non-HKD denominated financial assets
compensated by foreign exchange losses on the translation
of non-HKD denominated financial liabilities. Conversely, if
the HKD had strengthened by 10% against other currencies
(other than the USD) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit after tax for the year would have been lower by
HK$77,367,000 (2023: lower by HKS$81,008,000).

(i) The Group is exposed to currency risks arising from financial
instruments that are denominated in USD, excluding structural
foreign exchange positions of RMB600,000,000 and MOP
150,000,000. As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between the
HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arise from its banking and trading book.
For the banking book, ALCO and RMG are responsible in overseeing
the interest rate exposure arising from its assets and liabilities
management. The function of central treasury units is responsible
in managing the interest rate risk using different financial products
including interest rate derivatives, under which hedge accounting
treatment is adopted. The interest rate risk includes gap risks, basis
risks and embedded option risks, and are governed by the Interest
Rate Risk Management Policy for the Banking Book.

For the trading book, MRC and RMG are responsible in overseeing
the interest rate exposure from its trading portfolio. Global Markets
is responsible in managing the interest rate risk using different
financial products including derivatives, under which mark-to-market
treatment is adopted. The interest rate risk includes basis risks, yield
curve risks and embedded option risks, and are governed by the
Market Risk Policy.

—EMEFER
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38 RREE (&) 38 Risk management (continued)
(b) WHEERERE(Z) (b) Market risk management (continued)
FER (&) Interest rate risk (continued)
BHZE2024F12A31HIEFE - AEEHEF) For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's average daily
EREFERERZHREEBANFEHETER trading profit and loss related to interest rate and fixed income trading
S8R BB FEE1,117,0007T (2023 F - strategy was a gain of HK$ 1,117,000 (2023: a gain of HK$410,000), with
BAEK4100007T) RHFERERBE a standard deviation of HK$ 10,140,000 (2023: HK$16,504,000).
10,140,0007T (20234 : /&% 16,504,0007T) °
T3 2 B G0 IR = 55T Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures
AEBESFHEAMNERBAEGREDT The Group measures the interest rate risk of the banking book by
RERRITRIMZ FIEER - RBREST conducting a sensitivity analysis of the interest rate exposure on a
- NEEBEAREERN 2 BELERT quarterly basis. The sensitivity analysis on the potential impacts of
HRENEEELE RSPMRI TEMNZEHF movements in interest rates on the Group's earnings and economic
EHRNNERBERBAZERTRL DK value are assessed based on the HKMA SPM IR-1 defined multi-sets
MEATS o BT EEFAREMAID A RIRR G of new interest rate scenario and interest rate volatility scenario
SERMFRERRF B REEBEBEEL requirements and the most stressed scenarios are selected below.
MBIEET » Certain comparatives have been revised in order to align with the
latest books and records and banking returns submitted to HKMA.
2024 203F
BE (i3 BE i3
it £n  AR%®  AR% Br  Hmgr it T AR ARE
BERBBTT  Equivalentin HKS'000 HKD usD CNH CNY EUR SGD HKD UsD CNH CNY
HARRDMEARN  Impact on eamings over the next
ange 12 months (814,831) (560,454)  (22,476)  (60,405) (9,095) (8,027)  (851,490) (81,575) (14,099) (47,949)
HOERENTE Impact on economic value (247,401) (1,594,105)  (87,974)  (64,756)  (10,413) (7,011) (692,166 (22,582) (78,245) (55,450)

R R GRS R IR A E R B FIEER
BRI EERREREEE W B
TR B TR 77

() ZOMERRBZEREENZENX
EIGIESUEDES N (=l

(i) WEMABRBEMEL

M S AR EFN S WA RKEE

ENERSBRZRREH THERTLE
BRI -

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

This sensitivity analysis, which is based on an interest rate risk profile
of assets and liabilities, is used for risk management purposes only.
The analysis is based on the following assumptions:

(i) The analysis is based on the requirements under HKMA SPM
IR-1 defined multi-sets of interest rate scenario and interest rate
volatility scenario.

(i) There are no other changes to the portfolio.
Actual changes in the Group's net interest income and the economic

value resulting from the change in interest rates may differ from the
results of this sensitivity analysis.
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38 Risk management (continued)

()

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to fund
an increase in assets or meet obligations as they fall due without
incurring unacceptable losses. Such funding liquidity risk arises from
the maturity mismatch of the assets and liabilities that the Group
manages.

The liquidity risk management framework is as follows:

- The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the liquidity
risk assumed by the Group and the manner in which the risk
is managed. The Board has delegated to the Credit and Risk
Management Committee ("CRMC") to oversee the Group's
liquidity risk management, which further delegates to the Asset
and Liability Committee ("ALCO") to formulate policies and
strategies related to Asset and Liability Management, including
liquidity policies.

- The ALCO is established by the Chief Executive Officer and
ratified by the CRMC as the governing body responsible for
formulating and implementing policies, strategies, guidelines
and limit structures. It also identifies, measures and monitors
the Group's liquidity risk profile to ensure current and future
funding requirements are met. In addition, the ALCO monitors
a set of risk indicators for liquidity risk. Daily liquidity stress
testing, which includes market general, bank-specific and
combined (market general and bank-specific) stress scenarios,
is conducted by the Risk Management Group, and the stress
results are regularly reviewed by the ALCO to assess the current
risk tolerance level and the level of the liquidity cushion. A
Contingency Funding Plan is established which sets out the
strategies for addressing liquidity stress situations. The plan
contains a set of policies, procedures and action plans, with
clearly established lines of responsibility, as well as invocation
and escalation procedures. This plan is reviewed and approved
by the Board on a regular basis.

—EMEFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

()

Liquidity risk management (continued)

- Daily liquidity management is managed by the Central Treasury
Unit to monitor funding requirements. This unit is supported
by other functional departments including the Financial
Management Group and Risk Management Group, which
monitor the liquidity risk and provide regular reports to the
management, committees and local regulatory bodies. Limits
for net cash flow per different time bucket under stress scenarios
have been set to ensure that adequate funding and liquid assets
are available to meet liquidity needs. Moreover, limits, alerts or
desirable levels are set for other liquidity risk indicators such
as the statutory liquidity ratios, the loan-to-deposit ratio, the
currency mismatch ratio and the maturity mismatch position.
Both quantitative and qualitative measures are employed to
identify and measure liquidity risk. Limits, alerts or desirable
levels related to liquidity risk are monitored and reported by the
Financial Management Group or Risk Management Group to
the ALCO to review and approve on a regular basis. The Internal
Audit Group performs periodic reviews to ensure liquidity risk
management functions are carried out effectively.

Liquidity management is conducted at the Group and the Bank
levels, and at individual overseas branches and subsidiaries. Financial
subsidiaries and overseas branches are responsible for implementing
their own liquidity management policies under the framework
established by the ALCO and local regulatory requirements, taking
into account their different liquidity risk characteristics. The liquidity
situation of overseas branches and subsidiaries falls under the
overall supervision of the ALCO. Policy and respective counterparty
limits are set for overseas branches and subsidiaries in respect of
the funding support extended from the head office. The Group
expects all business units to contribute to the success of managing
liquidity under normal and contingency situations by maintaining a
rapport with depositors, customers, interbank counterparties, related
companies and the HKMA.
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38

()

Risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

The objective of liquidity management is to meet obligations payable
under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset growth
and to comply with the statutory liquidity requirements. To achieve
this, the following liquidity management processes are in place:

- Projecting cash flows in normal and various stress scenarios,
using the net mismatch gap between assets and liabilities to
estimate the prospective net funding requirement;

- Factoring potential drawdown on irrevocable committed
facilities into our normal and stress scenarios to cater for
contingent liquidity risk;

- Monitoring the statutory liquidity ratios, the loan-to-deposit
ratio, the currency mismatch ratio and the maturity mismatch
position against internal and/or regulatory requirements;

- Ensuring a sound and diversified range of funding sources,
through monitoring the structure and the stability of the
deposit portfolio;

- Projecting the statutory liquidity ratios regularly for the short to
medium term to permit early detection of liquidity issues and to
ensure the ratios are within statutory requirements and internal
triggers;

- Projecting a high-level funding requirement and funding
structure during the annual budget process to ensure sufficient
funding and an appropriate funding mix;

- Conducting liquidity risk assessment before launching a new
product;
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38

()

Risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

Maintaining High Quality Liquid Assets (‘HQLA") comprising
cash and investment grade securities as a cushion against
unexpected funding needs. The amount of HOLA that the
Group maintains is determined with reference to the statutory
requirement and the results of the liquidity stress tests;

Maintaining access to the interbank money market;

Maintaining funding programmes to tap debt funding on a
regular basis;

Monitoring the Group's collateral requirement. Periodically
assess and review the additional collateral required under
derivative contracts and credit downgrade events. Based on
the positions at 31 December 2024, in the event of a 2-notch
downgrade, the impact on the Group's additional collateral
requirement is minimal; and

Maintaining a Contingency Funding Plan, which integrates
with the results of the scenarios and assumptions used in the
stress test, including setting early warning indicators (including
internal and market indicators), and describing actions to be
taken in the event of a stress crisis, so as to minimise adverse
long-term implications for business.

The Group funds its operations through a diversified funding source,

primarily from the retail and corporate customer deposits. At the same

time, it also participates in the wholesale funding market through the

issuance of certificates of deposit (“CDs") to secure another source of

term funding and to enable diversification of funding sources. Deposit

tenor mix and debt maturities are regularly monitored to ensure there

is an appropriate funding maturity mix.

Under the Banking (Liquidity) Rules, the Group being a Category 1

institution is required to maintain a Liquidity Coverage Ratio ("LCR")

and Net Stable Funding Ratio ("NSFR") above the statutory minimum

requirements.
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38 Risk management (continued)

()

Liquidity risk management (continued)

An appropriate level and currency mix of HOLA has been maintained
to ensure that the Group could handle sudden drains in market
liquidity due to adverse or unexpected economic events under the
HKMA's regulatory framework. Besides, the Group also monitors
and reports the LCR for each individual significant currency to ALCO
regularly to control the currency mismatch in the LCR. The average
LCR for the second half of 2024 is maintained at similar level as the
first half. It was mainly due to the offsetting of the impact from the
increase in deposit outflow and the increase in interbank inflow.

nEEREE (F19ME)

Weighted amount (average value)
20245 20244 20245 20245 20234
12H31H 9H30H 6H30H 3A31H 12A31H
Lt2=EE LZ=EE 2 FE b2 Z=E 2 ZE
For quarter For quarter For quarter For quarter For quarter
ended ended ended ended ended
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March 31 December
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
T RBMBEELE Average LCR 227% 198% 217% 195% 241%

AEBEREREREREMABES MEE
MBEEESRNESBR TARSZEEHE
T RPUBELERTAESNEERDE
EHARZHARECRT OREME) RAD E
BL—REE - TRIJIRBDEBEL KR
RAEAKEEGREEEMNAMNX ©

The Group always maintains sufficient cash and liquid positions as
well as a pool of HQLA as a liquidity cushion that can be liquidated in
stress scenarios. The majority of HQLA included in the LCR is Level 1
assets as defined in Banking (Liquidity) Rules. The below table shows

the composition of the Group's HQLA in the LCR framework:

INFESEE (FHE)

Weighted amount (average value)
20244 2024 2024 2024 % 20234
12A31H 9A30H 6A30H 3A31H 12A31H
2 ZEE 2 ZEE ‘2 FEE tZZEE T2 ZE
For quarter For quarter For quarter For quarter For quarter
ended ended ended ended ended
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March 31 December
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
—REE Level 1 assets 57,103,811 55,924,629 56,293,315 64,225,420 62,129,462
—REE Level 2 assets 23,206,340 19,543,585 18,513,384 15,102,257 13,202,648
#zE Total 80,310,151 75,468,214 74,806,699 79,327,677 75,332,110
—EMEFER
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38 RREE (&) 38 Risk management (continued)

() FRBELEKRERE(Z) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
REBRBASEHANEBETEES NI The Group also maintains sufficient available stable funding in support
HERIEENREBEERFHELTEEE of its longer-term assets to meet the statutory NSFR requirements. The
oo 2024F THFREERFRAL TN HFT increase in the NSFR in the second half of 2024 was mainly driven by
FEARTFPERIE IR - AEEIWER the increase in customer deposits. There is no interdependent asset
BCRITE ORBM) RADERREFRE and liability as defined in the Banking (Liquidity) Rules in the Group.

MEEKLAE -

20245 20245 20245 20244 2023

12A31H 9H30H 6H30H 3HA31H F12A31H

o EE o EE e EE k2 =E o =E

Quarter ended  Quarter ended  Quarter ended  Quarter ended  Quarter ended

31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March 31 December

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023

BEEESFHELLE  NSFR 149% 142% 142% 142% 157%

BIBECIRITE (BE) HB)  XEEKRA For the purposes of compliance with Banking (Disclosure) Rules,

T EREEMNEERBERERBEEEHESR information relating to the Group's liquidity are published by using

SEABHESNER WA AERITHHE standard disclosure templates as specified by the HKMA and they

uhwww.cncbinternational.com A [ B5 & 4 5% | can be viewed in the Regulatory Disclosures section of our Bank's
BB HEITER] o corporate website at www.cncbinternational.com.

178 P1ER1T (B BIRAF
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38 RREE (&) 38 Risk management (continued)
() FRBELEKRERE(Z) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) WBERTHBEELHNEEREBIN Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
UWTREASTRUNGEEHEZEEHNE The following maturity profile is based on the remaining period
HRRHR T HR A% - at the end of the reporting period date to the contractual

maturity date.
MmN 5 ARG EEES A se 2 HIAT As the trading portfolios may be sold before maturity, or
HE - MEFGFREAIREIE2 B 12E deposits from customers may mature without being withdrawn,
WIEA TR - Bt - 2438 the contractual maturity dates do not represent the expected
PREFETEGERRRSRENBE dates of future cash flows.
2024
MEANRLE 3fEAME  1FNE
E3f8A E3E:3 E5E
3 months 1year 5years
WEEE 1AM orlesshut or less orless  SEME B
@5 Repayable Within over  butover  butover Over RE@
Total ondemand ~ Tmonth ~ 1month 3 months Tyear 5years Undated Mot
BT BETr  E¥Tn  E%Tn  B%Tn  BMTn  E¥Tn  E¥Trn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BERERTRPRETH Cashand balances with banks and
&r central banks 10,537,339 9,942,000 - - - - - 595,339
ERTNERRBH Placements with and advances to banks 70,361,763 - 38291202 17,270,836 14411577 388,148 - -
EAREGHAE Financial assets held under resale
agreements
- DAREBEIABE  -atfairvalue through profitor loss 2,982,785 - 2238880 743,905 - - - -
- NESNAG & - at amortised cost 3,174,582 - 3174582 - - - - -
fEERIA Derivative financial instruments 19,365,077 - 2,990,563 3330551 4,866,666 6,487,196 1,690,101 -
SREE Financial investrents
~WARABESFABE - atfairvalue though profit or loss 2,040,808 - 66,736 7793 119998 310,130 121,988 1,344,022
~UAREEMARL  -atfairvalue through other
el comprehensive income 139,264,603 - 12,272,051 17,121,935 37,390,090 69,200,868 3,195,831 83,828
- NESNAGE - at amortised cost 90,179 - 87,286 2893 - - - -
ZEEFRBFREMEE Loans and advances to customers and
other accounts
- DRAEEFAEE - atfairvalue through profit or loss 11,960,075 - 774315 163,002 2,200,056 8,700,848 - 121,854
- NEBRAHE - at amortised cost 27,140524 1378633 34079513 18,196,740 68562725 63364296 31976131 9,582,486
Al E Y Tax recoverable 290 - - - 290 - - -
fPREEE Right-of-use assets 820,633 - - - - - - 820,633
VEYES Property and equipment 1,018,010 - - - - - - 1,018,010
BREE Intangible assets 537,835 - - - - - - 537,83
EREHAEE Deferred tax assets 874 - - - - - - 874
BESR Total assets 489295377 11,320,633 93,975,128 56,907,796 127,551,402 148,451,486 36,984,051 14,104,881
—EMER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

() FRBELEKRERE(Z) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) BERTHBELHNEEREGEIN (i)  Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
(&) (continued)
2024
MEAME 3EAME  1EBE
£3f8A E1f E5f
3 months 1year 5years
WEEE 1AM orlesshut or less orless  SENL Eitad ]
B35 Repayable Within over  butover  butover Over R#@
Total ondemand ~ Tmonth ~ 1month  3months 1year 5years Undated Mo
BETn BB BMTn BB EMTn BB EMTn BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilities
FOREMSREESN  Deposits and balances of banks
ERRER and other financial institutions 12141506 3,263,932 5970469 2,652,683 254,422 - - -
EFEH Deposits from customers 371313584 99,686,440 93,693,807 140,182,118 35,697,858 2,053,361 - -
IAREESABEE  Financial liabilities at fair value through
cRAR profit or loss 99,849 - - - 15,445 29,640 54,764 -
ENOERREER Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements
- URAREETABE - atfairvalue through profit or loss 2,294,942 - 1550986 743,956 - - - -
- SR 8 - at amortised cost 7652423 - 6121081 1,531,342 - - - -
ik Derivative financial instruments 18,393,793 - 2602676 2868770 4936589 6348558 1,637,200 -
BETENE Certificates of deposit issued 1,760,216 - 388,148 1164442 207,626 - - -
THFHE Current taxation 283,315 - - - 283315 - - -
EaE Other liabilities 14170136 551,797 5715971 2,771,648  3,029758 310990 5604 1,784,278
HEBR Lease liabilities 956,170 - 16,932 41,358 162,725 459,840 275,315 -
BEEAR Loan capital 3,859,664 - - - - 3,859,664 - -
ELHREE Deferred tax liabilities 1,648 - - - - - - 1,648
afEeE Total liabilities 432,927,246 103,502,169 116,060,070 151,956,317 44,587,738 13,062,053 1972973 1,785,926
BE-8EEE Asset-liability gap (92,181,536) (22,084,942) (95048,521) 82,963,664 135389433 35,011,078
B Of which:
BENESE Certificates of deposit held
~ Bt AARABESFAZ - included in financial investments at
HRERENEREE  fairvalue though other
comprehensive income 12,119,811 - 238,553 1,684,743 6,823,692 3,372,823 - -
BENESRS Debt securities held
- Bt AARABESF AR -included in financial investments at
BNERRE fair value through profit or loss 696,786 - 66,736 77,93 119998 310130 121,988 -
— Bt A RABESFAZ -included in financial investments at
HRERENSREE  fairvalue though other
comprehensive income 91,897,329 - 472112 4,074,858 18,316,397 65,828,046 3,195,831 10,085
92,594,115 - 538,848 4,152,792 18,436,395 66,138,176 3,317,819 10,085

180] HERAT (HR) BRAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i)  Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity

(&) (continued)
2023
EAME  3EAME 1EE
£3(EA EIF E5E
BEEE  1EAA 3monthsor  lyearor  Syearsor  SEME EFH
8% Repayable Within  less but over less but over  less but over Over =
Total  ondemand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1 year Syears  Undated "
BT TR AETR  BETR  AETR  BETR AT B%TR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BE Assets
B RERTRPRETH Cashand balances with banks and
& central banks 16931919 16,193,795 - - - - - T4
ERITNERRBR Placements with and advances to banks 55,052,186 - 28995932 9189148 16867106 - - -
EARERREE Financial assets held under resale
agreements
~UAREETABE - atfairvalue through profit or loss 3101202 - 2055181 1,046,021 - - - -
S e - at amortised cost 4592502 - 459250 - - - - -
fieeRIA Derivative financial instruments 19414161 - 3081797 3I0A 4025676 7013645 1,972,002 -
PRRE Financial investments
~I\RABEGFABE - atfairvalue though profit or loss 2449217 - 29612 50278 1415609 750945 87881 1383932
~UAREEFAZM  -atfairvalue through other
2EME comprehensive income 128,792,744 - 14476080 28775839 44156669 40848699 435,309 100,148
- RN E - atamortised cost - - - - - - - -
EFERREFREMEE Loans and advances to customers and
other accounts
-DRABEGABE - atfairvalue through profitor loss 5435290 8220 87,742 96900 1968150 345,946 - 2833
- AR E - atamortised cost 232,067,544 2500477 25643698 28498342 76951706 50825740 33579026 14,068,555
AEREE Taxrecoverable 9,582 - - - 9582 - - -
fPREEE Right-of-use assets 979571 - - - - - - 979571
nERE Property and equipment 972,680 - - - - - - 972,680
BHEE Intangible assets 401188 - - - - - - 401188
ERRBEE Deferred tax assets 187,145 - - - - - - 187,145
EE4AE Total assets 470386931 18702492 79062544 70877569 144120458 102684975 36074218 18,864,675

—EomER |8
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38 RREE (&) 38 Risk management (continued)

() FRBELEKRERE(Z) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) BERTHBELHNEEREGEIN (i)  Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
(&) (continued)
2023
fAANLE  3EANME 150 E
23R EyE E5F
MEEE  VEAA 3monthsor  Tyearor  Syearsor  SEME BIH
B8 Repayable Within  less but over less but over  less but over Over =10
Total  ondemand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1 year Syears  Undated (el
BRI E%TT  B%TT  A%Tn AT BT BETn AETR
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
g Liabilities
BOREMSEEES  Deposits and balances of banks
FRRER and other financial institutions 11,531,352 1,295,867 7754212 2343737 137,536 - - -
EPREH Deposits from customers 340730699 85216933 91700636 126169195 36268131 1375804 - -
IARBEABES  Financialliabilities at fair value through
cRak profit or loss 8,583 - - - - 8,583 - -
ELEESREER Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements
~URAREETABRE  -atfairvalue through profit or loss 2837191 - 1788381 1,048810 - - - -
- DB & - at amortised cost 16,300,747 - 14064606 2,236,141 - - - -
TEERTE Derivative financial instruments 19,408,277 - 3235522 3,506,175 3,939,641 6,754,591 1,972,348
BETERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,561,841 - - 149473 312,368 - - -
RETHIE Current taxation 209,146 - - - 209,146 - - -
Egaf Other liabilities 15401974 430904 6358910 4009991 2344689 293775 19730 1941975
HERRE Lease liabilities 1,075,740 - 14851 31,359 151,758 519,005 358,767 -
EHER Loan capital 7,806,176 - - 3003198 - 3902978 - -
EEHEEE Deferred tax liabilites 1,194 - - - - - - 1,194
BELE Total liabilities 416872920 86945704 124917118 144498079 43363269 12854736 2350845 1943169
EE-BEEE Asset-liability gap (68243212)  (45854574)  (73620510) 100,757,189 89:830,239 33723373
E: Of which:
BENERE Certificates of deposit held
—BAAAARBESAL -included in financial investments at
BEARENEBEE  fairvalue though other
comprehensive income 5,216,357 - 196,730 362,346 2132179 2,525,102 - -
BENELES Debt securities held
—BH AUARBES AR -included in financial investments at fair
REEREE value through profit or loss 1,060,285 - 29612 50278 141,569 750945 87,881 -
— B AUALBESAE -included in financial investments
HRERENERIEE  atfairvalue through other
comprehensive income 58,732,952 - 725,669 0498230 12725817 3832359 435310 24330
59,793,237 - 755,281 6548508 12807380 39,074,541 523191 24330

[BEPERRBR R EAMIARIE | hH

[BXAAH] BERCANREE
ERRENEPERRER -

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes: “Undated” assets included in “loans and advances to customers

and other accounts” were overdue and credit-impaired loans.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)
RBEcRMERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
SRS ERISBR D (i)  Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial
liabilities
UTHRSBGHRAS MBI EEN S The following maturity profile shows the undiscounted
BEEMNXFENEGNIEA 26 cash flows of the Group's financial liabilities on the basis of
THERENRITRRERE - T4 their earliest possible contractual maturity. The contractual
SR TENERRTRBASREES undiscounted cashflows for derivative financial instruments
BN E X MiRa RAEFENFXLT only included interest rates derivatives with interest payments
H£TH- computed using contractual rates.
2024
MEANLE  3ERME TENE
E3f8A E1f E5f
BehEng BIEFEE 1{BAA 3 months o Tyearor  5yearsor SEBLE
Gross  Repayable Within  less butover less but over less but over Over
cashflows  ondemand 1 month 1 month 3 months 1year 5years
BETn  EBTr  BETR  ERTn BNt ERTn BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITREMSRIEERN  Deposits and balances of banks and
FRRER other financial institutions 12,179,580 3,263,932 5,972,284 2,682,235 261,129 - -
EFEX Deposits from customers 375008943 99,686,440 94,591,164 141,939,412 36,660,727 2,221,200 -
AAREBERAE Financial liabilities at fair value
afERaE through profit orloss 130,472 - 107 378 19,581 44,345 66,061
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments 16,499,047 - 772987 1632579 4822126 8,479,545 791,810
BENEHE Certificates of deposit issued 1,783,059 - 392,978 1,178,063 212,018 - -
BHER Loan capital 4,813,030 - - - 232,889 4,580,141 -
410,504,131 102,950,372 101,729,520 147,432,667 42,208,470 15,325,231 857,871
2023
MEANE  3EAME 150 E
38R k3 E5F
Rengns ARER 1MEAA  3months or 1 year or 5 years or SENE
Gross Repayable Within~ lessbutover  less but over  less but over Over
cashflows — on demand 1 month 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years
BETT  B%Tr AT B%Tn BT B%Tr B%ETR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
SITREMSBEIED  Deposits and balances of banks and
k&R other financial institutions 11,630,056 1,295,867 7,778,139 2370017 186,033 - -
EFRER Deposits from customers 344790601 85216933 92806282 128046275 37207530 1,513,581 -
DA EEFIABEAR  Financial liabilities at fair value
tRER through profit or loss 9618 - 184 3 206 9,205 -
ITESBTA Derivative financial instruments 18,732,014 - 1,037,752 2,015,042 6,317,628 8,189,670 1171922
BEAEHE Certificates of deposit issued 1,593,219 - - 1274452 318,767 - -
EBER Loan capital 9,070,880 - - 3,994,897 234,276 4,841,707 -
385,826,388 86,512,800 101,622,357 137,700,706 44,264,440 14,554,163 1171922

—E-mER 183
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38

(d)

Risk management (continued)

Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are:

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business; and

- tosafeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders.

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group
as a whole. An individual banking subsidiary is directly regulated
by its local banking supervisor. The HKMA requires that the Group
maintains three prescribed minimum risk-weighted capital ratios:
Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET1") capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio and
total capital ratio. At 31 December 2024, the capital buffers applicable
to the Group include (i) the capital conservation buffer (“CCB") which
is designed to ensure that banks build up capital outside periods of
stress of 2.5% of risk-weighted amounts and (i) countercyclical capital
buffer (“CCyB"), which is designed to provide protection against the
built-up of system-wide risks, is set on an individual country basis
ranging from 0% to 2.5% of risk-weighted amounts. On 18 October
2024, the HKMA reduced the CCyB ratio for Hong Kong from 1.0% to
0.5% of risk-weighted amounts. Basel lll framework also introduced
a leverage ratio as a non-risk-based backstop limit, to supplement
risk-based capital requirements. The statutory minimum leverage ratio
is 3%.

The Group adopts the standardised approach of calculating market
risk in its trading portfolios and risk weightings for credit risk, and
the basic indicator approach for operational risk. Banking operations
are categorised as either trading or banking book, and risk-weighted
amounts are determined according to specified requirements
that seek to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and
off-balance sheet exposures.
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(d)

Risk management (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing, and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to comply with the risk-based
supervisory framework of capital adequacy stipulated by the HKMA,
the Group conducts the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process, which assesses the capital requirement for Pillar 2 risks and
hence the capital requirement for Pillar 1 and 2 is derived. Moreover,
as part of the capital management policy and to ensure capital
adequacy, the Group conducts capital planning annually, which
takes into account the strategic focus, future business growth, risk
appetite and regulatory requirement (including the Basel Ill reform
to be implemented by the HKMA). The plan covers the issuance of
capital instruments, if required, to ensure the Group's capital ratios are
well above their respective internal monitoring levels and regulatory
requirement. Regular stress testing is performed to ensure that the
impact of extreme but plausible scenarios on the risk profile and
capital position is considered. Stress testing also gives an insight into
the potential impact of significant adverse events and how these
could be mitigated.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the capital adequacy ratio. There have been
no material changes in the Group's policy on the management of
capital during the year.

The capital adequacy ratios at 31 December 2024 were computed on
the consolidated basis of the Group and some subsidiaries as specified
by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, and the Group's capital ratios are
well above the minimum required ratios set by the HKMA.

—EMEFER
Annual Report 2024
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38 Risk management (continued)

(e)

(f)

New Product Risk Governance

Definition of New Product Risk

New Product Risk comprise the risks associated with launch of new
products and services (including changes to existing products
and services), encompassing credit, market, interest rate, liquidity,
operational, reputation, strategic, legal and compliance risks.

Governance Framework

The Group has established an enhanced product governance
framework to instill more stringent and comprehensive assessment
and approval processes prior to launch. The framework is governed by
the New Product Approval Policy, which is approved by the Board and
under the oversight of the New Product Committee (“NPC") and the
CRMC. The effective implementation of the controls and monitoring
measures is driven by the dedicated unit under the Risk Management
Group, with the support from other risk management functions and
subject matter experts on specific risk areas, including the Controls
& Compliance Group, Financial Management Group, Operations
Management Group, Information Technology Group and CEO Office.

Operational risk management

Definition of operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.

Governance framework

The Group has established an Operational Risk Governance
Framework ("“ORGF") to identify, assess, mitigate, control, monitor
and report operational risk. The ORGF encompasses every member
within the Group and is governed by policies and guidelines which
define the minimum requirements to ensure a consistent approach
to manage operational risks. The Operational Risk Management
Committee ("ORMC") is established by the Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") and ratified by CRMC, which is a Board delegated Committee
to oversee Operational Risk Management ("ORM") and relevant
matters including but not limited to operational risk management
performance, and review and approval of relevant policies, risk
appetite and limits. Implementation of ORM plans and tools is driven
by a Group-level ORM department with the support from other key
participants and subject matter experts in ORM.



M TSR M

38 ERERE (&)

(f)

RIERAKREE (&)

BERRNER
ﬁTﬁﬁﬁ&aﬁﬁm%@mTWHA 5
SRR T =8M&R TR

F—ERAR - BFRERRERESEEAS
EIEERPT - SRAFI M A R ERR T

TD]JEjJ = uBFﬂI %ﬂ'ﬁ' © R%WHBFE]&QTE_LB
Wﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁul% Bl FHE - EEA
SRR IR ER R

EERER - RIERBREEISHBEAE
BERTTHRNIERIRERRMNET - Wi

RS B BV IR VERLBR B 3R
BN EE S - RIEREREIEARE
—BRETAE - BBRHEEEMEEE
EEXRRIRRENBRERREE - B
AREBHEBIRIERBKT REREMBEE
Kﬂ@% eI R EIRIER R EIE R
Bg EErMAREEZESLEENGR
BIREER - IREEHEE -

//IL%EE&ZEH E'J BE—

SFE=ERAR — NEERT BT E ERIER
REARBIFLEEURREARBRHER
BHEM -

PERASHNERER - M2 - R4 5
HEBLHEETHRERETNIRADFTL
TTJ—W FA D¥1E

Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Risk management (continued)

(f)

Operational risk management (continued)

Management of operational risk

To ensure effective management of operational risk across the Group,
the Operational Risk Governance Framework presents three lines of
defense as depicted below:

First Line of Defence - Day-to-day operational risk management lies
with our business units, support units and the Business Operational
Risk Officer ("BORQ") of each unit assists the respective unit heads in
this regard. Business and support units are responsible for identifying,
assessing, managing and monitoring operational risks.

Second Line of Defence - ORM department assists senior
management in meeting their responsibility of understanding
and managing operational risk and ensures the development and
consistent application of operational risk policies, processes and
procedures throughout the Group. The ORM department works
closely with the first Line of Defence (1LOD) to strengthen the
Group's operational risk management by offering guidance and
functional oversight support, monitors the Group's overall operational
risk exposures and ensures that all material risks are promptly and
appropriately escalated to the ORMC, CRMC and senior management
of the Group for their attention.

Third Line of Defence — The Internal Audit Group examines and
evaluates the adequacy and control effectiveness of the ORGF on an
ongoing basis.

Risk assessments are conducted on all existing or new material
products, processes, systems, outsourced activities and projects with
key changes to operations.

—EMEFER
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38 Risk management (continued)

(f)

Operational risk management (continued)

Key tools and methodologies

The Group identifies, assesses, monitors and reports on operational
risk through the ORM tools and systems as set out below:

- Operational Risk & Control Self-Assessment (‘RCSA") is a tool to
identify and assess the level of operational risk and effectiveness
of control. RCSA has been rolled out across the business and
support units under the guidance of the ORM department. RCSA
leaders are nominated by the management of each business
and support unit to conduct self-assessments and identify key
risk factors in their daily business and support functions. Each
key risk factor is assessed and quantified for financial impact,
in terms of the estimated loss impact of each occurrence and
estimated number of occurrences. In addition to the financial
impact assessment, non-financial impacts including customer,
regulatory and reputation impacts are also assessed taking
into considerations of both likelihood of risk materializing and
severity of impact.

- Key Risk Indicators (“KRIs") are statistical metrics that take various
risk factors into consideration and serve to provide early warning
signals for management’'s monitoring and action. Through
regular monitoring of these KRIs, areas of potential operational
control weaknesses can be identified at an early stage and
addressed promptly. KRIs are developed at two levels, namely
the group and the unit level. Unit level KRIs are developed by
the respective units, and are monitored and tracked for progress
towards completion of applicable mitigation plans. Thresholds
are established for each business unit and support unit with
reference to the risk appetite of the Group or the acceptable risk
level for the unit under each risk factor.
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(f)

Risk management (continued)

Operational risk management (continued)

Key tools and methodologies (continued)

Operational risk incidents are reported into a centralized
operational loss database. The ORM department ensures
all material operational risk incidents are registered in the
database, and are properly investigated, with corrective and
preventive actions promptly executed according to agreed
timelines. The loss data serves as a centralized database to
facilitate the calculation of the operational risk capital after
Basel Il implementation and produce regular reports for
senior management, ORMC and CRMC review on the impact
of significant incidents and monitoring of the operational risk
loss trends. An escalation protocol is in place to ensure that
operational risk incidents with significant impact are properly
reported to the regulatory authorities, if deemed necessary.
Lower impact operational risk events are also collected to assist
trend analysis and provide a more forward looking perspective
of potential risk issues that warrant for closer attention.

Operational Risk Dashboard ("“ORD") provides senior
management with an overview of the key operational risk issues
including but not limited to the progress of the RCSA reviews
and KRI evaluation results. This information is submitted to the
ORMC and relevant summarized information is submitted to the
CRMC quarterly as part of the Group-wide Risk Status Update
Report. The Group-wide Risk Status Update Report captures
the implementation status of ORM initiatives, contains analysis
on the trend of operational losses, highlights operational risk
incidents that have a material impact on the Group.

The Group will continuously fine-tune and enhance its Operational

Risk Governance Framework to align with industrial developments

and good practices. A web-based learning programme on operational

risk is required for all new joiners and an annual refresher training

on ORGF is compulsory for all staff. Training workshops led by the

ORM department are offered to business and support units with the

objectives to raise operational risk awareness among staff, familiarize
them with the ORM tools and enhance understanding of the ORGF
along with their roles, responsibilities and accountabilities. This is

further reinforced by strong management support which encourages

staff to embrace and pursue operational excellence.
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(f)

(9)

Operational risk management (continued)

Operational resilience

The Group has established an operational resilience framework to
prepare for and manage risks to critical operations delivery. The Group
will regularly review the operational resilience parameters (including
the coverage of critical operations), identify what risks or events may
affect or disrupt critical operations delivery, and assess whether it is
able to continue delivering critical operations through disruption
(including under severe but plausible scenarios). The review results
will be reported to the CRMC. The Group will also conduct scenario
testing to regularly assess whether it is able to continue delivering
critical operations through disruption.

The Group's long-term goal is to cultivate a proactive, responsible
and accountable culture on ORM, and achieve operational excellence
through robust and continuous operational risk management.

Legal risk management

The Group remains abreast of all legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to its governance and operations, and continuously
seeks to develop its people, enhance its systems and processes, and
implement changes as necessary to meet the demands and create
awareness of such requirements. Regular reviews are conducted with
respect to the Group's policies and procedures to ensure the same
reflect the latest legal and regulatory requirements. Issuance of new or
substantially revised policies and procedures are often accompanied
by relevant training. There is a strong process in place to ensure
legal and regulatory risks are identified, monitored and mitigated.
Any significant matters that arise relating to such risks are reported
as appropriate by the Legal and Compliance function to the Group's
CRMC or senior management.

The Legal and Compliance Department has been one of the key
partners in the business, providing legal and compliance advice and
support to all parts of the Group and working with business and
support units to ensure relevant controls are in place. In 2024, the
Legal and Compliance Department had actively involved in new
product launches and new business initiatives, strategically important
transactions and commercial agreements, outsourcing arrangements
as well as day-to-day matters arising from the Group's business. The
Legal and Compliance Department will remain heavily involved
in monitoring and ensuring compliance with changing regulatory
requirements in various areas impacting the Group, and will continue
to advise and support the Group in meeting the legal and regulatory
challenges that lay ahead.
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(h)

Risk management (continued)

Strategic and reputation risk management

Strategic risk management refers to the Group’s efforts to develop,
uphold and implement strategic decisions related to its long-term
growth and development. Reputation risk management refers to
the Group's efforts to protect its brand name and business franchise
from any potential damages arising from negative publicity and
information about its business practices, conduct or financial
condition.

The CRMC of the Group meets regularly to monitor and oversee the
Group's strategic and reputation risks. Senior management places
high priority on ensuring that the Group’s business and operational
strategies are appropriately defined and are executed professionally
and promptly. Such strategies are reviewed regularly to enable
the Group to respond efficiently to changes in its operating and
regulatory environment. Business priorities, set on a bank-wide basis,
as well as for individual business and support units, are aligned to
support the Group's strategies, and measurable targets are assigned
to ensure execution excellence. Great care is also taken to protect the
Group's reputation and to maximise its brand equity. This includes
ongoing efforts to monitor and ensure high standards of customer
satisfaction, operational efficiency, legal and regulatory compliance,
public communication and issues management.
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39 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(a)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

(0]

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are

made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics

of the financial instruments and relevant market information.

Fair value is determined according to the following fair value

hierarchy:

R20245E 12831 BN DA AEBEE

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2024 using

HREER HixE
ERMEHRE UHEENEE FEM
(B4 (SB28R) FBRNEE
Quoted prices Significant (%34%)
DREE in active other Significant
(#%8) market for observable  unobservable
Fair value identical assets input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETT BETT BT T BETT
REMDAEBEFE Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BEARESHEE Financial assets held under resale
agreements
—DWRREEFAER — At fair value through profit or loss 2,982,785 - 2,982,785 -
TES@MIA Derivative financial instruments
—PTETEMEAREE - Positive fair value of derivatives 19,365,077 584 19,364,493 -
SRIRE Financial investments
—RARBEFAER — At fair value through profit or loss
— ERES - Debt securities 696,786 643,040 53,746 -
—ERER - Equity securities 40,240 - - 40,240
— HigE - Other investment 1,303,782 - - 1,303,782
2,040,808 643,040 53,746 1,344,022
IARBEGAEMEE At fair value through other
W comprehensive income
- RENTRE - Certificates of deposit held 12,119,811 1,713,510 10,406,301 -
- BEH — Treasury bills 35,173,720 35,173,720 - -
— HihEHES - Other debt securities 91,897,329 77,915,313 13,967,932 14,084
—RHER ~ Equity securities 73,743 - - 73,743
139,264,603 114,802,543 24,374,233 87,827
EEERRBIANEMIRIE Loan and advance to customers and
other account 11,960,075 - - 11,960,075
175,613,348 115,446,167 46,775,257 13,391,924

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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39 AREETENERIA () 39 Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)
(@) AR EENENERTIA(E) (@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
() BEBRIFAEIAAREBEGE) (i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued)

R20245F 12 B31 BN DA AEBEE

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2024 using

HEEEE Hitt T =

ERMERE THENEE FEm
(E14) (%28) FUBENEE
Quoted prices Significant (%34)
DMREE in active other Significant
(%) market for observable unobservable
Fair value identical assets input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETT BETT BETT BET T
REMDABEFTE Recurring fair value measurements HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
= Liabilities
AR EEF ABZER Financial liabilities at fair value
Ea=VT through profit or loss
- BBERER - Short sales of debt securities 99,849 99,849 - -
ELPEeREER Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements
—URREEFAER ~ At fair value through profit or loss 2,294,942 - 2,294,942 -
THESRITA Derivative financial instruments
—TETEMERAREE - Negative fair value of derivatives 18,393,793 3,079 18,390,714 -
20,788,584 102,928 20,685,656 -
—EMER
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39 AREETENERIA ()
(@) AR EENENERTIA(E) (a)
iy PBEFTEAREEE) (i)

194 HEERIT

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

R2023F 12 A3 B AR EEFE

39 Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2023 using

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

HBREEE Hith+ 2
ERMIGHRE TEENEE FEMm
(F4%) (F24) FOBEEMER
Quoted prices Significant (ZB38)
NAEE in active other Significant
(4a%8) market for observable  unobservable
Fairvalue identical assets input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BT BT BT BT T
REMDNABENE Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BEARESREE Financial assets held under resale
agreements
—WRREEFAER ~ At fair value through profit or loss 3,101,202 - 3,101,202 -
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments
—{TETAMIEAREE - Positive fair value of derivatives 19,414,161 239 19,413,922 -
TRIRE Financial investments
- UAnEBEFAER ~ At fair value through profit or loss
- BBEHR - Debt securities 1,060,285 1,027,848 32,437
—BES - Other investment 1,388,932 - - 1,388,932
2,449,217 1,027,848 32,437 1,388,932
AARBEEFAEMET At fair value through other
W comprehensive income
- BENERE - Certificates of deposit held 5,216,357 1,020,428 4,195,929 -
- BES — Treasury bills 64,767,618 64,767,618 - -
HiEBES - Other debt securities 58,732,952 48,458,284 10,246,338 28330
T&ﬁn 55 - Equity securities 75817 - - 75,817
128,792,744 114,246,330 14,442,267 104,147
BEFEREBZINEMIEIE Loan and advance to customers and
other account 5,435,290 - - 5,435,290
159,192,614 115,274,417 36,989,828 6,928,369
&f& Liabilities
AR BEFABRED Financial liabilities at fair value
TRBE through profit or loss
- BEEAFER ~ Short sales of debt securities 8,583 8,583 - -
EHOBEEMEER Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements
—WRREEFAER — At fair value through profit or loss 2,835,191 - 2,835,191 -
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments
—PTHETEMERREE - Negative fair value of derivatives 19,408,277 622 19,407,655 -
22,252,051 9,205 22,242,846 -
(EARR) BRRA A
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39

(a)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(0]

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were
no significant transfers of financial instruments between Level 1
and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. For transfer in and out of
Level 3 measurements see the note 39(a)(iii) below.

Determination of fair value

The Group measures fair value using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements:

Level 1
Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical
instruments at the measurement date.

Level 2
() Quoted market price for identical or similar instruments in
markets that are considered less than active;

(i) Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
directly or indirectly, where all significant inputs are
observable from market data. This category includes
financial instruments with quoted prices in active markets
for similar instruments; or quoted prices in markets that
are considered less than active for identical or similar
instruments.

Level 3

Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs
where the valuation techniques include one or more significant
inputs that are unobservable. This category includes financial
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect the differences between the
instruments.

—EMEFER
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39 Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(i)

Determination of fair value (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments,
the Group determines fair value using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include net present value, discounted
cash flow models and other valuation models. Assumptions
and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and
benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other parameters
used in estimating discount rates, bond price and foreign
currency exchange rates.

The most common valuation techniques applied by the Group
to determine the fair value of financial instruments are for
interest rate and currency swaps, which are observable market
data with high reliability, and do not require the significant
involvement of management'’s judgement and estimation.
Observable prices and model inputs are usually available in the
market for listed debt and equity securities, exchange-traded
derivatives and simple over-the-counter (“OTC") derivatives
like interest rate swaps. However, the availability of observable
market prices and inputs varies depending on the products and
markets, and is prone to changes based on specific events and
general conditions in the financial markets.

Certain financial instruments need to be employed with
valuation techniques where one or more significant market
inputs involved are not observable. Examples of these financial
instruments are structured investments, OTC structured
derivatives and certain securities for which there is no active
market. For valuation models involving significant unobservable
inputs, a high degree of management judgement or estimation
is required to select the appropriate valuation model, determine
the expected future cash flows on the financial instruments
being valued, determine the probability of counterparty default
and prepayments, and select the appropriate discount rates.
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39 Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(iii)
IEMFTBRNRE
Significant unobservable  #E /5
inputs Range/average

FUBRENREN
MABENEZBBE

Fair value measurement sensitivity

to unobservable inputs

URABEFARENEREE

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

RPERREHR ReneMRRE
HipfRIE

Loans and advances to Discounted cash flow

customers and other model
accounts
EnEh BIE=HHE

Independent broker's
quote

Equity securities

HitRE REeREFREL

Other investment Discounted cash flow

model

UAABESARMEZAKENERRE

Financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

HbfiEs RenBITRRY

Other debt securities Discounted cash flow
model

i AR

Equity securities Dividend growth model

REIBRTWERES  BaErm B8P
ERRBREEMRA R EMRE —RE
BRUARABEFABENSREE LA
ARBEFAHEMEZARGSNSHIRE
BYIFRERMIGETEER - ARNRZR
REROTS  EARBENHERZ2R
HE TS EEEE -

EREBANERNERE

Loan obligor's credit spread

level

BaRAMREANYEER
Value of the property held by

29 B2 4065
(F19: 01 &)

29 bps - 406 bps
(average: 91 bps)

%71.120,000,000
US$120,000,000

the subject company;

NVRBMENEE
iR &

i) Value of the invested

property
ii) the discount rate

NERRER
i HTIR &

i) Forecasted cash flows

ii) the discount rate

VRIS
iR &

i) Forecasted dividend

ii) the discount rate

i) 7% #3,193,080,000
ii) 13%
i) HK$3,193,080,000
ii) 13%

R : 3% -30%

ii) 7.65% - 9.38%

i) Recovery rate: 3% - 30%
ii) 7.65% - 9.38%

) $2,216,000
ii) 2.96%
) $2,216,000
ii) 2.96%

Note:

Debt securities, equity securities, loans and advances to customers
and other accounts and other investment under Level 3 fair value
measurements are generally classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or financial investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income and are not traded in the active market,
accordingly, the fair value is estimated by reference to common market

valuation models.

SZWE39() (v P EGURME DT
Refer to sensitivity analysis in note

39(a)(iv)

SZWE39()(v) P EGURME DT

Refer to sensitivity analysis in note
39(a)(iv)

SEMTE39(a) (VT NBRED

Refer to sensitivity analysis in note
39(a)(iv)

2EME39()Iv) P BB D 1T

Refer to sensitivity analysis in note
39(3)(iv)

N

S2E M E39()iv) B BB D 1T

Refer to sensitivity analysis in note
39(a)(iv)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

39 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
(iii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)
The following table shows a reconciliation between the

NEARSATEN Z &5, opening and the closing balance of fair value measurements in
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
NDAREETA
DAREETA A2 ANENERRE
BRMEREE Financial investments at
Financial assets at fair value through fair value through other &8
profit or loss comprehensive income Total
EFENREH
REMEE
Loan and
advanceto  EHEF  HERE HtEREF 0 EERS
customers and Equity Other  Other debt Equity
other account securities  investment securities securities
A¥Tn  EMTn BRI ERTn  EMTn BRTR
BE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2024%F1518 At 1 January 2024 5,435,290 - 1,388,932 28,330 75,817 6,928,369
FEA Net purchases 6,461,726 - - (2,050) (252) 6459424
EH R Redlassification - 40,240 - 1925 - 42,165
PRARERERNE /(BX)  Gains/llosses) recognised in the consolidated
income statement 63,059 - (85,150) (144) 43) (22,278)
REMZERETETNEL Losses recognised in other comprehensive income - - - (13,977) (1,779) (15,756)
#2024%12 318 At 31 December 2024 11,960,075 40,240 1,303,782 14,084 73,743 13,391,924
REERMHENEERERE  Total gains/(losses) for the year included in the
GRERRTRANEREE consolidated income statement for assets held
at the end of the reporting period recorded in:
- BBl - Gains from dealing in foreign currencies (30,859) - (94,091) (144) @3)  (125137)
BENDAEEABRNER - Gainsless losses from financial assets at fair
BEWEER value through profit or loss 93,918 - 8,041 - - 102,859

REMEARETEINAAEE  Total losses recognised in other comprehensive

ek income

- - - (13,977) (1,779) (15,756)

198 h{ER1T (B BIRAF
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39 AREEFENEMIAE) 39 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)
(@ HUAAREEFENSERIAE) (@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
(i) FIBARMAAEBEFEER (Z (iii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)
RAEEFARME
AR AEERA EREN SRR E
BRNEREE Financial investments at
Financial assets at fair value  fair value through other Pk
through profit or loss comprehensive income Total
REEHR
M&ﬁ@ﬁ'ﬁlﬁi
Loan and Hith
advanceto  HftiEd EHRESF BERESH
customers and Other Other debt Equity

otheraccount investment  securities  securities

BT B%Tr BE%TT BT EETx

&E Assets HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
72023F1 A1 H At 1 January 2023 3,768,163 - 15,720 119,429 3,903,312
FEA Purchases 1630216 - (35190 (44441) 1,582,256
EFOHE Reclassification - 1413188 - - 1413188
BHEIEREA Transfer from Level 1 - - 12,945 - 12,945
REEAWRERERNWE /  Gains/(losses) recognised in the
(1B%) consolidated income statement 36,911 (24,256) 16 21 12,692
REMEERETHEROUE Gains recognised in other
comprehensive income - - 3,168 808 3,976
2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023 5435290 1,388,932 28,330 75817 6,928,369
REZBNBAENEER Total gains/(losses) for the year
FAREGREERETHER included in the consolidated income
MR AR - statement for assets held at the end
of the reporting period recorded in:
— BEINE s - Gains from dealing in foreign
currencies 8,578 - 16 21 8,615
—BENAREBEAB - Gains less losses from financial
ﬁﬁ'}%?ﬂﬁé”ﬁ SR assets at fair value through
2P profit or loss 28,333 (24,256) - - 4,077
R E iR & Wz B R Y Total gains recognised in other
RAEEESEE comprehensive income - - 3,168 808 3,976

—EComER (199
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TRTABFEAMEERAFELRE
FIRBIERN o

ARFERRRABBETRNAAERL
KARSRMRETE  BREMNER
EEFMEZERBRIMBEMNREREA T
EHERIE  TEMAER2E8ARME
BAGEFREGLENEENE - 8@
IKFE B2 4058 F - IEFIE AN
BT o BHN - ERB SR IAER
B AAEREENEZZ8B@EE -

Ht BN R BB BERRIE
BREOHRNRSRABBVAEF o &
BETEEIETABR2ALSRENE
WA SRR ER IR o

BEEFNDAERREES QBN
REMBEFERTE - HETHER
TABR2H RS RRIFANE
BYWEREENER -

AT RBTRERKMBETABRES
BEANEINOTREEES ZT
MEEE - BE=ZBAXTEEEGA
BRZEMITANDAETEHRE

EIBAARNABEF AR MEEK S
MEeMEE (BRES)  ERnEE
EEBEAGEREYERABRED
SRR RRRETE - TRERHNA
AREEFAEMEENSENFEIBR
ARABENBZE - REEAITHNSR
BRERTPI0NESEE R LER
AFENAEFNMANEL - ARFIBAR
HiEBEFNARBENEREE
28 R BAREHEBBRED

i o

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

39

(a)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(iv)

Sensitivity of fair values to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions

As of 31 December 2024, financial instruments categorised
as level 3 are mainly comprised of other investment and
sustainability linked loans (“SLL").

The fair value of SLL positions are measured by using
discounted cash flow model with assumptions of interest rate
and credit spread being risk factors for cash flow discounting.
The significant unobservable inputs for SLL valuation is credit
spread as derived from obligors’ rating, with underlying level
ranging from 29 bps to 405 bps and weighted average level of
91 bps. Also, the fair value is negatively correlated to the credit
spread used in discounted cash flow model for valuation.

The fair value of other investment is measured by using
discounted cash flow model with assumptions of forecasted
return on investment. The significant unobservable inputs
for valuation are the value of the invested property and the
required return for cash flow discounting.

The fair value of equity securities are measured by using net
present value model after considering the value of assets
and liabilities of the underlying company. The significant
unobservable input for valuation is the value of a US property as
the company's major asset.

Under a sensitivity analysis assuming all significant unobservable
inputs have relative movement favourably and unfavourably
by 10%, the following table shows the sensitivity of Level 3 fair
value measurements of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

For the Level 3 financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity securities), its fair value
is measured by using a valuation model to incorporate
assumptions that are not based on observable market data.
The following table shows the sensitivity of Level 3 fair value
measurements on the equity securities measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. The basis of 10% change
in reasonably possible alternative assumptions on risk-free rate
will determine the favourable and unfavourable changes on
the fair value measurements. For Level 3 other debt securities,
no sensitivity analysis is provided, as fair value is considered
immaterial.
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39 DAEEHFENESRIA(E)

(@) HUAAEESENEEMIA(E)
(ivy AAEENSBERZSEATHS

Notes to the Financial Statements

39 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
(iv) Sensitivity of fair values to reasonably possible alternative

BRER (E) assumptions (continued)
2024F12831H
31 December 2024
REERERHR® REM2E KRR
Effect on consolidated Effect on other
income statement comprehensive income
B (FF) a7 (FA)
Favourable  (Unfavourable) Favourable  (Unfavourable)
BETR BETR BETR BETR
&E Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MAABESAEMEE  Financial investments at fair value through
WEReEE other comprehensive income
—ERES - Equity securities - - 7,946 (6,502)
AR EEFABRN Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss
—EpRE - Other investment 78,116 (84,081) - -
- BaEH — Equity securities 3,251 (3,251) - -
- RFERRBEHLAE - Loans and advances to customers
fER1A and other accounts 23,085 (23,017) - -
Fak| Total 104,452 (110,349) 7,946 (6,502)
ZEZFR
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39 AAEEFENERIA(E)

(@) MUAREEFENESHIA(E)
(iv) RABENBRERSSETITNGS

Notes to the Financial Statements

39 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
(iv) Sensitivity of fair values to reasonably possible alternative

B (E) assumptions (continued)
2023124318
31 December 2023
RizalER R REMZERERE
Effect on consolidated Effect on other
income statement comprehensive income
B (~H) B (~H))
Favourable (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)
BRI BT BB BETT
{3 Assets HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MAABESAEMEE  Financial investments at fair value through
WEmeaEE other comprehensive income
- BB ~ Equity securities - - 6,015 (4,922)
AR BEABRN Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss
—HfE - Other investment 81,870 (89,033) - -
- RFERRBHRE — Loans and advances to customers
fi iR I8 and other accounts 19,073 (18,976) - -
k) Total 100,943 (108,009) 6,015 (4,922)

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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39

(b)

MABEFENEMIA (F)

UAARBEUANMTENSBMTIANAAEE
BREEHAN  FTESRIAYUARER
HIER - s LA BEE 2024 4F 2 20234F12 A 31
B AABEZERTANREBEYIER -

(i) =HEE
AEENEREETERRRE LA
RITRAPRIBITOET - HRITFR
kBF - -BEARETREE  BEFPE
RRBFR - TEERTER  ARRE
B ABRZNERRE UAREE
FAARMEHKENSRIRE RIAS
AT ENERIRE -

FERTRPRIBITHEF « HRITH
RARBREBEANRESBREENRRL
EBEXIREBTSMEREE  W1F
MEIH - Btk - BREERZEA(EEE

++

Eo

BEFEREBFNARBEELERE
BBTISN R RIRIRE AT I5 R R i
FEMEREE  AKERIMEARNER
EfE - BIREREERE -

Notes to the Financial Statements

39 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(b)

Fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value

All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at amounts

not materially different from their fair values at 31 December 2024 and

2023 unless otherwise stated.

(i)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets mainly include cash and balances
with banks and central bank; placements with and advances
to banks; financial assets held under resale agreement; loans
and advances to customers; derivative financial instruments;
financial investments at fair value through profit or loss; financial
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial investments at amortised cost.

The fair values of balances with banks and central bank and
placements with and advances to banks and financial assets
held under resale agreements are mainly priced at market
interest rates, and mature within one year. Accordingly, the
carrying values approximate the fair value.

The fair values of loans and advances to customers, taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and being mostly
priced at floating rates close to the market interest rate which
are mainly repriced within 3 months, approximately equals their
carrying amount.

—EMEFER
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39 DAEEHFENESRIA(E)

(b) AR EEUINTENESEMTIANIAEER

(&)

(i) =WMEE
BRTMEIN FIBESRBEHUAR
BEEZYHIRBEEEE2024F R
2023F 12 A3 B AABEDBITK

Notes to the Financial Statements

39 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value

(continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are stated at fair value or carried at

amounts not materially different from their fair values at 31

December 2024 and 2023, except the following:

FERAEALR
2024
RE<¥E 2QAEE
Carrying Fair E14R $E2MR E38k
amount value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BETT BTt BT BETx B¥Tx
HK$'000 HKS$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRIBE Financial liabilities
BEBER Loan capital 3,859,664 3,988,671 3,988,671 - -
2023
EE£%E AQAnEE
Carrying Fair B B2 F3M
amount value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BT BET BT BETx ABT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ot N=R Financial liabilities
BBEAR Loan capital 7,806,176 7,912,677 7,912,677 - -
RISERTT (EIRR) BRRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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40 FEMBEAERMBER  HtAE
kZERE

(a) FEHEBEARRERMBER HEMEHERIEAE
&f
UTRRESER(EATRILE) HERE
AR BRI EEERBAK MY HE
* - B FAGENIBRENENSEME

Notes to the Financial Statements

40 Credit related commitments and financial guarantees,
other commitments and contingent liabilities

(@) Credit related commitments and financial guarantees, other
commitments and contingent liabilities
The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of credit related commitments and financial
guarantees, other commitments and contingent liabilities and is
prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of capital adequacy ratio.

2024 2023

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HKS$'000

BEEREERER Direct credit substitutes 1,560,250 449,180

B 5 HEMNNEIER Transaction-related contingencies 1,011,734 957,848

HE ZEBNAIAE Trade-related contingencies 7,187,213 10,225,885

BEHBETFR Forward forward deposits placed 2,000,000 122,761

HApthAHE - Other commitments:
— SRITAI MR BUBSE B RRA — which are unconditionally cancellable or
B BRI ] B B EUH automatically cancellable due to deterioration

in the creditworthiness of the borrower 132,255,646 120,841,630

— REEAREIFHUAT — with an original maturity of not more than 1 year 5,815,156 3,612,805

—FREHBEEIFU L — with an original maturity of more than 1 year 11,346,399 10,065,860

161,176,398 146,275,969

B R kSR Credit risk-weighted amounts 10,110,006 7,925,419

EERENTE  BREHEHER 58
FEMRHEENERIEAE - FRORERE
A EREAFEPRHERBRER S MNEER
AR - SO BEEEES N2 BIERLH
EEPHRMBAZRBRNSHE - ANEE
BARREDIHRIDABA - AN
BHAKEESRE -

BRI E = B R B N S 5E /Y B B hnAE /i
0%Z 150% (20234F : 0%ZE 150%) 5 ©

Credit-related instruments include forward forward deposits placed,
letters of credit, guarantees and commitments to extend credit.
The risk involved is essentially the same as the credit risk involved
in extending loan facilities to customers. The contractual amounts
represent the amounts at risk should the contract be fully drawn
upon and the client default. As the facilities may expire without being
drawn upon, the contract amounts do not represent expected future
cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk-weighted
amounts range from 0% to 150% (2023: 0% to 150%).

—EomER
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40

(b)

(c)

1

42

FERBEARRMERRE - HttAE
ESBERE(E)

BAEYE

R2024F 2023128318 » TEERAR
ERERFTHNESR - BARERESARE
HIAREN TR EM B REARBEEENE
AT -

Notes to the Financial Statements

40 Credit related commitments and financial guarantees,

(b)

other commitments and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Capital commitments

Capital commitments represent commitments authorized and
contracted for projects, the purchase of equipment and lease
commitments outstanding at 31 December 2024 and 2023 not
provided for in the financial statements.

2024 2023

BT T BETIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

EEENATH Authorised and contracted for 106,875 159,326
BREEERENREEE (c) Contingent liability in respect of legal claim

R2024%2023F 12 A31H - KEBEWRE
ES M gE I H VBN ERERTER
TEEITE) o

EEER

AEBERFREEZFEARAEMIEAS
o RREBIAL - 55 - BIKEFIFEI &
HiEBRALUTEREE - HRNELEEY
FAREENEE  WELEEREELHR
AT BRERFBEREKRA

HESQAARRKERES

BEEERE AEEMN2024F12A318H
EEG AR AREEB MM A+ (5K
SRIERAR AR - MASBERKRITES A
FEHERERKIORBETEEEERA
Ej °

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

11

42

The Group was not involved in any legal action that would be
significant to the financial position of the Group at 31 December 2024
and 2023.

Trust activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions.
These assets and income arising therefrom are excluded from these
financial statements as they are not assets of the Group.

Immediate parent and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2024, the Directors considered the immediate
parent of the Group to be CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, and the ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be CITIC Group Corporation, which
is incorporated in Mainland China.
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(a)

RITZHMBRARKFEEEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Statement of financial position and reserve movement

of the Bank
BITH BRI T (a) Statement of financial position of the Bank
720245 12H831H At 31 December 2024
(LAB¥ REN) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
) 2024 . 202}
i BT BT T
Note HK$'000 HKS'000
BE ASSETS
e RERITRPRBITHET Cash and balances with banks and central banks 8,996,094 18,317,750
ERITHOTR LB Placements with and advances to banks 70,361,763 55,052,190
BARESREE Financial assets held under resale agreements 2,982,785 3,101,202
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments 19,349,811 19,409,182
SRIEE Financial investments
— URREEH AR - at fair value through profit or loss 2,040,808 2,449,217
- LA@M“@%AEM%EM&;& ~ at fair value through other comprehensive income 137,174,126 127,088,843
- LM%&@%XZIS;@ — at amortised cost 90,179 -
JENHT A R FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 3,070,595 7,185,109
RRER LB EMEE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 225,805,290 217,650,781
B ARRE Investments in subsidiaries 21 1,300,141 1,268,339
CREEE Right-of-use assets 760,766 941,407
MERRE Property and equipment
— B - Investment properties 391,900 378,900
— HiRREE — Other premises and equipment 598,276 555,516
BEEE Intangible assets 532,411 396,971
RIERIBEE Deferred tax assets 5,415 167,536
BEEAH Total assets 473,460,360 453,962,943
BERES LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
afE Liabilities
RITREMEREENTRE Deposits and balances of banks and other financial
institutions 12,141,506 10,926,471
BPER . Deposits from customers 358,169,090 327,627,349
URAARBETAEENSHEE Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 99,849 8,583
BHEOBeREEN Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 9,876,499 19,135,938
ITEERIA Derivative financial instruments 18,379,182 19,408,235
E%ﬁ/ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ Certificates of deposit issued 1,552,590 1,561,841
RETIIE Current tax liabilities 158,704 124,255
ELEHIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 1,247 316
HiBE Other liabilities 12,062,846 12,957,781
HEBE Lease liabilities 890,390 1,031,800
R HIB L Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,199,417 992,463
BBER Loan capital 3,859,664 7,806,176
BELE Total liabilities 418,390,984 401,581,208
e Equity
PR Share capital 32(a) 18,404,013 18,404,013
B Reserves 43(b) 27,329,967 24,642,326
MR A Total shareholders’ equity 45,733,980 43,046,339
HipigEmTA Other equity instruments 33 9,335,396 9,335,396
R Total Equity 55,069,376 52,381,735
EERkEEEE Total Equity and Liabilities 473,460,360 453,962,943
AEBEHRRD R 20255F3 A4 HEESE @R AN Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Director on
BRE A - 24 March 2025.
Pk HIE
SHEN Qiang BAI Lijun
4 4
Director Director

“ERIFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 BITZHMBRRERFEEES (&) 43 Statement of financial position and reserve movement

of the Bank (continued)

(b) AITHEZZHERBINEE (b) Movement in components of equity of the Bank
ARATEVME R HE 25 4B R BS99 I S ) IR SE AR A R Details of the changes in the Bank's individual components of equity
ST between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

5
The Bank
At
VES k& EE BHIE
Efthif  EHRE -REE (H3t33)
BRE  EAREE -BEE  Poperty Investment Regulatory REEN  BELE Otherequity ERLE
Share Capital ~ General revaluation revaluation general  Retained Total instruments Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits ~ reserves  (note 33) equity
EBTn NI BETn  EMTn  EBTn EB¥TR BMTn  RMTn EBTn ERTR
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000
R2024F1 718 At 1 January 2024 18,404,013 2,903 100,000 294533 (412,301) 15,883 24,641,308 24,642,326  9,335396 52,381,735
H2NuENERSED: Changes in equity for 2024;
AEEEH Profitfor the year - - - - - - 2550861 2,550,861 - 2550861
TERER2ENE Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - 73,838 439,900 - - 513,738 - 513,738
REEREUEAE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 73,838 439,900 - 2,550861 3,064,599 - 3,064,599
EERAET Transfer from retained profits - - - - - (2,232 2,232 - - -
THEN—RERESEL  Distribution payment for
AT Capital Securities - - - - - - (376958)  (376,958) - (376,958)
BEEN-RERES Redernption of AT1 Capital
Securities - - - - - - - - - -
AR Other adjustments - - - - - - - - ; B}
R2024E128318 At 31 December 2024 18,404,013 2,903 100,000 368,371 27,599 13,651 26,817,443 27329967 9335396 55,069,376
RABEIAIA At1 January 2023 18404013 2,903 100,000 294533 (1,193,376) 12565 23162753 22379378 13242724 54026115
HEDENERE Changes in equity for 2023:
TERRT Profit for the year - - - - - - 098479 2098479 - 2098479
TERERZENE Other comprehensive loss
for the year - - - - 817,031 - - 817,031 - 817,031
TER2ENESE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 817,031 - 209479 2915510 - 2915510
EBREAT Transfer from retained profits - - - - w06 3318 39,74 - - -
SHEN—RERESES  Distribution payment for
AT Capital Securities - - - - - - (656,257) (656,257) - (656,257)
BEEN-RERES Redernption of AT1 Capital
Securities - - - - - - (3411) (3411) (3907328 (3910,739)
LUIEL S Other adjustments - - - - 7,106 - - 7,106 - 7,106
RUBF1A3A At 31 December 2023 18404013 2,903 100,000 294533 (412,301) 15883 24641308 24642326 93353% 52381735
208] FI=IR1T (EIRR) BIR AR

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



B sR R 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

44 BIEWREAE 44 Approval of financial statements
R BMEREN2025F3A24BBES S The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
FEI IR AE A o for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2025.

—EER |209
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RISEAZF T AR Unaudited supplementary financial information

(BR¥FRIFIBASN - BB R L) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(A) BITRWERENEERERK (A) Regulatory disclosure statements available on the

Bank'’s corporate website

rEENEERBEGEEEARER The Group's regulatory disclosure information is published by
RENGTERBEREREMH[EER using standard disclosure templates as specified by the HKMA
BHmx] HABRBATAERTHAE (‘Regulatory Disclosure Statement’) and that can be viewed in the
Ik www.cncbinternational.com R [ B & ## £ | Regulatory Disclosures section of our Bank's corporate website
—EiPEF NMTHNEERBERRULFR www.cncbinternational.com. The Bank’s Regulatory Disclosure
PHEREEST2EREMHGERITE (H Statement, together with the disclosures in the annual report,
B)RADERNFABERE - 7B 7T HEHR contained all the disclosures required by the Banking (Disclosure)
BHREARERGEEE R WKRRT— Rules issued by the HKMA. Certain comparatives have been revised in
B FEHREIRDLBIEET - order to align with the latest books and records and banking returns

submitted to the HKMA.

210] RERTT (EIRR) BIRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



REEZH AT IEER

(B) EAXZRE

(i) BEXER

BARRLEZREBESERBEHOCGRITE
(BA) RADMBTE - AR EREKHA
TTREETHBRRMNGE EEFE - K17
RAMREDEIFEEERR T HRAR
H R DN AR BURR - T R ISR E LR

[BEARIEIRA]

A A

Unaudited supplementary financial information

(B) Capital adequacy

(i) Capital base

Capital adequacy ratios (“CARs") are complied in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the HKMA. The CARs are computed
on a consolidated basis covering the Bank and some of its subsidiaries
as required by the HKMA. The Bank has adopted the “standardised
approach” for calculating the risk-weighted amount for credit risk

and market risk and the “basic indicator approach” for calculating

operational risk.

2024 2023
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
LZERE-REXRTERGE Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1”) capital
instruments and reserves
EERTEERNLARE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instruments
—RERTEARBARNDEE plus any related share premium 18,058,853 18,058,353
RE %A Retained earnings 27,885,636 25,588,691
WEFEE Disclosed reserves 748,319 194,057
MBREERENSERE-RES CET1 capital before regulatory deductions 46,692,808 43,841,601
ZERE—RELR  ETRE CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
EERIEAERBELHIEAR Deferred tax assets in excess of deferred tax liabilities 874 187,145
HihE\EREE (HERCHEREFE) Otherintangible assets (net of related deferred tax liability) 537,835 401,188
AEEEM T REEY M EEH Cumulative fair value gains arising from
ZHANEERN(REERK the revaluation of land and buildings
BEME) (own use and investment properties) 315,706 294,930
—RIRITRBEE B Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 2,512,256 2,219,486
HERAE Valuation adjustments 20,951 50,357
BETETEANNERESFMEEFZE  Debt valuation adjustments in respect of derivative contracts 3,178 3,538
EERE-—REXNLTREREHE Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 3,390,800 3,156,644
ZTERE-—QREXR CET1 capital 43,302,008 40,684,957
BH—REX Additional Tier 1 (“AT1”) capital
BN —RER AT1 capital 9,335,396 9,335,396
—iREX Tier 1 capital 52,637,404 50,020,353
“REXTARRBE Tier 2 capital instruments and provisions
BEB ZRERREBER D Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any related share
iyl premium 3,881,475 7,809,206
FAEN LI REZEHEEEEET Reserve attributable to fair value gains on revaluation of
EENAABENOEERHE holdings of land and buildings 142,068 132,719
BERZRERA—RRITRARLES Collective impairment allowances and regulatory reserve for
HELEREERE general banking risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 3,334,382 3,287,942
HIBREIERI M — R E Tier 2 capital base before deductions 7,357,925 11,229,867
ZREX D EERE Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
ZHRERR)ETERIE Regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital - -
ZREX Tier 2 capital 7,357,925 11,229,867
EXBHE Total capital 59,995,329 61,250,220
—EMER
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(B)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Unaudited supplementary financial information

EXxRE (&) (B) Capital adequacy (continued)
BB nE SRR (i) Risk-weighted assets
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
— EERR — Credit risk 282,271,140 270,835,420
— iR — Market risk 16,246,300 16,806,075
— ZERR — Operational risk 18,155,213 16,669,988
316,672,653 304,311,483
BEAR7 B (iii) Capital adequacy ratios
2024 2023
— TR R AR & — CET1 capital ratio 13.7% 13.4%
— — B AR E —Tier 1 capital ratio 16.6% 16.4%
— BB AR E - Total capital ratio 18.9% 20.1%
BEAXTAH (iv) Capital instruments

AREBENEERE-RER  BI—RER

EHRZRERTRBEHENT

Capital Securities and Tier 2 capital instruments.

The following is a summary of the Group's CET1, Additional Tier 1

2024 2023
BYTT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FITRITHEBRE-—RELIR CET 1 capital instruments issued by the Bank
TR Ordinary shares:
BEITRAR L®EAR12,111,121,568 /% 12,111,121,568 issued and fully paid ordinary shares 18,404,013 18,404,013
2024 2023
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
B —REXES Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities
TI{E600,000,000E TR KB IERFET%  Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
BERFFH (2021 F317) securities with US$600 million (issued in 2021) 4,647,489 4,647,489
M{E600,000,000F TR K BRI IERTER  Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
EERESH (FR2022F317) securities with US$600 million (issued in 2022) 4,687,907 4,687,907
9,335,396 9,335,396

212 RERAT (B BIRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(B)

(iv)

(v)

Unaudited supplementary financial information

EXxRE (&) (B) Capital adequacy (continued)
EXTHE(E) (iv) Capital instruments (continued)
2024 2023
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
“HREXTIR Tier 2 capital instruments
RITEEAT Issued by the Bank
— FREF4625% * E{E500,000000%F7C - US$500 million Subordinated Fixed Rate
B EZE (R2029FF5H) Notes at 4.625% (due in 2029) - 3,903,198
— F B EF6.00% * H{E500,000,0005 7T ~ US$500 million Subordinated Fixed Rate
R&ERE (R 2033FFI8) Notes at 6.00% (due in 2033) 3,859,664 3,902,978
3,859,664 7,806,176

REER
BRFEFRIZIBASN - AN 2 B 5 ¥R 1O P B 7%

BRHAURETM S NG ERER - 528
AW et ms BREEMsNEERDRIE

RRIE BEAIT AT HAMBAT - ik
EAIRBEATRATEFHBRR - 15

o

RITERBCRITE (BAR) KH)F3C(1)
& RTIIMBRARAGREERFTEHEE
7N

(v) Basis of consolidation

Unless otherwise stated, all financial information contained in the

annual financial report is prepared according to the consolidation

basis for accounting purposes. The main difference between the

consolidation basis for accounting and

regulatory purposes is that

the former includes the Bank and all its subsidiaries whereas the latter

includes the Bank and only some of the
are disclosed as follows:

Group's subsidiaries, which

The Bank is required under section 3C(1) of the Banking (Capital) Rules

to calculate its total capital on a consolidated basis in respect of the

following subsidiaries:

2024%12A318
At 31 December 2024

BEEAH ERBE

Total assets Total equity

BT BETT

i)z NGRS Names of subsidiaries TERER Principal activities HK$'000 HK$'000
EREEERAA Carford International Limited L E L] - Property holding 20,765 9,387
FR{EHRTEE (PE) BBAR CTICBank International (China) Limited — — $R1T - Banking 21,341,055 1,567,491
RERBRREEERAR CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited - Ripga - Insurance broker 760,991 735,594
EREANVBER AT HKCB Finance Limited - BERRE - Consumer financing 310,595 309,913
RERT () BB AR The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited — {57 R - Trustee services 2,448 2,448
—EMEFER
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(B)

(v)

(@

EXRE (E)

REER(E)
RERBARBOMBERRIEHE FTTEDN
EERBHAENEE  MRFEE LR
CRITE (BAR) RAD BB CRITEEDD
BB RER TR ERNAI R B 2 5
BIARAT - Btk - RARCERTTE (BAR) RAID
F38D  RITUERA AR EHRE LR
WABIEATHEAR

Unaudited supplementary financial information

(B) Capital adequacy (continued)

(v)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries not included in consolidation for regulatory purposes
are mainly nominee services companies that are authorised and
supervised by a regulator and are subject to supervisory arrangements
regarding the maintenance of adequate capital to support business
activities comparable to those prescribed for authorised institutions
under the Banking (Capital) Rules and the Banking Ordinance. The
following subsidiaries are deducted from the Bank’s capital base
under Part 3 of the Banking (Capital) Rules:

2024%F12A31H
At 31 December 2024

EEAR ERBE

Total assets Total equity

BETT BRI

WEARERE Names of subsidiaries FTEXK Principal activities HK$'000 HK$'000

BBEABT (REA)BRADA  The Hongkong Chinese Bank — RIE AR - Nominee services

(Nominees) Limited 4 4

SEHT(RE)ERLH The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited ~ — RIZAJRTS - Nominee services 113 -

Security Nominees Limited Security Nominees Limited - REARS - Nominee services - -

EREREEERERAA CNCBI Asset Management Limited - NEE - Inactive 8,882 8,882

EREBEFLERAT CNCBI Trustee Limited —EiEE% - Trustee services 10,870 8,917
EREE ORY) BAREMAERAT  CNCBIDigital Intelligence (Shenzhen)  — RFIIAEE - Not yet commenced

Information Technology Limited business 31,803 31,803

HRAHNSHANEESSHBERNOE TA
A TE2024%F 202312 A31 B {ERHE
BEEHFE -

AN - REBERBEMHEARRBEERM
EEMENGEAHRENR  MARRESTM
SHEAEEN -

EBRRFARNERTH

REEH  ARBRERENERRE
AT EEBRIERBAERERS

(@

For all subsidiaries included in both the accounting and regulatory
scope of consolidation, the same consolidation methodology is
applied at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

There are also no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory
scope of consolidation but not included within the accounting scope
of consolidation.

Capital charge for operational risk
The capital charge for operational risk of the Group calculated in

accordance with the basic indicator approach at the end of the
reporting period is:

2024 2023

BT T BT IT

HKS$'000 HKS'000

EBIRIERBHNE AT H Capital charge for operational risk 1,452,417 1,333,599

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Unaudited supplementary financial information

(D) E—FIHMEFERREMR

(D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

BEFERLBRRZENGD RS EE IR

BEERNBEERELON - REBTEE
TR RASE BFERANDBRERES

Loans and advances to customers analysed by the coverage of
collateral, overdue amount and the impairment allowance is as
follows. The economic sector analysis is based on the categories and

Ao definitions used by the HKMA.
2024 2023
ERERD R
EFEXR EFERK
BREH BIEE
EFERR BAE EPERR BAX
EE L % of gross 2HE8E % of gross
Gross loans loans and Gross loans loans and
and advances advances to and advances advances to
to customers customers to customers customers
BETT covered by BT covered by
HK$'000 collateral HK$'000 collateral
IEem Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER ~ Property development 6,566,953 61 7,042,615 79
-WERE ~ Property investment 22,837,176 93 22474814 98
- EREE - Financial concerns 25,982,832 6 22,989,260 5
- REER - Stockbrokers 1,966,095 20 1,497,664 31
- HERTEX - Wholesale and retall trade 8,716,204 81 8,761,242 84
—BlER - Manufacturing 5,566,953 28 5,904,061 28
— BRI RERTE ~Transport and transport equipment 3,298,519 20 3,385,442 13
—REED ~ Recreational activities 205,698 - 660,273 4
— BARH - Information technology 600,865 7 598,783 7
- HEft - Others 12,638,358 55 9,596,138 75
(G Individuals
-BE[EEEHEFE]. - Loansforthe purchase of flats under the
[AEEB2EEE Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
HER[EEEERE Participation Scheme and Tenants Purchase
AEIMBFER Scheme 13,767 100 13970 100
-BEEMEENE — Loans for the purchase of other residential
HER properties 24,382,678 100 22343811 100
— [ERERR - Credit card advances 864,995 - 619,417 -
— HEft - Others 14,784,675 88 16,951,606 87
TEEBFERNERRETEE  Gross loans and advances for use in Hong Kong 128,425,768 63 122,839,096 68
ZHRE Trade finance 7,153,152 20 5,524,125 2
EEEIMERRET KRB  Gross loans and advances for use outside
k] Hong Kong 93,611,089 24 97,923,045 2
EFERRBNEE Gross loans and advances to customers 229,190,009 46 226,286,266 47
“TMER
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Unaudited supplementary financial information

(D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

(continued)

The analysis of impaired loans and advances to customers of the

individual loan usage category, which accounted for 10% or more of

s the gross loans and advances to customers, is as follows:
2024
ERERER
BENES
BEEF EERXER
BHEF EXRRER E1RE EPLE F3BEA  Expected credit
ERRBH Impaired REEE REEE REEE losses on
Overdue loans loans and BRERE BAER BAER income FREH
and advances advances Stage 1 ECL Stage 2 ECL Stage 3ECL statement Written off
to customers  to customers allowances allowances allowances  during the year  during the year
BETR BB BRI L S BRI BETR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRLE Financial concemns 51,382 51,382 33,966 - 35977 18,840 -
BEHMEENEN Loans for the purchase of
X other residential properties 65,692 71,640 1,989 873 6,422 5,508 1023
ik iediili Gross loans and advances for
ERRBsaE use outside Hong Kong 2,856,458 3,084,777 302472 103,350 1,259,706 2,243,488 1,525,361
2023
ERERRE
BEnES
REEP EERXER
il ks BERRBH F1RE FEE F3WEE Expected credit
ERRBEHT Impaired s BEEE BEEE losses on
Overdue loans loans and BRER BRER BREE income EWFEE
and advances advances Stage 1 ECL Stage 2ECL Stage 3ECL statement Written off
to customers to customers allowances allowances allowances  during the year  during the year
BETT BEFT BETT BETT BETT BEFT BETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
SHER Financial concerns 51382 51382 28739 4175 18,189 11,168 -
EEELIMERL Gross loans and advances for
BERRETEE use outside Hong Kong 2459613 2981621 215,761 59,181 26,285 2427416 2518497

FRIEIRTT (EIFR) BRRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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D) E—FToMEFERRBR(HZ) (D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers
(continued)
R E 5 AT By geographical areas
2024

EFEX ag%EF HEZF F1ER EPLE EX]EE
R LEVEE LEVEE BHEE RHEE BHEE
Loansand  Overdueloans  Impaired loans BRER BREfR BXER
advancesto  andadvances  and advances Stage 1 ECL Stage 2 ECL Stage 3ECL

customers tocustomers  to customers allowances allowances allowances
BETR BB BETT BETR BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B5 Hong Kong 158,824,591 3,553,529 3,659,871 248,056 88,722 1,427,603
hE R Mainland China 37,919,904 534,170 627,141 147,019 7,880 105,157
B8 United States 11,648,946 127,191 262,417 43,814 50,910 85,270
;Mg Singapore 7,673,249 27,13 17,7123 25,448 - 120,369
=4 Others 13,123,319 81,163 81,163 23,388 80,512 40,380
229,190,009 4,543,776 4,878,315 487,725 228,024 1,778,779
2023
Al Ea

RPER EFRER HEXF FE1fE8 FBE B,
e Overdue EFREHN BHEE BHEE BEEE
Loans and loansand  Impaired loans BREE BREE BREMR
advances to advances  and advances Stage T ECL Stage 2ECL Stage 3ECL
customers to customers to customers allowances allowances allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BiE Hong Kong 159,004,495 3,139,502 3,716,065 164,664 344,564 195,537
HE N, Mainland China 36274617 481,778 599,441 70682 169,881 2957
EJE] United States 10,364,300 580,515 580,515 50,762 19,370 -
g Singapore 7471950 244,140 244,140 18046 73898 26,179
Eftr Others 13,170904 2567 27,259 19,939 36,769 -
226,286,266 4448502 5167420 324093 644,482 224,673
Lt ESTERR ZEFHERES - The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the
WEERRERER - BERSHHFENTM counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a
BIR & — S 1EL B R EERR GEEER claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the

FHEKERES - counterparty, risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
BEER R B IREIEAMNER - Overdue loans and advances are loans that have been overdue for

more than three months.

BEERRBRRIEREREELIRETER Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
BEREEmS 1.)“3'] FHEMER exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

—E-mER |217
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Unaudited supplementary financial information

BRMEERA ZER LB HEHAS N

(E) AMHEE (E) Overdue assets
BAHEFERRERK Overdue loans and advances to customers
2024 2023
HEFER WEFER
REBHaE REBFET
BOE Bok
% of total 9% of total
loans and loans and
BETT  advancesto BETT advances to
HK$'000 customers HKS'000 customers
L WE Rk The gross amount of loans and advances has been
EmHRE overdue for periods of;
—3ANULEZE6A -6 months or less but over 3 months 146,793 0.06 631,341 028
—6fHANEE1F ~ 1 year or less but over 6 months 574,044 0.25 1322114 0.58
—1FHRE — over 1 year 3,822,939 1.67 2,495,047 1.10
4,543,776 1.98 4,448,502 1.96
BEABMER RN Secured overdue loans and advances 2,873,547 3,136,342
ERFBRERRBK Unsecured overdue loans and advances 1,670,229 1312,160
4,543,776 4,448,502
RERERBHENR Market value of collateral held against the
BRZEHRME secured overdue loans and advances 5,662,075 5,193,325
HEEEEXERE Expected credit losses allowances 1,666,275 197,775

Loans and advances with specific repayment dates are classified as

BEEaH  YRF&RIARER - RIZIE
BHRIE - AIRNBIH B FEmERA
REEFRA > EERADRIZERER -
%/ SFEREBEERAEBANOIER
B2 UL EREERE s R - 7h5)
TR EABR IR o

PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

overdue when the principal or interest is overdue and remains unpaid
at the year end. Loans repayable on demand are classified as overdue
either when a demand for repayment has been served on the
borrower but repayment has not been made in accordance with the
demand notice, and/or when the loans have remained continuously
outside the approved limit advised to the borrower for more than the
overdue period in question.
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HREE REE -
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Unaudited supplementary financial information

(E) Overdue assets (continued)

Overdue loans and advances to customers (continued)

Eligible collateral, which is held in respect of the overdue loans and
advances, is ‘Eligible Physical Collateral” which mainly comprises real
estate properties. The eligible collateral should generally satisfy the
following:

(@  The market value of the asset is readily determinable or can be
reasonably established and verified.

(b)  The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposal of the asset.

() The Bank's right to repossess the asset is legally enforceable and
without impediment.

(d) The Bankis able to secure control over the asset if necessary.

There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions and
trade bills which were overdue for over three months at 31 December
2024 and 2023.

Other overdue assets

There was financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income amounted HKS$ 15,619,000, which were overdue for over three
months at 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$43,363,000).

—EMEFER
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Unaudited supplementary financial information

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(F) REAER (F) Rescheduled loans
2024 2023
HEFEXR HEFER
REBHRAHE R4 E
ARE AnE
% of total % of total
loans and loans and
BT advances to BT T advances to
HK$'000 customers HKS$'000 customers
REHER Rescheduled loans 12,973 0.006 154,445 0.068
KEHBERZEERAARY NSk EE Rescheduled loans are those advances which have been restructured
AR R A & 5 R BiE K AR E GG S or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the financial position
BEAK - B LRI R ERIRG S AR EE M of the borrower, or the inability of the borrower to meet the original
FWIE—MEERER - EFPEEAEREHR repayment schedule and for which the revised repayment terms are
HigmHE@mE3E A W E MK E) ERME non-commercial to the Group. Rescheduled loans to customers are
HRSAZR o stated net of any advances that have subsequently become overdue
for over three months and are reported as overdue advances in note
(E).
R2024F 2023128318 » REET# There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
BEMAMIBITNEME BB EAK - which were rescheduled at 31 December 2024 and 2023.
(G) MEEE (G) Repossessed assets
2024 2023
BT BT T
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
BERARFPERRER K Included in loans and advances to customers and
H b ERIE other accounts 291,517 285,257
LA ESREA2024F %2023 12 31 HELE The amount represents the estimated market value of the repossessed
BEMMFTTISEE - assets at 31 December 2024 and 2023.
RIEIRTT (ERR) BRR AR
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(H)

Unaudited supplementary financial information

EIpRERE (H) International claims
RERIEME B 2 BIRERNAN 2 International claim refers to the sum of cross-border claims in all
BEENENTL2BREECHEEREH currencies and local claims in foreign currencies determined as based
BIRRITEB R MR IECN T AFE - on the calculation methodology specified in the HKMA's Return of
RERRSEEABRAZTNEIZEHTF International Banking Statistics. International claims are on-balance
FiT7E B 2% sl b & 93 5B 1 & f A HE 8 A 18 (= sheet exposures of counterparties which attributable to the country or
EAEREAREET D 10% AY B K gk i [ 55 26 40 segment, after taking into account risk recognised transfer, constitute
T to not less than 10% of the aggregate claims are disclosed as follows.
2024
FRTIHRARE
Non-bank private sector
FRAT
SRE S
Non-bank hARE
1T ERHE financial  Non-financial B
Banks  Official Sector institutions  private sector Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEER Developed countries 55,433,609 30,368,019 3,312,593 7,979,660 97,093,881
BETL Offshore centres 15,009,555 334,382 30,460,977 50,237,721 96,042,635
B &/E of which Hong Kong 3,828,147 333,806 26,300,803 41,236,699 71,699,455
BRAGAR Developing Asia-Pacific 47,613,314 2,142,062 8,222,522 34,523,169 92,501,067
e hEA of which Mainland China 43,292,092 2,141,677 7,241,476 27,576,267 80,251,512
2023
JERITHL AR
Non-bank private sector
IEIRAT
DRIEE o
Non-bank AR
17 BAKE financial Non-financial ek
Banks Official Sector institutions private sector Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
EERER Developed countries 35,366,170 28,616,141 1,953,132 3,742,970 69,678,413
ige Offshore centres 13,182,262 429,752 25,379,500 44,945,252 83,936,766
Hep: & of which Hong Kong 3,572,608 429,223 22,464,099 33,528,626 59,994,556
BERTAR Developing Asia-Pacific 45,466,135 2515369 5,109,123 30,458,781 83,549,408
Hep : hE A of which Mainland China 41,119,763 2,514,485 4,751,233 26,484,499 74,869,980

—EER |221
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Unaudited supplementary financial information

() RitER ()  Mainland Activities
N ZETS e AN E B IFRTTR Y F A+
AR EIE o L IIRIBESE R(ANHZE
TR ) PTYIR 2 B RE R N B R 2 $8
RIVEDEE o

Mainland Activities are Mainland China exposures to non-bank
counterparties and their categories and the type of direct exposures
defined by the HKMA's Return of Mainland Activities.

2024
BHMRRERA B AR RS
BRI B BRI
On-statement Off-statement
of financial of financial HE
position exposure position exposure Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(1) BREUT - FREFER (1) Central government, central government-owned
R R AN E R R entities and their subsidiaries and
RELF joint ventures ("Vs") 50,735,511 6,710,950 57,446,461
() B - #FBAER () Local governments, local government-owned
R R A B R R entities and their subsidiaries
RELF and JVs 21,331,316 2,858,839 24,190,155
@) AR AREES (3) PRC national residing in Mainland China or other
PR T A E AR T2 entities incorporated in Mainland China
HELRAIMaERE and their subsidiaries and JVs 32,639,689 3,554,406 36,194,095
(4) MEIE LI E 1B (4) Other entities of central government not reported
Hot R RIS in item 1 above 4,074,784 595,242 4,670,026
(5) MEIE LM 218 (5) Other entities of local governments not reported
Hithith 77 BT S in item 2 above 158,659 - 158,659
6) EEBARP AL (6) PRC national residing outside Mainland China or
BN B AR entities incorporated outside Mainland China where
HBISEIMNK L O the credit is granted for use in Mainland China 20,083,114 1,234,816 21,317,930
(7) E A4 R SRR (7) Other counterparties where the exposures are
FE A IERTR 5 considered by the reporting institution
HF B AdE to be non-bank Mainland China exposures 6,118,373 22,529 6,140,902
ok Total 135,141,446 14,976,782 150,118,228
EHRERENEELTE Total assets after provision 469,413,321
EEABRRAERKREE On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
HREERSE total assets 28.8%

222 REIRAT (B BIRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Unaudited supplementary financial information

Wit FER () (I)  Mainland Activities (continued)
2023
BIRAETA BRI
2B A B B A I
On-statement Off-statement
of financial of financial ek
position exposure  position exposure Total
BT T BT T BT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(1) FPREFF « PREFFZAEH) (1) Central government, central government-owned
BERENBARMEE entities and their subsidiaries and joint ventures
¥ ("JVs") 41,070,652 1,880,540 42,951,192
Q) B ~ 3T BFRAA) () Local governments, local government-owned
BERERBRARNAE entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
¥ 19,155,037 2,359,642 21,514,679
Q) ERFEAREEFBEAM (3) PRC national residing in Mainland China or other
P AL RO E o A e E T entities incorporated in Mainland China and their
ARIMABERR subsidiaries and JVs 31,897,446 4,409,326 36,306,772
(4) TR LME 1 EREAMFR R (4) Other entities of central government not reported
BT He in item 1 above 3,185,422 593,691 3,779,113
(5) NEFE LI E 2B E M3 77 (5) Other entities of local governments not reported
BT in item 2 above 1,183,888 - 1,183,888
6) EEBARPBERMAIEIN (6) PRC national residing outside Mainland China or
IR R Sk E P EIEINK entities incorporated outside Mainland China where
S the credit is granted for use in Mainland China 22,779,817 1,453,676 24,233,493
(7) itk SR AE R A BIA  (7) Other counterparties where the exposures are
MIERITRHEF 2 RAR considered by the reporting institution to be
I non-bank Mainland China exposures 6,420,088 147,011 6,567,099
k] Total 125,692,350 10,843,886 136,536,236
EMREGEENEESSE Total assets after provision 444,615,600
BEABRARBAERL On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
BEEANK total assets 28.3%
TEER (J) Corporate governance
REEBONRESEEEGKT  ERF The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance
EAREFMEEENEE NG RERR and has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with
0 B BB BUR A [ 453 5 i 52 AT A S Y the modules on ‘Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated

RER | M RREFMEIEES] ) AEHR
T ATEFEERIATEZEGBEENX
ZBg EEMNERERZES®  REZEE
SRFMEEE - RFL B SHBAIIREE
HedER [ EXEaREMER ] ABHE
EAREE 2 BRI ARRERA o

Authorised Institutions” and ‘Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System’ issued by the HKMA. The Board of Directors of the Bank has
established a number of committees including the Audit Committee,
the Credit & Risk Management Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Their composition
and functions are explained in detail in “Corporate Information”
and “Corporate Governance and Other Information”, which will be
included in the printed version of the Group’s annual report.
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PIERAT (ERR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Corporate Governance and Other Information

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and to conduct business in the highest level of integrity. The Group has
established its own Corporate Governance Policy to set out the corporate
governance framework together with a range of sound governance
principles and practices. The Group has also complied, in all material
respects, throughout the year with the modules on “Corporate Governance
of Locally Incorporated Authorised Institutions” and “Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System”, as well as the guidance on "Empowerment of
Independent Non-Executive Directors in the Banking Industry in Hong
Kong”and “Corporate Governance”issued by the HKMA.

Board Composition

The Board of Directors of the Bank (the “Board”) has a well-balanced
composition of Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors to ensure sufficient independence
and collective expertise for effective and objective decision-making. The
Board currently has 7 Directors, including 2 Executive Directors, 1 Non-
executive Director and 4 Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names
and biographies are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information” and
“Biographies of Directors”.

The principle for recruitment and selection of members of the Board is
to ensure an appropriate diversity of skills, backgrounds, and viewpoints.
Nomination Committee is responsible to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Directors and make recommendations to the Board
on the selection. The Board should then satisfy itself that the candidate for
appointment is a fit and proper person. Upon approval granted from the
Board after due consideration, approval would then be sought from the
HKMA for the proposed appointment pursuant to the Banking Ordinance.

The size and composition of the Board will be reviewed annually to ensure
that the Board has the right set of skills, talents and attributes which
enable the Board to have ongoing strategic leadership and the fiduciary
oversight on the Bank to carry on into the future. All present Directors shall
be subjected to retirement from office at the Annual General Meeting in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Bank and are eligible to
offer themselves for re-election.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Board Committees

The Board of Directors of the Bank has delegated the oversight of certain

major functional areas to specialised committees and has established the

following four Board-level committees with respective defined terms of

reference:

(i)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board in providing independent
review and monitoring of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process and its related internal control systems of the Bank. Its major
duties include considering and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of external auditor, overseeing the work
of the external auditor, monitoring integrity of the interim and annual
financial statements, approving the appointment or dismissal of the
Chief Auditor, reviewing reports and significant recommendations
made by the internal audit function, etc.

It comprises three members, majority of whom (including the
chairman) are Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names and
biographies are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information”and
“Biographies of Directors".

Meetings of the Audit Committee shall be held not less than once
in each quarter. Representatives of the external auditor and senior
management including Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer
and Chief Auditor of the Bank are invited to attend these meetings.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, a total of four meetings of
the Audit Committee were held.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Board Committees (Continued)

(ii)

Credit & Risk Management Committee

The Credit & Risk Management Committee oversees and manages
the Bank’s risk related matters including, but not limited to, the
risk strategy, appetite/tolerance, profile, policies (including key risk
procedures), fair value practices, capital adequacy and risk culture,
systems and various risk-related initiatives and projects. It has to
ensure that the risk management function and the compliance
function of the Bank have adequate authority, stature, independence,
management support and resources to perform their duties. The
risks concerned primarily include credit risk, market risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, fraud risk, reputation risk, legal
risk, compliance risk, strategic risk, any risks associated with entering
new markets, new areas of business, or dealing in new products or
services, and climate-related risks. It is also responsible for approving
matters relating to Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP), the Reverse Stress Testing (RST) methodology and results,
and endorsing the recovery planning document before reporting
to the Board for approval on an annual basis. The committee carries
out its oversight function on the Bank's risk management through
various Sub-committees and at the Bank’s management level
committees, including the Credit Committee, the Non-Performing
Loans Committee, the Investment Review Committee, the Market Risk
Committee, the Asset and Liability Committee, the Operational Risk
Management Committee, the Compliance and AML Committee, the
New Product Committee and the Management Committee.

It comprises five members, majority of whom (including the
chairman) are Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names and
biographies are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information”and
“Biographies of Directors".

Meetings of the Credit & Risk Management Committee shall be held
not less than once in each quarter. Chief Risk Officer, Chief Compliance
and Operations Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Human Resources
Officer, Chief Information Officer, Chief Auditor, Head of Personal &
Business Banking Group and Head of Wholesale Banking and Treasury
& Markets Group of the Bank are invited to attend these meetings.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, a total of four meetings of
the Credit & Risk Management Committee were held.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Board Committees (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee assists the Board of Directors of the Bank
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and of
the Board-level committees, and to make recommendations on any
proposed changes if necessary. It also assists in identifying suitable
individuals qualified to become Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and
Alternate Chief Executive Officers, and making recommendations to
the Board on succession planning for Directors, Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank.

It comprises three members, all of whom (including the chairman) are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names and biographies
are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information”and “Biographies
of Directors”.

Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held not less than
once in each year. Chief Human Resources Officer of the Bank is
invited to attend these meetings. During the year ended 31 December
2024, a total of five meetings of the Nomination Committee were
held.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and
approving the remuneration-related policies and structure of
the Bank, and also the bonus pool proposed pursuant to the
prevailing variable compensation schemes. It is also responsible for
reviewing the remuneration packages of the Chairman of the Board,
senior management and key personnel as defined in the Master
Remuneration Policy, and compensation arrangements relating to the
dismissal or removal of Directors, and to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of Chief Executive Officer
and Alternate Chief Executive Officers. The committee also sets the
principle of annual directors’ fees. The committee has to ensure
that an annual review of the Bank's remuneration system and its
operations, which includes an assessment of consistency with the
relevant regulatory rules or guidelines, is conducted independently of
management.

It comprises three members, all of whom (including the chairman) are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names and biographies
are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information”and “Biographies
of Directors”.

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held not less
than once in each year. Chief Human Resources Officer of the Bank is
invited to attend these meetings. During the year ended 31 December
2024, a total of five meetings of the Remuneration Committee were

held.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct of the Bank (the “Code”) covers the standards of
ethical behavior that is expected of its employees.

Banking is a business based on integrity and mutual trust. The Bank
considers the best way to earn and safeguard confidence and trust of
stakeholders is to conduct business according to the highest ethical
standards and to fully comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations
of the jurisdictions where it operates.

To foster a sound bank culture, as supported by the Senior Management
and approved by the Board, the Bank implemented the Code which
provides general guidance on expected ethical behaviour and sets out the
standards of conduct that supports the Bank’s corporate culture and core
values. The key contents of the Code including but not limited to serving
customers, protecting the Bank, preventing financial crime, safeguarding
market integrity, pursuing professional ethics and executing workplace
responsibilities.

To ensure its employees understand the Code and always adhere to it, the
Bank requires all of its employees to study and follow the spirit of the Code.
In addition, the Bank periodically provides training on the Code to new and
existing employees, and employees are required to declare their compliance
to it. The Code is also uploaded to the Bank's intranet and accessible to all
employees.








